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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIE R
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Mrs. Wang Jin Xia
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered office and principal place of business
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL
POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the research and development,
production and sale of single-use medical devices. The Group
has a wide range of products, which includes: i) consumables
(infusion sets, syringes, medical needles, blood bags, pre-
filled syringes, wound management, blood sampling
products, and others); ii) orthopedic materials and iii) blood
purification consumables and equipment. The Company is
recognised as an industrialization base to commercialise
products developed by the State High-tech Research
and Development (863) Program, the State High-tech
Enterprise and the State Technology Center. The Group's
main production facilities are situated in Weihai, Shandong
Province.

The Group is incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
The Group has an extensive sales network comprising 29
sales offices, 33 customer service centers and 234 cities
with sales representatives. As at the date of this report, the
Group has an total customer base of 5,408 (including 3,146
hospitals, 414 blood stations, 678 other medical units and
1,170 distributors).

The Group produces a wide range of products in following
major categories, namely:—

I. Single use medical consumables and materials
(including infusion (transfusion) sets, syringes, blood
bags and blood component segregators consumable,
blood sampling products, pre-filled syringes for
pre-pack medication and medical needles which
mainly include intravenous needles, syringe needles,
intravenous catheter needles, wound management,
blood sampling needles and irregular needles;

Il.  Orthopedic materials and instruments, including trauma
products of steel plates and screws, spinal implants and
artificial joints; and

lll. Blood purification consumables and equipment,
including puncture needles, extracorporeal blood
circuit for blood purification sets, dialyzers and related
consumables.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited,
I would like to present the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the
“Year"). The Group's results in 2016 have continued to
grow steadily, with prominent effect from the optimization

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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adjustment to product mix, which laid a foundation for our ~ RRZERETF 7 EM -
future development.
FINANCIAL SUMMARY MGHE
Financial Summary MBEE
2016 2015 Growth
—E-RE —T—IF B
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT %
Turnover B 6,730,340 5,918,930 13.7
Gross profit EF 4,136,568 3,515,558 17.7
Net profit attributable to the owners of A A #EHB A &k 46 7
the Company 1,105,933 1,112,736 (0.6)
Net profit attributable to the owners of ~ Tt EHIEE AR REH
the Company excluding extraordinary N
items 1,308,964 1,112,736 17.6

During the Year, extraordinary items comprised expenses
balance of RMB294,889,000 incurred due to the
implementation of orthopaedic share award scheme
among which approximately RMB203,031,000 (2015: nil)
had affected the net profit attributable to owners of the
Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRESE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Attending and Voting in the Annual General
Meeting

In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the
register of members of the Company for both H Shares and
Non-listed Shares will be closed from Saturday, 13 May 2017
to Monday, 12 June 2017 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of H Shares or Non-listed Shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting in the
Annual General Meeting, Shareholders should ensure that
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 May 2017.

In order to qualify for attending and voting in the Annual
General Meeting:—

Latest time to lodge in transfer instrument 4:30 p.m., Friday, 12 May
accompanied by the share certificates for 2017
H Shares

Closure of register of members of the
Company for attending and voting in the
Annual General Meeting

Saturday, 13 May 2017 to
Monday, 12 June 2017
(both days inclusive)

Latest time to lodge in the reply slip Monday, 22 May 2017

Date of the Annual General Meeting Monday, 12 June 2017

Entitlement of Proposed Final dividend

In order to determine entitlement to the proposed final
dividend payment, the register of members of the Company
for both H Shares and Non-listed Shares will be closed from
Saturday, 17 June 2017 to Thursday, 22 June 2017 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of H Shares
or Non-listed Shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for entitlement of the proposed final dividend, holders
of H Shares should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company’s H Share registrar, Tricor Standard
Limited, at 22/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 16 June 2017.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

Entitlement of Proposed Final dividend (continued)

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016:—

Latest time to lodge in transfer instrument 4:30 p.m., Friday,16 June
accompanied by the share certificates for 2017
H Shares

Closure of register of members of
the Company for entitlement of
the final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016

Saturday, 17 June 2017 to
Thursday, 22 June 2017
(both day inclusive)

Record date for the entitlement of
the final dividend

Thursday, 22 June 2017

Expected despatch date of the final dividend  Friday , 21 July 2017

The final dividend will be despatched at the risk of those
entitled thereto to their respective registered addresses on or
before Friday, 21 July 2017.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 of RMB0.046 (2015:
RMB0.036) (before considering any tax effect) per share was
approximately RMB208,027,000 (2015: RMB162,804,000),
which will be subject to the approval of shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming 2016 annual general meeting.
Dividend payable to holders of non-listed shares and holders
of H shares participating in the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect will be
paid in Renminbi, whereas dividend payable to holders of the
H shares will be declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong
dollars, the exchange rate of which will be calculated based
on the average exchange rate published by The People’s
Bank of China during the week prior to the Annual General
Meeting. Subject to the approval of the Annual General
Meeting, the 2016 final dividend will be paid on 21 July

2017.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRESE

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND (continued)

In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People’'s Republic of China ( (FFZFE AR LM ETEM
%) ) and its implementation rules effective on 1 January
2008, where a PRC domestic enterprise distributes dividends
for financial periods beginning from 1 January 2008 to non-
resident enterprise shareholders, it is required to withhold
10% enterprise income tax for such non-resident enterprise
shareholders. Therefore, as a PRC domestic enterprise, the
Company will, after withholding 10% of the final dividend
as enterprise income tax, distribute the final dividend to non-
resident enterprise shareholders, i.e. any shareholders who
hold the Company’s shares in the name of non-individual
shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC Nominees
Limited, other nominees, trustees, or holders of H Shares
registered in the name of other organizations and groups.

Pursuant to the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ( (FFZE AR
HFNBEAFTEFL) ), the Implementation Regulations
of the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ( (FF#E AR X7
B APTISBOREMMRDBI) ), the Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation in relation to the Administrative
Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-residents
under Tax Treaties (Tentative) (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No. 124)
((BRBEBEBBRENE CGEEREXTURBEFEE
A (A17) ) WAEM) (B #[2009]1245%) ) (the
“Tax Treaties Notice”), other relevant laws and regulations
and other regulatory documents, the Company shall, as
a withholding agent, withhold and pay individual income
tax for the individual holders of H shares in respect of the
dividend to be distributed to them. However, the individual
holders of H shares may be entitled to certain tax preferential
treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC
and the countries (regions) in which the individual holders of
H shares are domiciled and the tax arrangements between
Mainland China, Hong Kong or Macau. For individual holders
of H shares in general, the Company will withhold and
pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of
the individual holders of H shares in the distribution of the
dividend. However, the tax rates applicable to individual
holders of H Shares overseas may vary depending on the
tax treaties between the PRC and the countries (regions)
in which the individual holders of H shares are domiciled,
and the Company will withhold and pay individual income
tax on behalf of the individual holders of H shares in the
distribution of the dividend accordingly.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND (continued)

The cash dividends for investors through Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect will be paid in Renminbi. Pursuant to the Notice on
the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect (Caishui [2014] No.81 (BB &
REMEXZEMEBREIA AT KB RO B (B
£%[2014]815%) ) and the Notice on the Tax Policies Related
to the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect (Caishui [2016] No.127 (AR FEFEREMISERX 5
EMEage AR EEN KN RN R (BB[2016]127
%%, for dividend received by domestic individual investors
from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange through Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the company of such
H shares shall withhold and pay individual income tax at the
rate of 20% on behalf of the investors.

The Company will identify the country of domicile of the
individual holders of H shares according to their registered
address on the H share register of members of the Company
(the “Registered Address”). If the domicile of an individual
holders of H shares is not the same as the Registered
Address or if the individual holders of H shares would like
to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax finally
withheld and paid, the individual holders of H shares shall
notify and provide relevant supporting documents to the
Company. Upon examination of the supporting documents
by the relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow
the guidance given by the tax authorities to implement
the relevant tax withholding provisions and arrangements.
Individual holders of H shares may either personally or
appoint a representative to attend to the procedures in
accordance with the requirements under the Tax Treaties
Notice if they do not provide the relevant supporting
documents to the Company.

The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims all
liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax
treatment of the individual holders of H shares and for any
claims arising from or in connection with any delay in or
inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment
of the individual holders of H shares or any disputes over the
withholding mechanism or arrangements.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisors
regarding the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications
arising from or in connection with their holding and disposal
of the H shares of the Company.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Group’s various achievements as mentioned above
are attributable to the continued supports of the staff,
customers and business partners and shareholders. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere
thanks for all your contributions!

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Hua Wei

Chairman
22 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPTIMIZATION OF PRODUCT MIX

During the Year, the gross profit margin of the Group
increased to 61.5% from 59.4%, which was mainly
attributable to the on-going product mix optimization. In
addition, the continuous management enhancement and
technological updating, as well as decline in raw materials
purchase costs also contributed to such increase.

1.

Consumables: the Group recorded a turnover
for consumable products of approximately
RMB4,833,340,000, representing an increase of 11.5%
when compared with the previous year.

During the Year, the sales of the Group’s specialized
infusion sets with precision filter, infusion sets for
special use and the infusion sets made of proprietary
non-PVC based material continued to grow. The
turnover of infusion sets of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,572,897,000, representing an
increase of 9.4% over last year. The Directors believe
that specialized infusion sets with precision filter,
infusion sets for clinical special use and non-PVC
based infusion sets have development potential in the
PRC. The Group will continue to consolidate its core
competitiveness in this sector.

Turnover for needle products of the Group was
approximately RMB895,272,000, representing an
increase of 9.0% when compared with the previous
year. During the Year, in view of the intensive
competition from domestic needle products
manufacturers, the Company made active adjustments
to product mix and ancillary marketing strategies and
continued to increase marketing investments and
intensified the efforts in new products research and
development, whereby leading to an increase in overall
revenue of such kind of products through sales of safety
intravenous catheter needles and intravenous catheter
needles ancillary consumables. The Company would
continue to increase its ongoing investments in needle
products to enable such business to become one of the
important segments for the future development of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE DT

OPTIMIZATION OF PRODUCT MIX (continued)

(continued)

Turnover of pre-filled syringes and pre-filled
flush syringe products for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB598,839,000, representing an
increase of 34.5% when compared with last year.
The pre-filled syringes and pre-filled flush syringes
achieved a sound utilization of production capacity.
With market penetration of pre-filled syringes in
multiple industries in packing material of cosmetic
surgery and biopharmaceutical products, it overcame
the adverse impact of incidents in the vaccine industry
in China and still maintained a rapid growth. Pre-filled
flush syringes continued to maintain a relatively high
growth momentum, whereby driving the overall growth
of consumables. The Group continued to establish a
favourable position in such market.

Turnover of wound management products for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB171,624,000,
representing an increase of 66.7% when compared
with last year. Market development for anastomat,
sutures and functional dressing progressed smoothly
with higher sales growth.

The blood purification business of Weigao Blood
Purification Products Company Limited (“Weigao Blood
Purification”, a subsidiary of the Company) achieved
a healthy growth. During the Year, Weigao Blood
Purification recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB1,093,502,000, representing an increase of
18.3% when compared with last year. Turnover of
haemodialysis consumable products was approximately
RMB883,008,000, representing an increase of
20.1% when compared with last year. Turnover
of haemodialysis equipments was approximately
RMB210,494,000, representing an increase of 11.1%
when compared with last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPTIMIZATION OF PRODUCT MIX (continued)

3. Orthopaedic business recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB803,498,000 during the Year,
representing an increase of 22.2% as compared
with last year. During the Year, orthopaedic segment
generated better sales growth through down stream
channel distribution, logistics platform establishment
and commenced direct sales business. The spine and
joint products, which were preliminarily launched to the
market one after another, provided strong supports for
sales growth.

During the Year, as a result of product mix adjustment,
the percentage of turnover from high value-added
products (products with gross profit margins over 60%)
to total turnover maintained at 56.7% (2015: 55.8%).

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016, product
registration certificates for 46 new products were obtained
by the Group. The research and development for 63
products were completed for which applications for product
registration certificates are underway. The Group obtained
61 new patents and 100 new patents are under application.

The strategy of placing strong emphasis on research and
development has enhanced the competitiveness and laid a
foundation for the Company to fully leverage on its customer
resources and provided the Group with new profit growth
drivers.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016, the Group
had over 410 product registration certificates and over 480
patents, of which 72 were patents on invention.

In view of the need for the strategic adjustments to product
mix, the Group continued to increase the investments in the
research and development in existing products series and
new medical devices, so as to further improve its product
series and expand product range. The Group continued to
maintain the leading position in research and development
capability in China. For the twelve months ended 31
December 2016, total research and development expenses
amounted to approximately RMB302,679,000 (2015:
approximately RMB292,658,000), representing 4.5% (2015:
4.9%) of the revenue of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEmEONT

PRODUCTION

During the Year, in order to constantly expand production
capacity, the Group continued to expand its production
facilities including pre-filled flush syringe workshop and
blood dialyzer workshop to satisfy the sales demand for
future market growth.

SALES AND MARKETING

The Group continually optimized marketing management,
improved the marketing management procedures and
functions of consumables segment during the Year, and
further enhanced the front-line marketing management
efficiency to quickly response to the market. The Group
achieved results in key accounts management. At the same
time, the Group increased the sales staff headcount, placed
more resources to support market channels and continued
to promote hospital administrators and medical staff training
projects.

During the Year, the Group strengthened its sales
management system. The Group focused on its marketing
resources on customer development and maintained the
relationship with hospitals from the grade-A of tier two or
above ( ZF A F8PF%) . For the twelve months ended 31
December 2016, the Group newly added 110 customers,
among which hospitals, other medical institutes and
distributors increased by 14, 35 and 61 respectively. As at
the date of this report, the Group has a total customer base
of 5,408 (including 3,146 hospitals, 414 blood stations, 678
other medical units and 1,170 distributors).

Sales comparison by geographical regions for the Year when
compared with last year is set out as follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB T am B AT

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS EXRAMESE
Increase/
(Decrease)
over
corresponding
2016 2015 period%
—E-R%¥ —Z-RhF (7 4
RMB’000 RMB'000 1R
AR®TTR ARETTL %
Eastern and Central EREER 2,992,813 2,576,847 16.1
Northern i 1,382,282 1,225,248 12.8
Northeast 21 664,994 576,950 15.3
Southern =3 604,904 554,030 9.2
Southwest Pl 595,432 534,093 11.5
Northwest [iipld 226,537 182,262 24.3
Overseas g} 263,378 269,500 (2.3)
Sub-total NG 6,730,340 5,918,930 13.7

The integration of sales channels has strengthened the
Group's market penetration and influence over the direct
sales to high-end customers. It enhanced sales contribution
per customer and average sales per customer were increased
by approximately 11.4% when compared with last year. It
continued to drive up the product penetration to high-end
customers and was an important approach in generating
revenue growth for the Group.

REMES WARTAEETEEHESHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR E S B DT

Adjustment in product mix was another important factor
in enhancing the results for the Year. During the Year, the
Group focused on sales and marketing of high value-added
infusion sets. It has increased the proportion of revenue
from high value-added products over its total revenue.
Comparison of sales revenue of principal products with that

in last year is as follows:

For the twelve months
ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLt-f@A

ERGEBNRABRSRETFAEENS —
B ERE  FAREEERHEE S
BEHRENHE M EEMBRAGE
WAZLPIER - ST EEMFEERAR
EFEHHBERIT

For the six months
ended 31 December

BE+-AZt-HIERMEA

Over Over
corresponding corresponding
Product category 2016 2015 period 2016 2015 period
ERER Z2-RE C—Z-1F BRE ZB-RE —T-1F B[R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARRTRE ARETR % ARBTR ARETET %
Infusion sets L 1,572,897 1,437,114 9.4 814,992 739,287 10.2
Needles ERHEM 895,272 821,676 9.0 468,449 408,988 14.5
Syringes 578 757,702 689,892 9.8 389,080 355,609 9.4
Pre-filled syringes ERATA 598,839 445,257 345 307,107 211,160 454
Blood bags MEH 274,623 315,814 (13.0) 141,973 155,360 (8.6)
Wound management BB &R 171,624 102,956 66.7 87,668 57,820 51.6
Blood sampling products FME R 89,640 74,403 20.5 46,283 39,998 15.7
PVC granules PVCHI A} 53,003 55,543 (4.6) 25,939 28,466 (8.9)
Others Hito 419,740 393,884 6.6 200,339 214,957 (6.8)
Sub-total for single-use —REERER DR
consumables 4,833,340 4,336,539 115 2,481,830 2,211,645 122
Orthopaedic products EREM 803,498 657,702 222 462,986 301,730 534
Blood purification consumables A& F (L 883,008 735,234 20.1 477,847 413,091 15.7
Blood purification equipments MR F(L ik & 210,494 189,455 1.1 112,251 115,580 (2.9)
Total et 6,730,340 5,918,930 137 3,534,914 3,042,046 16.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of
10,575 employees. The breakdown by departments when
compared with last year is as follows:

B B A A L AT
ANBE

RZE—RF+ZA=1+—8 K~&EEHK
FEF10,575% R 8 AT RIS
T :

DEPARTMENT i
2016 2015
—B-RFE _—_T—1F
Production FE 5,882 5,769
Sales and marketing HE RMIBHERE 2,642 2,386
Research and development fiff 2% 1,099 991
Finance and administration B AT 495 408
Quality control EEE 218 158
Management B 172 112
Purchasing R 67 37
Total st 10,575 9,861

Save for the 4 employees (including company secretary)
who are resided in Hong Kong, all the employees of the
Group are resided in Mainland China. During the Year, total
cost of salaries, welfare and social benefits of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,622,206,000 (2015:
RMB1,154,802,000).

REMUNERATION SYSTEM

The Group's remuneration policy has been determined
based on its performance, changes in the local consumption
power and competition in human resources market. The
remuneration policy so determined has become the basis
of determining the salary level of employees recruited
for different positions. The salary of each employee is
determined according to the employee’s performance,
ability, employment conditions and the salary standards set
by the Company. Remuneration of directors is proposed
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
operating results of the Company, personal performance
of the directors and market competition. The proposed
remuneration of directors is proposed by the Board subject
to approval by shareholders at forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded a turnover of RMB6,730,340,000, representing
an increase of 13.7% over the previous financial year.
Net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
was approximately RMB1,105,933,000 (2015: net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately RMB1,112,736,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 0.6% as compared with the
previous year. Net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company (excluding extraordinary items) was approximately
RMB1,308,964,000 (2015: net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company (excluding extraordinary items) of
approximately RMB1,112,736,000), representing an increase
of approximately 17.6% over the previous year.

Pt 35 Bl R

HE-_ZE—XRE+-_A=+—HILEE"
FELFEHER AR®6,730,340,000
T BRE-—UWHRFEERT13.7% °
KARBEBEABRBEEFNOARK
1,105,933,0007c (ZE— A F : KR A
WA AT 4 AR®1,112,736,000
TT) B E—FETEL0.6% o TETHEFI
HEMARGERE ABRGATIHARK
1,308,964,0007C ( — & — R F : Tt
WIHEWMALNR A ABGAENHAR
#1,112,736,00070) & F—FEF FF
4917.6%

FINANCIAL SUMMARY M35 4 =
2016 2015 Growth
—E-RE —T—AF R
RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARBTR AREKETT %
Turnover LR 6,730,340 5,918,930 13.7
Gross profit EH 4,136,568 3,515,558 17.7
Net profit attributable to the owners of AN A% A A FE15 45 F
the Company 1,105,933 1,112,736 (0.6)
Net profit attributable to the TEtHHRIBEE AA A
owners of the Company (excluding XN Al
extraordinary items) 1,308,964 1,112,736 17.6

During the Year, extraordinary items comprised expenses
balance of RMB294,889,000 incurred due to the
implementation of orthopaedic share award scheme,
among which approximately RMB203,031,000 (2015: nil)
had affected the net profit attributable to owners of the
Company.

FRN-BHHRBEEABRREIBELEZE
FA294,889,000tH ' £ A RIEE A
JE G 45 7 4] A A R #203,031,0007T (=
T—RFE)-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position
during the Year. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
cash and bank balance amounted to approximately
RMB4,071,892,000. For the year ended 31 December
2016, net cash flow from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,053,139,000. The Group
has maintained a sound cash flow position.

Total interest expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 were approximately RMB56,762,000 (2015:
approximately RMB44,497,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, total net cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,879,281,000 (2015:
RMB2,693,053,000). The change in the total net cash was
mainly due to well-management in cash.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's purchases and sales are mainly conducted in
the PRC. All of its assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in RMB. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group had not encountered any material difficulty
due to currency fluctuation nor affecting its own operating
funds. For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016,
the Group had no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuation or hedging for such risk.

Due to the change in exchange rates, foreign exchange
loss equivalent to RMB5,518,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 was recognised (2015: foreign exchange loss
equivalent to RMB3,424,000) by the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN mEONT

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/FUTURE
MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS

1. During the Year, the Group continued to invest
approximately RMB621,104,000 on purchase of
production facilities and plant construction for the
purpose of enhancing the overall construction of the
industrial zone for the Group’s medical consumables.

2. In 2017, the Group plans to invest RMB290,000,000 on
purchase of two dialyzer production lines of the fourth
phase of blood purification, which are expected to be in
production successively at the end of 2017 and at the
beginning of 2018.

3. The new production line of pre-filled syringes with
a planned investment of RMB80,000,000 in 2017 is
expected to be in production by the end of 2019.

4. The upgrading and reconfiguration of the single-use
consumables production equipment is ongoing in 2017.
It is expected that an additional RMB100,000,000 will
be invested to further raise the level of production
automation.

Save for the above material investments and investment
plans, the Group had no material capital commitments or
any future plans involving significant investments or capital
assets acquisition as at 31 December 2016. Other than the
deemed disposal of interest in Weigao Blood Purification
as stated in the announcement dated 23 January 2017.
There was no material acquisition and disposal of any other
subsidiaries and associates during the Year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the capital commitments of the
Group and the Company contracted but not provided for in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB472,729,000 (2015:
RMB406,092,000). The above amounts will be financed by
the internal resources of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not pledge the land
use rights and buildings (2015: RMB Nil), but the Group had
pledged the equity interest in Weigao Jierui, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, to secure the long-term borrowings
from International Finance Corporation, and pledged bank
deposits of RMB36,980,000 (2015: RMB46,173,000) to
secure the bills and banking facilities granted to the Group.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, total reserves of the Group amounted
to RMB11,414,344,000 (2015: RMB10,210,540,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company's
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to the Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles.
As at 31 December 2016, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB2,942,314,000 (2015:
RMB2,667,709,000).

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2017

Through proprietary research and development and
leveraging on the cooperation with research institutes, the
Company will strengthen product upgrading and product
research and development capabilities, further consolidate
existing product lines, highlight product operation safety
and patient application safety, improve patient treatment
experience and quicken the pace in launching pipeline
products, offsetting numerous adverse impacts to maintain
its competitive edge. During the Year, the Company will
launch or reinforce a series of new products including DEHP-
free infusion sets, radiation-resistant infusion sets, central
venous catheters, artery blood sampling needles, pre-filled
syringes (cyclo olefin polymer), flush syringes, peritoneal
dialysis products, and orthopedic spines and joints.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHRES

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2017 (continued)

In view of the effectiveness achieved by key accounts
management, the Company will continue such strategy
and increase customer contribution by promoting various
products via the key accounts management. By developing
the financing lease business around the Company’s industry
chain and forming synergies and driving sales between
financial services and product sales.

Regarding the in-depth implementation of national
medical reform policies such as “two-invoice system” and
lower tender prices, the Company considers that despite
such policies may have adverse impact on the financial
performance to a certain extent in the short term, however,
they will facilitate industry concentration in the long-term
and benefit the growth of outstanding enterprises in the
industry.

As overseas market is the focus of our middle and long-
term strategical layout, the Company will proactively develop
its overseas business layout and proceed with product
registration in Europe and North America, gradually establish
long-term stable sales channel. The proportion of sales
in overseas markets to the total revenue of the Group is
expected to increase gradually.

The Company will selectively improve and extend existing
product lines and introduce advanced technologies through
equity investments and mergers and acquisitions. The
Company will seek for targets in orthopaedic, surgical
consumables and wound management segments.

While continuously carrying out technical improvement
in production, the Company will continue to improve its
product quality, increase production efficiency to maintain
cost advantages.

After careful evaluating the competitive situation of the PRC
dialysis market and giving comprehensive consideration,
the Board of the Company decided for Weigao Blood to
issue shares to key managements to maintain its domestic
competitiveness of blood purification business.

By relying on its enriched product lines and solid research
and development advantages, continue to launch new
products and improve product upgrades, insist on adapting
to market and future-oriented operating strategy, and
motivate employee creativity, the management believes that
the Company will maintain its leading position in the PRC
market and achieve a stable growth in operating results.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To all shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”)
of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited, in compliance with the relevant requirements of
the Company Law and the Articles of Association of the
Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work
seriously and with diligence to protect the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board.
It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the
Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they are in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles
of Association of the Company, and in the interests of its
shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited financial statements and the dividend to be
proposed by the Board for presentation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. We are of the opinion that the
Directors, the chief executive officer and other senior
management of the Company are able to strictly observe
their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and
to work in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. The transactions between the Company and
connected parties are in the interests of the shareholders as
a whole and under fair and reasonable price.

As of today, none of the Directors, chief executive officer
and senior management staff had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the
Company or infringed upon the interests of its shareholders
and employees. None of them was found to be in breach of
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EESHEE

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2016 and has
great confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited

Bi Dong Mei

Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Weihai, Shandong Province, the PRC

22 March 2017
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The Directors are pleased to submit their annual report,
including discussion on the Company's environmental
policies and performance on pages 72 to 84 to this report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company was established and registered as a joint stock
company with limited liability in the PRC under the Company
Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000. The H Shares of the
Company were listed on GEM board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27
February 2004 and were transferred to Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 29 July 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Based in Shandong province, the Company is principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of single-use medical devices. The Group has a
wide range of products, which includes: 1) consumables
(infusion set, syringes, medical needle, blood bags, pre-
filled syringes, wound management, blood sampling
products, and other consumables); 2) orthopedic products;
and 3) blood purification consumables and equipment.
The Group’s products are sold under its own brand names,
including "Jierui” and “"Wego Ortho"”. The products are sold
throughout the PRC and exported to overseas. As at the date
of this report, the Group has a total customer base of 5,408
(including 3,146 hospitals, 414 blood stations, 678 other
medical units and 1,170 distributors).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during
the year of 2016 at an aggregate cost of approximately
RMB771,981,000 in order to enhance its production
capacity. Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2016, there was a total issued share
capital of 4,522,332,324 shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which include:
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Non-listed Shares FEEMRAD 2,638,600,000 58.35%
H Shares HA& 1,883,732,324 41.65%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The changes in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 31 to the financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, total reserves of the Group amounted
to RMB11,414,344,000 (2015: RMB10,220,540,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to the Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles.
As at 31 December 2016, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB2,942,314,000 (2015:
RMB2,667,709,000)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the Year were:

Executive directors

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei
Mr. Wang Yi

Mr. Gong Jian Bo
Mr. Xia Lie Bo

Non-executive directors

Mr. Chen Xue Li
(resigned with effect from 22 March 2016)
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung

Mr. Li Jia Miao

(resigned with effect from 30 December 2016)
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong

Mrs. Wang Jin Xia
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of the directors entered into service agreements with
the Company. The service contracts were signed for an initial
term of three years, unless and until terminated by either
party by giving notice to the other party with three months’
notice in writing. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, the service agreements of all directors are
renewable for successive three-year terms upon expiry.

The service agreements for directors do not stipulate for
any amount of remuneration or bonus payment to be
paid for services provided. The executive directors are paid
with a fixed sum of annual salaries for holding positions
in the Company and entitled to welfare benefits (including
retirement benefits and medical insurance) in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. All two
non-executive directors waived their directors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and accepted a
nominal annual fee of RMB1.00.

According to the respective service agreements entered into
between the Company and each of the four independent
non-executive directors, each of Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, Mrs.
Wang Jin Xia and Mr. Li Jia Miao (resigned on 30 December
2016) received an annual fee of RMB108,000, and Mr. Lo
Wai Hung received an annual fee of HK$180,000.

Apart from the foregoing, no directors have a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director, either directly or indirectly, is in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWMSE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the directors
in the share capital of the Company and their associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (“SFQO™)), (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:

(i) Long positions of non-listed Shares of
RMBO0.10 each of the Company

EFEREONESIREFR

R-E—RF+_A=+—"H BFRAK
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Nyl dv ok

Approximate

percentage of

Total the issued

number of share capital

Name of Types of non-listed of the

Director interests Capacity Shares Company

HEQF

ERITRED

EEna raW|H S JE LB B Bivask

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei Personal Beneficial owner 32,400,000 0.716%
SREREE & A Em#EB A

Mr. Wang Yi Personal Beneficial owner 23,400,000 0.517%
FTREE PN EmERA

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua Personal Beneficial owner 15,300,000 0.338%
JEREE £+ & A Em#EB A

In addition, Mr. Chen Lin, son of Mr. Chen Xue Li is SN BREBR L E 2 FRMEEE

holder of the Company’s 200,000 non-listed Shares,
representing 0.004% of the issue share capital of the
Company.

J5 7K 72 &]1200,0004% 3F + 5 A% 17 ¥
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

(ii) Long positions in the registered capital of the
ultimate holding company, Weigao Holding,
an associated corporation of the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWE

EEREOHEZIREFR (4)

(i) REXRERAFAAERELR (X
AFHEBEEH)EMBEENEE

Approximate
percentage of
the registered

Amount of capital of
Name of registered Weigao
director Capacity capital Holding
HEERE
EMBEE
EEfS 53 EMREEH @aask
Weihai Weigao International Registered owner 1,078,000,000 89.83%
Medical Investment Holding
Company Limited* (Note)
B B B R B R IR A R BREAA
BRAA (FFE)
Mr. Chen Xue Li Beneficial owner 69,540,000 5.79%
BREZF &£ EmEAA
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei Beneficial owner 21,960,000 1.83%
SRERE A EmEAA
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua Beneficial owner 12,200,000 1.02%
EREE 2 £ EmEAA
Mr. Wang Yi Beneficial owner 4,880,000 0.41%
ERELE EmEAA
Note: BN BBl = BIBR EEE IR EEIR AR A A (Weihai Weigao Mzt : BUSEmBEREEREERER AT

International Medical Investment Holding Company Limited*) is
owned as to 61.87% by Mr. Chen Xue Li, 15.96% by Mr. Zhang
Hua Wei, 8.87% by Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua, 3.55% by Mr. Wang Yi
and 7.09% by Mr. Chen Lin

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors
nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FERHE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of
the Company granted to any directors or their respective
associates or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire such rights in the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO recorded that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interest in
the issued share capital of the Company.
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Percentage Percentage

Number of of issued of total

non-listed non-listed  Number of issued

Name of Shareholder Capacity shares Shares H Shares share capital
HEHT HEBRT

FELmkR BEEEN

BRAE 51 FLrmkiBA BRL HEE®E Bkt
Weigao Holding Company Limited Beneficial owner 2,159,755,676 81.85% 0 47.76%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the following shareholders have
disclosed their relevant interests or long positions in the
issued share capital of the Company.

REPORT OF THE DlRECTORS
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FERF (&)

B EXHWBEEN THRREHREFRER
f NEEEITRAFHEASNEEEZES
S

Number
of shares % of issued
interested share capital
(See *Notes (See *Notes
Name of substantial shareholder above) above)
BAERES HERT
Bin& A BFESL
TERFTERE (R EXMEE) (R EXHsE)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 208,000,064(L) 11.04(L)
1,816,000(S) 0.09(5)
202,257,867(P) 10.73(P)
Joho Partners L.P. 189,747,038(L) 10.07(L)
Karr Robert A. 189,747,038(L) 10.07(L)
RAK Capital, LLC 189,747,038(L) 10.07(L)
Capital Research and
Management Company 114,662,000(L) 6.09(L)
BlackRock, Inc. 95,804,532(L) 5.09(L)
3,132,000(S) 0.70(S)
Note: (L) - Long Position, (S)- Short Position, (P) — Lending Pool e (D—F& (S)—%E (P)— o EHrARS
*Source: Website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange ORI S B 22 B A8
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEEFRRMEED

In 2016, sales to the Group’'s five largest customers
accounted for 3.1% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for 0.9%
of the total sales of the year. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for 22.5% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for 9.9% of the total purchases of the
Year. During the Year, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME REGARDING NON-
LISTED SHARES

On 17 November 2014 (the "Adoption Date”), the
Company's share award scheme (“Incentive Share Scheme”)
was adopted by the extraordinary general meeting, the class
meeting of holders of H shares and the class meeting of
holders of non-listed shares of the Company. The maximum
number of non-listed Shares which may be issued under
the share award scheme would be 223,818,616, which
represent 5% of the issued share capital of the Company
or approximately 4.76% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the issue of the 223,818,616
non-listed shares as of the date of the Adoption Date,
respectively, as incentive shares to key personnel of the
Group, and other persons as approved by the Remuneration
Committee (the "“Selected Employee”), in batches in
subsequent years. On 11 December 2015, the first batch of
the Incentive Share Scheme granted 45,960,000 shares. The
life of the Incentive Share Scheme is for 10 years. Details of
the Incentive Share Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcement and circular dated 15 August 2014 and 30
September 2014, respectively.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, the incentive
shares will be granted to the Selected Employee, subject to
vesting conditions. For the Year, the Company did not grant
any incentive shares. Details of the number of incentive
Shares issued are set out in note 33(a) on pages 183 to 185
of this report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME REGARDING NON-
LISTED SHARES OF WEIGAO ORTHO

On 12 May 2016, two limited partnerships (named Weihai
Hong Yang Rui Information Technology Centre (Limited
Partnership) (BB A EBREMFR L (BRER) ),
and Weihai Glory Trading Centre (Limited Partnership) (&
BKBE SR L (BRE%) ), respectively), subscribed
22,222,222 shares which represent 10% equity interests
in Weigao Ortho with consideration of RMB311,111,000.
The two limited partnerships are controlled and beneficially
owned by members of the management team of Weigao
Ortho. The subscription aims to recognise the contribution
of and incentivise the members of the management team.
The difference between the consideration and the fair value
of the shares issued of RMB294,889,000 was recognised as
share-based payment expenses. Details are set out in note
33(b) on pages 185 to 186 of this report.
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LOAN AGREEMENT WITH INTERNATIONAL
FINANCE CORPORATION

On 27 January 2015, the Company entered into a five
(5) years loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) for the
principal amount of RMB600 million (the “Loan”) with the
International Finance Corporation (“IFC"), a member of
the World Bank Group and the largest global development
institution focused exclusively on the private sector. The
Company shall repay the Loan in one lump sum on 15
March 2020. The Loan will be used to facilitate the business
development of Weigao Blood Purification Products
Company Limited (“Weigao Blood"”) to establish blood
dialyzer and related products manufacturing capacity and to
open additional hemodialysis centers in China.

Under the share pledge agreement entered into between
Weigao Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”),
the Company and IFC on 27 January 2015 (the “Share
Pledge Agreement”), Weigao Holding must ensure at any
time the equivalent market value of the shares pledged
shall be equivalent to at least one point five (1.5) times the
outstanding amount of the loan. The shares pledged to
secure the long-term borrowing is 230 million non-listed
shares held by Weigao Holding and the equity interest of
the Company in Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company
Limited. As at the date of this report, Weigao Holding holds
2,159,755,676 shares in the Company, representing 47.76%
of the total issued share capital of the Company. Details of
the Loan Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 January 2015.

TERMINATION OF PROPOSED SPIN OFF ON
HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company has decided not to proceed with the proposed
spin-off of Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company
Limited (“Weigao Ortho”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited taking into account of the market conditions.
Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 18 February 2015 and 11 March 2016.
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PROPOSED MAJOR AND DISCLOSEABLE
TRANSACTION

On 14 June 2016, the Company and Shandong Weigao
Group Logistic Company Limited (Weigao Logistic),
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into the asset
transfer agreement with, among others, Zhuhai Winbase
International Chemical Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. ("Winbase
International”), a company established under the laws
of the PRC and the A shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, pursuant to which the Company
and Weigao Logistic have conditionally agreed to sell, and
Winbase International has conditionally agreed to acquire,
a 81% equity interest in Weigao Ortho at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB4,909,000,000. The
consideration will be satisfied by (a) the issuance of the
Consideration Shares by Winbase International to the
Company; and (b) the transfer of the Winbase Assets by
Winbase International to Weigao Logistic.

On 14 June 2016, Winbase International and the Company
entered into the subscription agreement pursuant to which
Winbase International has conditionally agreed to issue,
and the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe
29,732,411 Winbase shares at a cash consideration of
RMB300,000,000.

Upon Completion, Winbase international will become a
direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Details
of the transactions above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 June 2016.
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders as
defined under the “Listing Rules” of the Company or their
respective associates has any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
IN RESPECT OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS

The Company and subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
renewed the framework purchase agreement, framework
sales agreement, framework tenancy agreement and
framework services agreement (collectively the “Framework
Agreements”) with Weigao Holding Company Limited or its
subsidiaries (collectively “Weigao Holding Group”) on 25
November 2016 regarding the respective annual caps for
the continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the Framework Agreements between the Group and Weigao
Holding Group for two years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2018. Details of the Framework Agreements were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25
November 2016.

1. Framework Purchase Agreement

An agreement pursuant to which the Group agrees
to purchase and Weigao Holding Group agrees to
sell services and medical based products, including
and not limited to, medical equipment, medical
raw materials, sanitary products, medical packaging
materials, pharmaceutical and fitting out services on a
non-exclusive basis. The annual cap for the purchase
transactions between the Group and Weigao Holding
Group shall not exceed RMB302.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. During the Year, the actual
amount of transactions in relation to the Framework
Purchase Agreement was approximately RMB212.9
million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
IN RESPECT OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS

(continued)

2.

Framework Sales Agreement

An agreement pursuant to which the Group agrees
to sell and Weigao Holding Group agrees purchase,
including and not limited to, medical devices and
moulding on a non-exclusive basis. The annual cap for
the sales transactions between the Group and Weigao
Holding Group shall not exceed RMB44.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016. During the
Year, the actual amount of transactions in relation to
the Framework Sales Agreement was approximately
RMB28.0 million.

Framework Tenancy Agreement

The Group entered into framework tenancy agreement
with Weigao Holding Group regarding lease of premises
located at industrial zone at Hi-tech Science Park in
Weihai in Shandong Province, the PRC. The annual
rental cap between the Group and Weigao Holding
Group shall not exceed RMB25.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. During the Year, the actual
rental amount in relation to the Framework Tenancy
Agreement was approximately RMB4.2 million.

Framework Services Agreement

The Group entered into framework services
agreement regarding procurement of factory workers
transportation services, dormitory, canteen and catering
services provided by Weigao Holding Group to the
Group. The annual cap between the Group and Weigao
Holding Group shall not exceed RMB78.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016. During the Year,
the actual amount of transactions in relation to the
Framework Services Agreement was approximately
RMB61.2 million.

Weigao Holding is the controlling shareholder of the
Company and is therefore a connected person of
the Company, the transactions contemplated under
the Framework Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the purpose
of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

FRIERMEBZISERERS
(&)
2. ERBERS

BiEZHE AEEREZRIERR
EENE MEBSSBEREKIES
REEHERE (BETRRN) BES
WMEBE -REBEE-_ZT—NF+=
A=+—BLEFE AEBEES
SECHERGZFE LRI EHE
B AR#44,000,0007T° £ 0 B
ERHERBEILERRIESRENE

A K #28,000,0007T °

3. EXRHAKR

BEZGE ~SEEEeSEEE]
VIERHERZ AR BEBEHEEN
RARILRER S R E S
AERTIXR2WE- REBE-FT
—"NF+ZA=Z+—BLEFE XK
SEEFSEECFEHE LR
N5 iE A R#25,000,0007T ° F
N BREELEERECERES

#) B NER#4,200,0007T °

4. HEIRR T

AT R RS

JG °©

Bk B QB RANR AR
R AU AARRRZBEEANL  #5
BEBMARZMABERARESRLD
RAIE14AZE TN = - ER IR T
BT ZXPEAANEE 2 FERE

25

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
LWREREEERRD FRARKNDAERAF 2016 Fi§

B
AReEERAERRETHRTA
BRRE BE RERERKRSE-
REBEE-_ZT—XFEF+_A=+—
AEtFE AEBEFSEECF
[ ERTSH B ART78,000,000
TT-FAN BEBEELEREHEZE
BR5eEHARE61,200,000



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
IN RESPECT OF FINANCE LEASE AND
FACTORING FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

On 25 November 2016, the Group renewed and entered into
the finance leasing and factoring framework agreement with
Weigao Holding and its subsidiaries (the “Weigao Holding
Group”) to provide finance leasing and factoring services
to Weigao Holding Group with a principal of not exceeding
RMB260,000,000 for two years commencing from 1 January
2017 and expiry 31 December 2018.

As one or more applicable percentage ratios (as defined
in Rule 14.07 under the Listing Rules) in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the financial leasing and
factoring framework agreement exceeds 0.1%, but is less
than 5.0%. such transactions are therefore only subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under
relevant rules in chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are
exempt from the Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 25 November 2016 for details.

The annual cap between the Group and Weigao Holding
Group has not exceed RMB260.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2016. During the Year, the actual amount of
transactions in relation to the financial leasing and factoring
framework agreement was approximately RMB98,834,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with the relevant disclosure requirements in respect
of continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The auditor of the Company was engaged in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA and reported the
following conclusion to the Board:
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RESPECT OF FINANCE LEASE AGREEMENT

(continued)

Based on the foregoing, in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company:

(i)  have received approval from the Board;
(i) were conducted in accordance to the pricing policy;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the cap amount for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 disclosed in the relevant
announcement.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION - JOINT
VENTURE AGREEMENT

On 7 January 2016, the Company entered into the joint
venture agreement with Weigao Holding to establish the
joint venture company in China to engage in providing
financial services in the PRC, include deposit services, loan
services, settlement services, insurance agent services,
financial consultation and foreign exchange services, to
be approved by relevant financial regulatory authorities,
including the China Banking Regulatory Commission.
The registered capital of the joint venture company
shall be RMB500,000,000 which will be contributed by
Weigao Holding which will contribute RMB350,000,000
in cash, representing 70% of the registered capital; and
the Company which will contribute RMB150,000,000
in cash, representing 30% of the registered capital. The
registered capital is determined based on the investment
amount required for operating the joint venture company.
Upon receipt of written approval from the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on the proposed establishment of
the Joint Venture Company, 100% of their respective capital
contribution shall be paid within two months. The Company
has not yet obtained approval from the China Banking
Regulatory Commission as of the date of this report. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 January
2016.
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EXEMPTED CONNECTED TRANSACTION
- DEEMED DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN
WEIGAO BLOOD

On 23 January 2017, Weigao Blood and three subscribers
entered into the subscription agreements with the aggregate
consideration of RMB536,833,000. Upon completion of the
subscription agreements, the equity interest of the Company
in Weigao Blood will be reduced from 70% to approximately
49.34%.

For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 23 January and 25
January 2017.

The above connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors have confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered
into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable than those available to or from independent
third parties; (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTOR, THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
AND SUPERVISOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information on director and supervisor during the Period are
stated as follows:—

1. Mr. Chen Xue Li has been resigned as the non-executive
director and Chairman of the Company with effect from
22 March 2016.

2. Mr. Zhang Hua Wei has been appointed as Chairman of
the Company with effect from 22 March 2016.

3. Mr. Wang Yi has been appointed as Vice Chairman of
the Company with effect from 22 March 2016.

4.  Mr. Lo Wai Hung, an independent non-executive
director of the Company was also appointed as an
independent non-executive director of LT Commercial
Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 112), a company listed
on the Stock Code Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
effective from 3 March 2017.

5.  Mr. Long Jing has been resigned as the supervisor of the
Company with effect from 29 June 2016.

6. Mr. Yue Chun Liang has been appointed as the
supervisor of the Company with effect from 29 June
2016.

7.  Mr. Li Jia Miao has been resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
30 December 2016.

8. Mr. Cui Jin has been resigned as the Chief Finance
Officer of the Company with effect from 17 February
2017.

9. Mr. Wu Xue Feng has been appointed as the Chief

Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 17
February 2017.
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DIVERSITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its diversity policy with respect
to the composition of the Board. In assessing candidates
running for directorships, the Nomination Committee will
consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, technical expertise and the ability to fulfill the
requirements of the Board. Details on the biographies and
experience of the Directors are set out on pages 64 to 71 of
this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT AND MARKET
CAPITALIZATION

Based on the publicly available information known to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as of
the date of this report, the public float of the Company is in
compliance with that stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. As at 31 December 2016, the market
capitalization of the Company was approximately HK$25.9
billion (including H Shares and Non-listed Shares).

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN
PREPARING THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibility for preparing
the accounts and have confirmed that the preparation of
the Group's financial statement is in compliance with the
relevant regulations and applicable accounting standards.

In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
Directors adopted appropriate and consistent accounting
policies and made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimations.

The financial statements for the Year have been prepared by
the Directors on a going concern basis. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. A statement by the external auditors of
the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the accounts of the Group is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s” in this annual report.
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AUDITORS & By Eh

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual fEEEBRREAFAE F 82K —HER
general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as &% UEHLZEEE « BER T L TAD

the auditors of the Company. TYERANRA B K A% SN -
On behalf of the Board REEFE

Zhang Hua Wei RER

Chairman FE

Weihai, Shandong, the PRC H B L R S

22 March 2017 —E—+F¥=R=-+=H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company recognize the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. This report outlines the principles and the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, which
have been adopted by the Group since its listing on 28
February 2004.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the
year of 2016.

The following summarizes the corporate governance
practices of the Company:

The Board of Directors

The Board take responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring the performance of
the senior management. The management is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group under the leadership of the
CEO. The Directors have the responsibility to act objectively
in the interests of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including four
executive Directors, one non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors as at 31

December 2016 are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yi

Mr. Gong Jian Bo

Mr. Xia Lie Bo

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Xue Li
(resigned on 22 March 2016)
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Wai Hung
Mr. Li Jia Miao (resigned on 30 December 2016)

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Board currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of the Appendix
16 of the Listing Rules, each of the independent non-
executive Directors has confirmed by annual confirmation
that he/she has complied with the independence criteria
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Director
consider that all three independent non-executive Directors
are independent under these independence criteria and
are capable to effectively exercise independent judgment.
Amongst the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Lo Wai Hung has the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings

Board meetings were held seven times during this year to
review and approve financial and operating performance,
interim and annual results. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well
as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Notice of board meeting will be sent to all Directors at
least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting. Reasonable
notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc board meetings.
Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant
materials to all the Directors relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable requests, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

Number of Board meetings held during the year 2016: 7.

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2016 was as follows:
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Attendance
in 2016
R-E—RF
B HH W
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei ok ZE B 5 A 100%
Mr. Wang Yi FREE 100%
Mr. Gong Jian Bo SRR EE 100%
Mr. Xia Lie Bo BT E 100%
Non-executive Directors FEMITES
Mr. Chen Xue Li BREZF) 55 £ 100%
(resigned on 22 March 2016) (RZBE—X"EZA-_+-_HE&IT)
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua BB E 2+ 100%
Independent non-executive Directors BWIFHRTESE
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EEHESTE 100%
Mr. Li Jia Miao FHRBEE 71.4%
(resigned on 30 December 2016) (RZE—RFE+ZA=THEE)
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong e 2+ 100%
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia THELT 100%

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are
recorded, and draft minutes and final version are submitted
to Directors for review within reasonable time after the
meetings, normally 14 days after the meetings.

Secretary of the Board assists the chairman to establish

meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of
items in the agenda.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered
having conflict of interests or material interests will not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions. The Directors
concerned can express views but will not be counted in the
quorum of meetings and shall abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution(s).

All Directors have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with, and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are kept
by the company secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hua Wei is
the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the
Group’s business. Mr. Wang Yi is the CEO of the Company
and an executive Director of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the Board
itself, who is responsible for the leadership of the effective
operation of the Board, and ensuring that all major and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board on a timely
basis and in a constructive manner. The CEO is appointed
by the Board. He is responsible for the management of daily
operations of the Company and the implementation of the
strategies and plans determined by the Board.

Experience

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors
possess administrative leadership, diversified knowledge
and extensive management experience in the industry. The
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
knowledge, experience and judgment in different areas.
The Board will seriously consider the objective views of the
independent non-executive Directors for making decisions,
and regard this as an effective guidance for the Group’s
business direction.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Directors’ responsibility

The Board manages the business of the Company on behalf
of its shareholders. The Directors consider that they are
obliged to fulfill their responsibilities in a prudent, diligent
and faithful manner, so as to create value for shareholders
and safeguard the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on
12 August 2005 in accordance with the requirement of
the Code. The remuneration committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wai
Hung, Mr. Li Jia Miao (resigned on 30 December 2016),
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, Mrs. Wang Jin Xia and a non-executive
director, Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy, the performance and the remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management, the existing
terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber
staff, which is vital to the success of the Company.

In reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
the remuneration committee considers their responsibilities,
skills, expertise and contribution to the Group’s performance
and whether remuneration packages are competitive and
sufficient to ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain the best available executive talent.

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment
and recommendation by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board for further review and approval, which is subsequently
subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
Directors remuneration packages is to enable the Company
to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against
corporate objectives. Under the policy, a Director is not
allowed to approve his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the Year, one meeting has been held by the
remuneration committee. All members of the remuneration
committee attended the meeting during which the
remuneration package of directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company for the year 2016
was approved after consideration. The chairman of the
remuneration committee reports the findings and provides
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 21
May 2012 in accordance with the requirement of the Code.
The nomination committee comprises Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Mr.
Li Jia Miao (resigned on 30 December 2016), Mrs. Fu Ming
Zhong, Mrs. Wang Jin Xia and Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua. The
chairman of the nomination committee is Mr. Lo Wai Hung.
The terms of reference of the nomination committee have
been defined. The principal duties include:—

- to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

—  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

— to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

— to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and shall have access to
independent professional advice if necessary. All members
of the Nomination Committee have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management
for obtaining necessary information.

Each of the Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of
three years, and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company has not experienced any casual vacancy
for members of the Board. In the event that there is such
circumstance, the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after his appointment.

The Board selects and nominates Director candidates based
on whether they possess the skills and experience needed for
the Group’s development.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
on 30 May 2013. The corporate governance committee
comprises Mr. Zhang Hua Wei as the chairman of the
committee, Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Mr. Li Jia Miao (resigned on
30 December 2016), Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong and Mrs. Wang
Jin Xia as members. The terms of reference of the corporate
governance committee have been defined. The principal
duties include:—-

(@) to develop and review the Company’'s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Corporate Governance Committee (continued)

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Corporate Governance Committee will be provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall have
access to independent professional advice if necessary. All
members of the Corporate Governance Committee will have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary
and separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management for obtaining necessary information.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

All Directors are provided with explanations and information
by the management of the Company so as to enable them to
have discussions and make assessment at Board meetings.

All Directors acknowledge the responsibility for the
preparation of its accounts, with the responsibility statement
in respect to the financial reports made by the Directors set
out in this annual report. The auditors have also made a
statement about their responsibilities in the auditor’s report.

The Board presents a comprehensive, balanced and

understandable assessment on the position and prospects of
the Group in all shareholder communications.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal control

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group.

The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
gualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training program and budget.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the audit committee of the
Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wai Hung (chairman of the audit
committee), Mr. Li Jia Miao (resigned on 30 December 2016),
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, Mrs. Wang Jin Xia and a non-executive
Director, Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua. The terms of reference of the
audit committee have been clearly defined. Its principal
responsibilities include:

—  To be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; to formulate the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors and to propose the Board to submit the
same at the general meeting for consideration. To
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors when the general meeting is
authorizing the Board to determine the remuneration
of the auditors, and to address any questions regarding
the resignation or retirement of that auditor.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

To review and oversee the independence and objectivity
of engaging external auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors regarding the nature and scope of the
audit and the relevant reporting obligations before
commencing the audit.

To develop and implement policy in engaging external
auditors to provide non-auditing services. For the
purpose of this requirement, external auditors includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with that audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm domestically or internationally.
The Committee shall report to the Board, in respect
of any matters in which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed and to make recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.

To monitor the completeness of the financial statements
of the Company and the annual report and accounts
and half-year report of the Company and to review the
significant opinion of the respective financial reporting
contained therein. In this regard, the committee will
review the relevant statements and reports of the
respective annual report and accounts and half-year
report of the Company before submitting the same to
the Board.

To oversee the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the Year, the audit committee has convened two
meetings, at which, they have primarily discussed and
reviewed the interim and annual results and have discussed
and considered the internal control procedures of the Group.
The attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Attendance
in 2016
R-B—R*#E
B HH R &
Independent non-executive Directors BIARTES
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EEHETE 100%
Mr. Li Jia Miao $%ﬁ%$
(resigned on 30 December 2016) (RZE-—XRF+ZA=THEMT) 100%
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong T BR R 22 & 100%
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia FHREL T 100%
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua B 2+ 100%

The scope of responsibilities of the audit committee is
available on the websites of Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

There was no disagreement between the audit committee
and the Board in respect of the selection, appointment,
resignation or removal of external auditors during the year of
2016.

The audit committee can consult independent professional
advice in accordance with stated procedures at the expense
of the Company.

In 2016, the audit fees paid to the external auditors by the
Company was approximately RMB3,848,000.

Mandate Granted to the Board

The Board should assume the responsibility for the leadership
and monitoring of the Company, and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company. The
responsibilities of the Board are defined explicitly in the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

(1)

(10)

(11)

(12)

to be responsible for convening shareholders’ meetings
and report on its work at shareholders’ meetings;

to implement the resolutions passed at shareholders’
meetings;

to determine the business plans and investment plans of
the Company;

to formulate the annual fiscal budgets and final
accounts of the Company;

to formulate profit distribution proposals and loss
recovery proposals of the Company;

to formulate proposals for increasing or reducing of the
registered capital of the Company and proposals for
issue of debentures of the Company;

to draft proposals for the merger, division and
dissolution of the Company;

to determine the establishment of the internal
management bodies of the Company;

to appoint or dismiss the general manager of the
Company, and to appoint or dismiss the deputy general
manager and other senior management, including
the person in charge of finance, pursuant to the
recommendations of the general manager, as well as to
determine their compensations;

to formulate the basic management system of the
Company;

to formulate proposals for amendments to the Articles
of Association of the Company; and

to exercise other functions as stipulated by the articles
of association or granted by the shareholders’ meetings.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

The Board has granted authority to the chief executive
officer to implement the following strategies and to be
responsible for the day-to-day operation:

(1) to be in charge of the management of production and
operation and to organize the implementation of the
resolutions of the Board;

(2) to organize the implementation of the annual business
plans and investment plans of the Company;

(3) to draft proposals for the establishment of internal
management bodies of the Company;

(4) to draft the basis management system of the Company;

(5) to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the
Company;

(6) to propose the appointment or removal of the deputy
general manager and other senior management,
including the person in charge of finance, of the
Company;

(7) to appoint or dismiss the management personnel other
than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the
Board; and

(8) to exercise other functions granted by the Articles of
Association and the Board.

The chief executive officer grants authorisation to chief
financial officer, and senior management within his terms of
reference.

The Board is supported by four committees, namely the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and corporate governance committee. Each of
the committees has its defined terms of reference covering
its duties, rights and functions. The chairman of the
respective committees report to the Board regularly and
make recommendations on matters discussed as appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to
its shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated
to the shareholders in the following manner:

o delivery of the interim and annual results and reports to
all shareholders;

e  publication of announcements on the interim and
annual results on the Stock Exchange website, and issue
of other announcements and shareholders’ circulars in
accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations
under the Listing Rules; and

e the general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Board has maintained an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and investors, and will regularly review
this policy to ensure its effectiveness. Information will
be communicated to Shareholders and investors mainly
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
announcements and reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as
well as by making available all the information submitted
by the Company to the website of the Stock Exchange
and its corporate communications on the Company’s
website. Shareholders can direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. Shareholders and investors may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent
such information is publicly available.

Communications with shareholders

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Director.

The shareholders’ meeting provides an effective forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
chairman, together with the chairmen or members of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
nomination committee are available to answer shareholders’
questions.
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BREARE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Communications with shareholders (continued)

The procedures demanding for a poll and the rights of
shareholders to demand for a poll are included in the notice
of shareholders’ meeting and the accompanying circular.
The relevant procedures are explained at the shareholders’
meetings.

The external auditor has been appointed as the scrutineer to
ensure the votes cast are properly counted and recorded.

The results of the poll have been posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company
on the business day following the meeting.

Furthermore, the Company continues to enhance the
ongoing communications amongst the shareholders,
investors and analysts, including:

e  establishing specialized bodies and employing staff to
serve investors and analysts and answer their relevant
questions;

e arranging site visits to the production bases of
the Company in order to keep them abreast of
the operations and the latest developments of the
Company;

e collecting and analyzing, in a timely manner, the
respective opinions and recommendations on the
operations of the Company given by securities
analysts and investors and compiling them into reports
periodically, and selectively adopting them in the
operations of the Company;

e providing relevant information, including introduction
to the Company, the Board and corporate governance,
results of the Company, financial summary, marketing
materials of the Company and press releases on the
website of the Company; and

e taking the initiative to communicate with various
parties, particularly following the announcement of
interim, annual results and substantial investment
decisions, organizing briefings, press conferences and
one-on-one interviews with investment institutions.
Besides, the Company also regularly communicates with
investors on an one-on-one basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness, and such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles in
relation to the Group’s financial, operational, compliance,
risk management and internal controls, and internal audit
functions. The Board has responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’ investment.

The Group has internal control systems to formalize the
risk management of the Group, to build up a standard and
effective risk management system to manage risk and to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure the assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and
accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirement and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately managed.

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures.
The risk management group and an independent external
consultant assist the Board and the Audit Committee in the
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an annual and ongoing
basis. The scope of review included revenue and receipt
cycle, procurement and expenditure cycle, cash management
and treasure cycle and financial reporting cycle for the
Group. The results and improvement proposal were reviewed
and were reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
Based on the review results, the Board did not aware of
any areas of concern that would have a material impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group and considered the risk management and internal
control systems to be effective including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The Board has received a confirmation from management
on the effectiveness of the issuer’'s risk management on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems.
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BREARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL REERRAERE (&)
CONTROL (continued)

The Group strictly requlates the handling and dissemination — FHAN{E BB RATEH  NEBBRISEE
of inside information as set out in information disclosure — AEHBHEEIE N M - UBRBLEANE
policy to ensure potential inside information remains SHEEEEEIERBERIERZRE W
confidential until such information is appropriately approved ~ AR RN —Bm N EMHEBEEES -
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and

consistently made.

RISK MANAGEMENT CYCLE R EE AR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board
remains informed and relevant. The directors are committed
to complying with the Corporate Governance Code A6.5
on directors’ training. All directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or studying materials to director’s duties and
responsibility and provided a record of training they received
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 to the
Company.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
and senior executives to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses or and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance or act and corporate governance
practices organised by professional bodies and independent
auditors so that they can continuously update and further
improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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DIRECTOR’S TRAINING (continued)

Directors’ continuous training and development
(continued)

From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills; the
company secretary also organises and arranges seminars
on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the Directors to assist them in discharging
their duties.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the new requirement of the CG
Code on continuous professional development during the
Year:
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Corporate Governance/Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

ERER /AREN RURAAZEHR

Read materials

Attend workshops

REVE HEHAHE
Executive Directors WTES
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei RERSLE v v
Mr. Wang Yi FRESE 4 v
Mr. Gong Jian Bo SEKEE 4 v
Mr. Xia Lie Bo B EE v 4
Non-executive Directors FERITES
Mr. Chen Xue Li PREF L& 4 4
(resigned on 22 March 2016) (RZZE—RE=A
—+Z-HEE)
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua AR EE 2+ v 4
Independent non-executive BIUFBTES
Directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung ERERE 4 4
Mr. Li Jia Miao FREIEE 4 4
(resigned on 30 December 2016) (RZZE—REF+=A
=+ HET)
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong TEAMm L+ v v
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia FHREXT 4 v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors arising out of corporate activities
of the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the
new Corporate Governance Code. Such directors’ liability
insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, no claim has
been made against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mrs. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effective from 26 May 2006.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. During the year ended 31 December
2016, Mrs. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional trainings to update her skills
and knowledge.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, amendments to the Articles of Association
of the Company were approved by the shareholders of the
Company and amendments regarding the change in issued
share capital were effective from 13 June 2016. An updated
version of the Articles of Association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXEEkeREEAER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei, aged 53, is the chairman and an
executive director of the Company and vice chairman of
Weigao Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”). Mr.
Zhang studied politics and economics at the Weihai Campus
of Shandong University from 1996 to 1998. Mr. Zhang was
the deputy factory director of Weigao Holding from 1988 to
1998, and has been the general manager of Weigao Holding
since 1998. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December
2000.

Mr. Wang Yi, aged 57, is the vice chairman, the chief
executive officer and an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Wang studied Business Administration at the Shandong
Cadres Distance Learning University from 1994 to 1997. He
joined Weigao Holding in 1988 and was production director
from 1988 to 1989, head of the No. 2 branch of Weigao
Holding from 1989 to 1992 and manager of the No. 3
branch of Weigao Holding from 1992 to 2004. Mr. Wang
joined the Company in December 2000.

Mr. Gong Jian Bo, aged 49, is an executive Director
of the Company and the general manager of Shandong
Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited (“Weigao
Orthopaedic”). Mr. Gong graduated from & /| 1 i # 5 5= £
A (Changzhou Wulin Qian Huang College*) in 1987. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Gong joined &M T E#E S =
EE MM (Changzhou Wujin The Third Medical Device
Factory*) (“Changzhou Wujin”) in 1988. He served as an
assistant to the factory director and worked in technical and
sales departments and was subsequently promoted to factory
director in 1993. Changzhou Wuijin is principally engaged
in the research and development, sales and production
of medical devices in China. Mr. Gong joined Weigao
Orthopaedic in February 2005. Mr. Gong has over 20 years
of valuable experience in medical device industry in China.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Xia Lie Bo, aged 39, is an executive Director of the
Company and the general manager and the chairman of
Weihai Weigao Blood Purification Products Company Limited
("Weigao Blood Purification”). Mr. Xia graduated from 2
BEZEHERER (Ningbo Advanced Technical College*)
in 1998. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xia served as
a management trainee in the quality control division in 2
Wan B EREM AR A A (Ningbo Yatai Medical Device
Company Limited*) (“Ningbo Yatai”) since August 1998.
Ningbo Yatai is a sino-foreign joint venture company
which is principally engaged in research and development,
manufacture and sale of plasma segregator and blood lavage
set. Mr. Xia subsequently joined W/ T EIREFEEESZME
fR ‘AR (Zhejiang Yu Huan Wei Kang Medical Equipment
Company Limited*) (“Yu Huan”) in November 2000 and
was responsible for strategic planning and management
in Yu Huan which is principally engaged in research and
development of protein A-based immune absorption column
in China. In April 2002, Mr. Xia joined #T LRI £ R A
fR A R] (Zhejiang Ke Rui Biotech Company Limited*) which
is principally engaged in research and development of blood
purification related products and he was responsible for
overall business management. In May 2003, Mr. Xia joined as
a project manager in /8 MFEZEEZM AR AT (Shanghai
Hoxen Company Limited*) which is engaged in distribution
of renal failure treatment equipment and blood purification
therapy instrument in China. Mr. Xia joined Weigao Blood
Purification in October 2004. Mr. Xia has over 10 years of
valuable experience in operation and management in blood
purification industry in China.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEENEMERAE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua, aged 60, is a non-executive Director
of the Company and financial deputy general manager of
Weigao Holding. Mrs. Zhou studied Business Administration
at the Weihai Campus of Shandong University from 1999 to
2001. Mrs. Zhou joined Weigao Holding in 1989 and held a
number of positions such as head of the finance division in
the finance department, manager of the finance department
and deputy general manager of Weigao Holding.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung, aged 57, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
was appointed as an independent non-executive director, the
chairman of audit committee, the chairman of remuneration
committee, the chairman of nomination committee and
a member of corporate governance committee of the
Company. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive
director of Talent Property Group Limited, C Cheng Holdings
Limited and LT Commercial Real Estate Limited which are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, aged 66, senior economist and
associate chief pharmacist and has over 40 years of working
experience, particular in the area of management experience
in the pharmaceutical and healthcare products industry.
Mrs. Fu obtained a master’s degree in engineering from
the Harbin Institute of Technology in March 1992. Mrs.
Fu was previously a deputy workshop director, the office
head and the vice factory manager of The Third Harbin
Pharmaceutical Factory from June 1972 to March 1999. Mrs.
Fu was a director of Harbin City Pharmaceutical Group and
the general manager of Harbin Pharmaceutical Company
Limited from March 1992 to December 1997. She was also
a deputy general manager of China Medicines Group from
December 1997 to January 1999 and she was a director of
China Medicines Group Corporation from January 1999 to
July 2009 respectively. Mrs. Fu was the executive deputy
general manager of China National Pharmaceutical industry
Corporation from January 1999 to January 2001. Ms. Fu
was the chairman of National Medicines Company Limited
(@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from
February 2001 to April 2008. Mrs. Fu has been a director of
Shenzhen Accord Pharmaceutical Company Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) since April 2008
and was the chairman from April 2008 to December 2008.
Ms. Fu has also been a director of Sinopharm Industrial
Investment Co., Ltd. from July 2008 to December 2010. Mrs.
Fu was the general manager, duty chairman and director of
Sinopharm Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange) during the period from February 2006
to December 2009, and December 2009 to January 2011
respectively.

Mrs. Fu is currently the chairman of China Association of
Pharmaceutical Commerce and she joined the Company in
October 2011.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEENEMERAE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. Wang Jin Xia, aged 62, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mrs. Wang is a senior
economist and has over 30 years of working experience,
especially the management experience in the pharmaceutical
commerce and pharmaceutical industry. Mrs. Wang obtained
a bachelor degree in economics (£ %EZ &1 ) from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in July 1983 and was
assigned to work in State Pharmaceutical Administration of
China Pharmaceutical Company (B B8 518 B B &N
A]) . Mrs. Wang was deputy director of the finance division,
director of the information division of China Pharmaceutical
Company (F Bl 2 %2 7)), the general secretary and
the vice president of China Association of Pharmaceutical
Commerce (P EIE 227 %1% & ) and the person in charge
of the pharmaceutical chains branch of China Association of
Pharmaceutical Commerce (F BB S X g EEHEE D
&) . She is also a senior advisor of China Nonprescription
Medicines Association (R EI3EE 77 #iHE ) .

Currently, Mrs. Wang also acts as the independent director
of Jointown Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. ( Su/l@EE B4
B AR AE]) (stock code: 600998), HPGC Renmintongtai
Pharmaceutical Corporation (BB ZE£E A R[F =8 &K
MAR AT (stock code: 600829), Xinjiang Ready Health
Industry Co., Ltd. (FTEREZREEZRHBR QA
(stock code: 600090) and Shanxi Jinbo Bio-Pharmaceutical
Incorporated Company (L FESF R EMEEFRHERAF)
(stock code: 832932).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Supervisors

The Company has a committee of Supervisors whose
primary duty is to supervise the senior management of the
Company, including the Board, Directors, managers and
other senior officers. The function of the committee of
Supervisors is to ensure that the senior management of the
Company acts in the interests of the Company, and does
not violate the rights of the Company’s shareholders and
employees. The committee of Supervisors reports to the
shareholders in general meetings. The articles of association
provides that the committee of Supervisors has the right
to investigate the Group’s financial affairs; to supervise
the directors, general manager and other senior officers of
the Company in the event that they contravene any laws,
administrative regulations or the articles of association in
the performance of their duties; to require the Directors,
general managers and other senior management to rectify
any activities committed by them that is harmful to the
interests of the Company; to examine financial reports,
result reports, profit distribution plans and other financial
documents prepared by the Board to be submitted to
shareholders in general meeting, and in appropriate cases, to
appoint certified accountants or certified practicing auditors
in the name of the Company to assist in such review; to
propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings of
shareholders; to represent the Company during negotiations
with the Directors or to initiate legal proceedings against
the Directors; and other functions and powers given
by the shareholders in general meeting. The committee
of Supervisors currently comprises the following three
members:

Mrs. Bi Dong Mei, aged 53, is the supervisor of the
Company and the audit consultant of Weigao Holding. Mrs.
Bi graduated from the Economic Management Department
of Shandong Cadres Distance Learning University in 1997.
She joined Weigao Holding in December 1988 and has been
the head of the finance division and the deputy manager
of the infusion sets branch, the audit manager and auditor
general of Weigao Holding.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEENEMERAE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Supervisors (continued)

Ms. Chen Xiao Yun, aged 43, is the supervisor of the
Company and the chief financial officer of Weigao Holding.
Ms. Chen studied financial accounting at the Shandong
Broadcast and Television University from 1994 to 1998. She
joined Weigao Holding in July 1991 and was the head of
the finance division in finance department and the assistant
to the manager of infusion sets branch, and the financial
manager of Weigao Holding.

Mr. Yue Chun Liang, aged 36, is the employee
representative supervisor of the Company. Mr Yue obtained
a degree in Polymer Materials and Engineering from the
University of Yantai in 2005. Mr. Yue joined the Company
in 2005 and served in the research and development
department and was subsequently transferred to production
department of the infusion sets branch company. Mr. Yue is
currently the assistant manager of the infusion set branch
company.

Senior Management

Mr. Wu Xue Feng, aged 38, the chief financial officer
of the Company, has over 15 years of extensive experience
in the accounting and finance sectors. Mr. Wu joined the
finance department of the Company in July 2001. He
has been the manager of the finance department of the
production unit of the Company since January 2005 and
responsible for production cost auditing and control. He has
been the manager of the finance department of the sales
unit of the Company since June 2009 and responsible for
auditing and management of sales business. He worked as
the manager of the risk management department of Weigao
Holding Company Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, since July 2012. He has been appointed as the
financial controller of the distribution business department
of Weigao Holding Company Limited since October 2013.
Mr. Wu graduated and obtained a bachelor degree in finance
management from the University of QiQiHar in Heilongjiang
Province and obtained a master degree in business
management from the Missouri State University, the United
States in 2016.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Long Jing, aged 42, is the vice-general manager of
the Company, responsible for the marketing management
of the Company. Mr. Long has over 10 years of valuable
experiences in sales and marketing in the medical device
industry in China. Mr. Long joined the Company in July 2005
and served as the assistant manager and sales manager
of sales department of the Company. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Long served as the sales chief of L& & %%
T %42 7] (Shandong Plastic Materials Industry Company*)
from 1996 to 2002 and was principally responsible for the
sales and marketing of raw materials. Mr. Long is a certified
public accountant in the PRC. In 1996, Mr. Long obtained
a bachelor degree in marketing from Shandong Economic
University and a master degree in business administration
from Shandong University in 2005.

Mr. Ju Hong Feng, age 42, is the vice-general manager
of the production and supply chain of the Company. Mr.
Ju graduated from Shandong University and obtained a
MBA degree from Northwestern University in 2014. Mr. Ju
joined the Company in June 2002 and acted as the manager
of financial and accounts department of the Company.
He acted as the chief financial officer of the Company
since January 2009, the chief operating officer of Weigao
Holding Company Limited and the general manager of the
pharmaceutical distribution business division since February
2014 and the vice-general manager of the production and
supply chain of the Company since January 2016. Mr. Ju
has over 10 years of valuable experiences in finance and
operating in the medical device industry in China.

Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis, aged 48, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company in
May 2006. She is an fellowship member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Wong
has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance and
management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

RE Hglkeams

The Company emphasizes long-term sustainable
development. As a responsible medical device manufacturer,
the Company always keeps the heart of responsibility which
concerns the harmony and development of the society
and sense of social responsibility. During the process of
manufacturing medical devices, the Company aims to
minimize the use of resource and reduce pollution to the
environment. The Company has also strengthened the
quality management system in production settings and
operation practices; enhanced compliance system and
engaged in community activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company incorporates environmental considerations in
the manufacturing process to minimize the environmental
impact through using less non-renewable energy, increasing
the recycle of water, reducing the production of unnecessary
carbon emission and wastes. The Company has disclosed
the carbon emissions annually since 2015 in order to show
the long-term commitment in environmental protection. The
Company aims to achieve environmental sustainability in
the use of energy, water resources, waste management and
other resources.

1) Use of energy

The Company strictly follows the national policies
regarding energy saving and environmental protection.
There are in-house teams of the Company and external
consultants to carry out studies to various energy saving
programs. To save the use of energy, LED lighting
is used to reduce the electricity consumption. Most
of the electricity is consumed by the factories, with
131,814,166 kWh, accounting for 96.8% of the total.
The electricity consumptions in offices and dormitories
are relatively low, with 2,097,252 kWh and 2,238,122
kWh respectively, accounting for 1.5% and 1.6% of the
total.

In 2016, the electricity consumption situation
was as follow:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
RE HgkEams

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) BIEGRE ()

Transportation: Introduction of electric cars, XBIR: 5IAEBSE FEFBFE
energy consumption & cost REZX

Apart from LED lighting, the Company introduces BRLEDSESN R ARISIAEE)REHR
electricity cars as an alternative to conventional REGEH ZE-_FT—RFE AR
vehicles. By end of 2016, the Company had around RIEHEAHB0OMEE) FHARIER
30 electric cars for transportation of goods. For other B - IR EMBEAZET A (1A
types of transportation such as automobiles and BRAHFE) H R AEREERE
buses, the total consumption of gasoline and diesel R T —RE 5 HI3E530,107.5F &
were 530,107.5 liters and 223,530.4 liters respectively 223,530.4F - HE E - R KR
in 2016. The total carbon emission generated from BREFFEEN —_S/cmEEnEEs
electricity consumption, consumption of gasoline and H £ 107,949MF -

diesel was a total of 107,949 tons.

Electricity & &

Carbon Emission
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* Note: The above emission figure only reflected electricity and fuel M UNLEHRERARBREMEBH
consumed by the operation in Weihai City under scope 1 B AP E R SR - W
and scope 2 as developed by the World Resources Institute RERMEMME AT HELR
and World Business Council for Sustainable Development. TITHEEEMmbITEmMeEE REE
Carbon emission calculation did not include city steam as 2 e MR BEME T E W B IEW T
the volume consumed was relatively small and the supplier g (EFTEFERERAER))
has not provided a conversion factor for calculation. MHEBTEATERERER
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2)
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Water Consumption

Water is a key input during the manufacturing
process. The most common way to reduce waste is
through recycling, but it is more complex in practice.
Avoiding the generation of waste in the first place
and minimizing waste are also crucial measures in any
waste reduction strategy. Through reduction of water
usage and recycling of wastewater, the Company
reduces the generation of wastewater. With a pre-set
mechanism to process the water before entering the
manufacturing cycle, the wastewater generated from
the manufacturing processes is significantly reduced.

For a limited amount of wastewater which could not
be recycled, the Company will transport it to the
sewage treatment plant in order to separate it from
the domestic wastewater. After properly treating
the wastewater, it will then be discharged in the
public sewage system. The recycle rate of domestic
wastewater achieved 32 tons/24 hours/100% in 2016,
while the recycle rate of industrial wastewater was 38
tons/hour/100%. The Company recycled 5,000 tons
cooling water for the past year.

In addition, hot water is transferred through the steam
pipes for disinfection uses in production plant. The
annual saving achieved over RMB200,000 in total for
year 2016.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2)

3)

Water Consumption (continued)

Furthermore, a large volume of fresh water is required
during the needle grinding processes, thus producing
whet wastewater afterwards. To effectively reduce the
water consumption, the Company employs a set of
water recycle system consisting of five sediment tanks, a
water storage tank and a water refilling tank.

Through saving and recycling, the water reduction in
2016 was significant. The total water consumption was
reduced from 1,720,212 tons in 2015 to 1,433,780
tons in 2016, which represented a reduction of
16.65% year on year. Water reduction was achieved in
our factories, offices and dormitories.

Waste Management

Preventing environmental risks and protecting human
health are always the Company's responsibility.
Therefore, it is of utmost importance to conduct proper
waste management. The waste generated in production
processes can be mainly classified into two types which
are liquid waste (industrial waste water) and solid waste
(HW13). The production of liquid waste and solid waste
were 117,531 tons and 34.26 tons respectively in 2016.
For hazardous waste, the Company commissioned
state-recognized third party for handling disposal. As
a part of safety management, safety instructions for
storage, handling and use of hazardous materials have
been documented and posted in the production plant.
Non-hazardous and domestic waste are separated,
then are collected and disposed of by the responsible
and qualified government agency every day to prevent
excessive storage and reduce environmental pollution.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

3)

Waste Management (continued)

Handling liquid waste

The Company has invested more than RMB50 million
in constructing two sets of advanced waste water
treatment device in 2016. The device employs solvent
recover distillation process achieving high recycling rate
of industrial waste water.

Industrial wastewater contains high concentration of
pollutants. After filtering treatment, it will enter the
recycling equipment for recycle process. The Company
targets that 90% of the wastewater would be recycled
and reused. The wastewater produced has been
treated and processed according to internal standard
procedure. The Company has committed to comply with
the comprehensive discharge water standards in the
peninsula of Shandong Province (DB37/676-2007).

The handling and transfer of waste lubricating oil HW08
(900-249-08) and waste cutting oil HW09 (900-006-
09) are subject to the Laws of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Solid Waste. In order to comply with the
requirements as stated in the Law, the Company works
with a qualified supplier which is approved by authority
to handle waste.

Handling solid waste

For solid waste generated, the Company complies
with the strict environmental requirements for storage.
Transports of solid waste are regularly reported to the
appropriate agencies. For the solid waste (HW13), an
environmental protection agency will be commissioned
to the designated qualified environmental companies
for unified treatment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

4)

Other resources

The medical products and machines are required to be
packaged well upon delivery. In 2016, the Company
used 187 tons packaging bags, 464 tons packaging
gaskets, 432 tons of boxes and 98 tons of cotton
pads. In the future, the Company hopes to reduce
the use of resources by recycling the used packaging
materials. The Company aims to use recycled materials
or renewable materials for the packaging materials.
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WORKPLACE QUALITY

1)

2)

Employment

In 2016, there were 10,575 employees in the
active workforce with the male to female ratio of
approximately 4.8:5.2. The Company offers free
dormitories to the staff in need with enhanced
environment and facilities that fit the special needs of
the disabilities.

The Company aims at providing equal employment
opportunity irrespective of employees’ color, nationality,
race, age, sex, religious beliefs or disabilities. The
Company hopes that their staffs can work in an
atmosphere which is full of respect and without any
sense of discrimination.

In order to prevent child labour and forced labour
according to the Labour Law, the Company strictly
indicates the job qualifications and verifies the identity
and personal information of all new staff on-board.
The management arranges appropriate workload based
on the capability of the staff. Labour union is set up to
represent the interests of our staff and workers in the
workplace.

Third Party occupational harmful factors
inspection

In addition to the in-house inspections of the
occupation harmful factors in the existing production
settings, the Company has signed an agreement with
the Celestica Quality Inspection Centre (ICC) to conduct
an occupational harmful factors inspection on our
behalf. Established in 2003, ICC is an independent
third party testing and inspection organization. ICC is
accredited by the China Metrology Accreditation (CMA),
product and food inspection bodies, and Occupational
Health Service Provider Certification (Grade B). The
Company has arranged occupational health body check
once a year for our staff whose workplace is exposed to
the occupational hazard factors.
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WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)

3)

4)

Safety production target responsibility
handbook

As a responsible medical device producer, the Company
communicates with all related departments regarding
the responsibility to maintain safety and high standard
in the manufacturing process.

The Company has signed the “Safety production target
responsibility handbook” which regulates the main
procedures and targets for production safety works
in 2016. With continuous training and promotion, all
relevant departments should follow and implement the
measures and activities according to the handbook.
The Energy Department reviews the implementation of
various departments and determines appropriate follow
up actions regularly.

To prevent the occurrence of workplace hazards and
maintain the safety of our staff, the Company conducts
the production safety inspection activities every month.
After each investigation, corrective and preventative
recommendations should be made and the relevant
departments will be asked to implement within
predetermined timeframe. The Company will continue
to invest in the replacement of protection supplies and
maintenance of safety protection facilities.

Health and Safety

The health and safety of the employees are important
for the Company. The Company offers a series of
policies and guidelines that ensure a quality and safe
workplace environment for the employees. For every 3
working hours, the frontline staff are entitled to have
20 minutes resting time and they take turns to have
resting.
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WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)

4)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
WRE = EE =

Health and Safety (continued)

Proper safety measures have been implemented to
protect the safety of the frontline staff. It is compulsory
for frontline staff to wear safety glasses, masks
and earplugs during working in order to prevent
the damage from dust and noise. For preventing
the damage from hazardous gas and corrosion, it is
compulsory for frontline staff to wear safety glasses,
masks, protective masks, protective clothing, plastic
protective boots and protective gloves. Staff are entitled
to have regular body check and regular environmental
monitoring is required to be conducted in the factories.

The Company closely monitors and follows up on
workplace injuries and illnesses. We monitor number of
injuries, number of staff needed to be absent for work
due to workplace injuries and illnesses. To reduce the
incident rate, the Company has implemented a safety
management system and has a documented safety
manual which covers various areas including roles and
responsibilities of various departments, organization,
training, inspection systems, management of special
equipment, work permit system, management of fire
safety equipment, management of hazardous materials
and emergency plans. The Company has bought
sufficient insurance coverage for all staffs according to
the national law.

EAEY TERBROAERRARF 2016 iR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
RE dghEaRE

WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) THBREE (&)

5) Development and Training (continued) 5) BRRIEN (&)
The Company acknowledges the importance of training KRR THRIBIEHRSEELEESR
that allows employees to improve the productivity. WEZEWH - RRAIBAARMEBELE
Monthly classroom training, internal training and TREFI - AFFI REHE A
seminars are held for all staff. Relevant safety trainings HABERAZ2BIINRESEING
are organized to enhance employees’ safety awareness. 2EH - TRAANNEEEZEZ TR
The training for various level of staff is different. For WiE - R EREEAE  HFIE
senior management, the training covers the area of EERNMNEEREEATS -HRTRE
law and management skills. For middle management, BEEAB BIDREIRERELE
the training covers the area of engineering technique EEHEALEEKEE - HLEPESE
and quality as well as team management. Compared to BAB REMABENRHEEABR
middle management, the additional training provided HEFEIMNE I B I EEES - H RN
to general and sales staff includes the area of law. For HFEAE BIETZEAERLZER
production staff, the training mainly focuses on the area EEEREH T - FEXE
of safety and quality management. The proportion of S EY1E Bt 1 B2 & (R 25 75 20 P 35 3
trained employee and the number of training hours for B8R

different business segments in 2016 are as follow:

BLOOD PURIFICATION [ % ;®1t
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WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) ITEGHREE (&)

5) Development and Training (continued) 5) BRRIEN (&)

ORTHOPAEDIC & #
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Company is devoted in enhancing the product
quality through evaluation and improvement in terms of
management, production, technology and testing. In 2016,
the Company has launched three new patents that are all
Orthopaedic related. One is the invention patent and the
other two are utility model patent.

1)

2)

Supply Chain Management

The Company works closely with the suppliers to
enhance the quality of products and improve the
sustainable performance. In 2016, the Company has
25 suppliers for chemical resources, 15 suppliers for
accessories and 10 suppliers for packaging.

The Company reviews and manages the supply chain
based on following criteria: fulfillment of international
medical device standards ISO 9001, ISO 13485 and
ISO 14001; fulfillment of national law; the suppliers’
influence, trust and reputation within the industry;
supply stability and timing; production environment;
supply capacity; quality of raw material, etc.

The quality management system has to fulfill the
requirements of the international medical device
standards. The quality management system is also
certified to be effective by independent third-party
authorities which conduct regular and on-the-spot
inspections. We will ask suppliers to provide their
environmental, social and governance reports to us if
necessary.

Product Responsibility

As a reputed medical device manufacturer in the
world, the Company has committed to ensure good
quality and safe products. The Company strictly follows
the national guidelines and requirements including,
but not limited to “Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Medical Devices”, “Good
Manufacturing Practice for Medical Devices”, “Medical
devices--Quality management systems--Requirements
for regulatory purposes”.
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RBE HglEams

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Company actively engages with the stakeholders
including doctors, nurses, patients, employees, workers and
customers during different channels and platforms. The
Company serves the community through provision of public
welfare services to promote better health and education.

The Company regularly invites doctors, patients, executive
staff of other industries, suppliers and mass media reporters
to visit our factories. Through the visit, the Company
clearly explains its production process and technique,
machinery and raw material. Through showcasing the quality
management, the Company hopes to gain trust from the
general public. In the past year, there were approximately
2,000 people visiting the Company's factories.

Meanwhile, the Company also puts environmental
management, production and safety management and
precautions of staff occupational diseases into their
management framework of safe production standardization.

In addition, the Company has established the “Friends
of Kidney” in China that aims to help patients suffering
from kidney diseases. The Company initiates and organizes
activities and meetings regularly and invites medical experts
and patients to share their expertise and experiences on
kidney diseases. The Company has invested RMB185,000 in
the “Friends of Kidney” in 2016.

LWEEEEEERARY TERRMHER AR 2016 Fif
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EBEIEBE8H
AOES—E3512

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER
COMPANY LIMITED

LEEeSREEASS FRHABRGARLT

(A joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 93 to 207, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

% - RO BEEIT

B ZBENHRE S

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong
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B IZBENREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

HEEZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FIEBFZEEAS SN EEHE S =&
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the IZAHGEMBHERPREENEE-
consolidated financial statements of the current period.  AR{TRFBXERLGE M BHRE LI
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit XERFEELSEEE  MASHLESE
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and BEBERER-

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MRFEZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBERERZF &

Share-based payment expenses in connection with the share arrangement with the
management of Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited (“Weigao

Ortho”)

BURESERHEMHAARAF(AERH) TEBZIRNREAMZLIRG S BT RAX

We identified the share-based payment
expenses in connection with the share
arrangement with the management of Weigao
Ortho (“Share Arrangement”), a subsidiary of
the Company, as a key audit matter due to
its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and significant management
judgment involved in the valuation of the
Share Arrangement, especially the key inputs
including, but not limited to, discount rate and
the underlying forecast cash flows.
ENHBGEEMBREIZ2EZMERKRND LB
EESRZERNEREEHE LEHEREEHA
B (BEETROITIRE BB ENE R
) EEERAREQARZMBARKSER
ERE RO ZE (TIRMDEHE]) B2 AR
MARERNRAXIERBREZEER-

Our procedures in relation to share-based payment
expenses in connection with the Share Arrangement of
Weigao Ortho included:

B REE ST LEEE M2 ARG RERNRFE X
2R

e Reading the valuation report in respect of the
fair value of the shares issued by Weigao Ortho
prepared by the external valuer,

o FIEIBEEMMESIRETZRG X FERR
ZIEERE

e Evaluating the professional competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the external valuer,

o FHAINEMAEMIEXER BEEIRFEIML:

e Discussing with the management about the
valuation technique used, assumptions and key
data adopted;

o WMEBEMNWMANMGEDE BREMKANRBRR
NEBEHIE:

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MEEER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE S

MEFEZSER (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBEERERZHE

As disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, share based payment
expenses in relation to the Share Arrangement
of RMB294,889,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year. The
amount represents the difference between
the fair value of the shares issued by Weigao
Ortho and the consideration received from the
management of Weigao Ortho.

WM A MR EI3MBE - EHRG
THBERZUBROD RERNRAXARE
294,889,000t IR FAGFAEBE L AMEE
Wk HER - ZeBRABSERETZIRG
ATFEERNESENEEBRNCREME
B o

Valuation report prepared by external valuer
was obtained to support management’s
estimates in relation to the fair value of the
shares issued by Weigao Ortho under the
Share Arrangement.

E TR JE R IE X | S0 ES (B R AR R B (R B R
HF REHESBERMBERMZHEITHRG
N EMERN AR R-

e  Utilising our internal valuation specialists to
assess the valuation methodology and the key
assumptions of the discount rate :

e HMAARTAREERRIEHEETELFTEXRZE
THR

e  Challenging the reasonableness of the underlying
forecast cash flows by comparing the inputs to
entity-specific information.

e LEEBRBETHRABZH REMABEAIRSRE
&I
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MEEXER

MEFEZSER (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERBERERZAE

Estimated impairment on trade receivables

FE e 2 5 AR = B £ &1 ik (B

We identified the estimated impairment on
trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
significant management judgment involved.
MR PR 2EXREREBHE EFCHEABRK
BHBRRNGFHREEAAREZEIE

As disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount
of the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
December 2016 is RMB2,390,402,000 and
the impairment loss of trade receivables
recognised for the year ended is
RMB48,352,000.

WA & B S R P sE 25 P R R ﬂmlﬁ_
T-RET_A=T—HBEKRBESERERER
B/ AR ¥%2,390,402,0007T - EAEJz:ZéZ EI flsEE
EHIANERESEINREBER/RARE
48,352,0007T °

OTHER INFORMATION

Our procedures in relation to estimated impairment on
trade receivables included:

BRRKE ZRFOAEFIRENRE TR

e Testing on the age classification in the aged
analysis for trade receivables used to determine
estimated impairment on a sample basis;

o HEUWE ZRIERE D 2 BRI A BIETTHEA
ﬁ*%%iﬁ%ﬂﬁ,

e  Checking the subsequent settlements of trade
receivables;

s EREWEZRFWEREEN:

e  Challenging the reasonableness of the amounts
significantly past due but not impaired through
discussion with the management on our
knowledge of the business and industry.

e HERENWBETUEBRITENEE BESH
MmAMEERENERKIENEIEIE-

H fth 38 #

The directors of the Company are responsible for the BEANREEZHHMEREBE - HMWERS
other information. The other information comprises the HEFANMAENER  ETBEGEEMKE
information included in the annual report, but does not MELRETEMMELR 2 B HRE -
include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does EEHREUBRRELOER I RN
not cover the other information and we do not express any EZHMER - BETHEMER R T

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

E/KEG*ZHMIDEHH °
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OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

B ZBENRES
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

LWEEEEEERARY TERRMHER AR 2016 Fif
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Yu Kin Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

22 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o S H 2 E AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_T—

NE+T-_A=1+—HBILEE

2016 2015
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
—F—R"E —T0F
Bt 5 ARBFRE ARETET
Revenue N 5 6,730,340 5,918,930
Cost of sales 856 AR (2,593,772) (2,403,372)
Gross profit E7 4,136,568 3,515,558
Other income, gains and losses HA WA~ e & 18 6 107,390 96,238
Selling and distribution costs SHE R IHA AR (1,839,173)  (1,544,998)
Administrative expenses THHAX (731,462) (393,316)
Research and development expenses 2 2 (302,679) (292,658)
Finance costs B & AR 7 (56,762) (44,497)
Share of profit (loss) of joint ventures &1 & & 2 &
it A (&8 ) 464 (3,958)
Share of profit of an associate &G — AT Es & 2 | s A - 601
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMHBAR 2 W - 2,535
Profit before taxation B 75 /i i A 1,314,346 1,335,505
Income tax expense FriS M F < 8 (176,754) (186,647)
Profit for the year F X&) 9 1,137,592 1,148,858
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEEA
Items that may be reclassified RGBS HEE R
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBESE
translation of foreign operations ZENERE
— subsidiaries VNS 8,749 7,557
Total comprehensive income FAZEWA LT
for the year 1,146,341 1,156,415
Profit for the year attributable to: FRHEF TS IEEL
Owners of the Company RRAIER A 1,105,933 1,112,736
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 31,659 36,122
1,137,592 1,148,858
Total comprehensive income FEBABRE T EIE
attributable to: JEAE
Owners of the Company ARAIHEB A 1,114,682 1,120,293
Non-controlling interests FE5 AR 2 31,659 36,122
1,146,341 1,156,415
Earnings per share FRAN
Basic (RMB yuan per share) EXR(BERAR®T) 12 0.25 0.25
Diluted (RMB yuan per share) e (BRARKET) 0.25 0.25

93



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE AR R
At 31 December 2016 R -Z— R E+-A=+—8H
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
— ¥ — R4
+=A +—A
=+—H =+—H
B & AR®BTFRE ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE REE 13 5,371,152 4,965,944
Investment properties wEYE 14 51,415 53,186
Deposits paid for acquiring MW EME BE &
property, plant and equipment REzENZES 41,195 45,373
Prepaid lease payments %ﬁﬁg?ﬂ 15 466,117 476,866
Intangible assets BEEE 16 7,360 10,475
Sponsorship rights B BhiE N 17 37,958 -
Interests in joint ventures RE & RNa R 18 112,705 108,241
Available-for-sale investments AftHERE 19 95,411 25,659
Goodwill S 20 202,900 202,900
Deferred tax assets BT IR E = 21 59,485 44,270
Finance lease receivables FE W R & HH & 8 22 381,741 60,053
Loan receivables e & 23 246,600 -
7,074,039 5,992,967
Current assets MENE E
Inventories FE 24 915,586 850,593
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 BR K &
EL Al & WK 25 3,498,819 2,898,470
Finance lease receivables fﬁﬂﬁrﬂé{fﬁfm 22 158,993 18,890
Pledged bank deposits B IRITFRK 26 36,980 46,173
Bank balances and cash RITHEKREIRE 27 4,071,892 3,712,153
8,682,270 7,526,279
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables ENE SRR K
H A & FRIE 28 2,167,224 1,571,379
Borrowings EEN 29 296,400 369,900
Tax payable JE A 18 106,904 52,920
Deferred income EEWA 30 8,982 7,436
Loan from the ultimate holding KB REERRA
company B 32 104,411 -
2,683,921 2,001,635
Net current assets MEBEEFE 5,998,349 5,524,644
13,072,388 11,517,611
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR R

At 31 December 2016 R=ZT—A~F+=-A=+—H
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
—RE —ZT—HF
+=A +T—A
=+—H =+—H
Bt 5 ARBTFRE ARKTET
Capital and reserves BEAR K FEE
Share capital N 31 452,233 447,637
Reserves &t 11,414,344 10,210,540
Equity attributable to owners of the  ANA R A A FE(L S
Company 11,866,577 10,658,177
Non-controlling interests T = 338,687 128,646
Total equity R BE 12,205,264 10,786,823
Non-current liability EmBEE
Borrowings R 29 791,800 649,200
Deferred income PRI YT A 30 75,324 81,588
867,124 730,788
13,072,388 11,517,611
The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 207 %93;.:20756’]&? M HmREEESS
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of WRZ-ZT—XF=A-+— EITtt/E&Txﬁ%

Directors on 22 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

T 2% ]IEE NTEERREFSRE

Zhang Hua Wei
o 3 B
DIRECTOR
BE

Wang Yi
£

DIRECTOR

EF



96

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAAEE PN
Share-
Share  Statutory based Non-
Share  premium surplus Translation  payments Other  Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Note a) (Note b)
L30)
khER  EEER BERMR
k* 1] B ERRE B RMRE  REEN @it FBRER it
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(Fta) (o)
At 1 January 2015 RZ%-1§-f-H 447,637 2,478,544 255,658 (1,786) - 1,097 6,666,755 9,847,905 31,68 9,879,591
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - - 1ML 112,736 36122 1,148,858
Exchange differences arising on REENEREENERER

translation of foreign operations

- subsidiaries ~-HEAF - - - 7,557 - - - 7,557 - 7,557
Total comprehensive income for the year ERRERNLE - - - 7,557 - - 112736 1120293 36,122 1,156,415
Capital contribution by non-controlling FERERTE (HE33)

interests (note 33) - - - - - 8,165 - 8,165 60,838 69,003
Share-based payments (note 33) ARG BRI (B533) - - - - 13,066 - - 13,066 - 13,066
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BATETRHBER - - 2,298 - - - (2.29) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 1) BRZAMEHRE (K1) - - - - - - 338 (331252 BN cciWi)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFTZA=+-H 447,637 2,478,544 257,956 511 13,066 9260 7445941 10,658,177 128646 10,786,823
Profit for the year KERET - - - - - S 105933 1105933 31659 1,137,592
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBELHELZE

translation of foreign operations

- subsidiaries -HEAA - - - 8749 - - - 8,749 - 8,749
Total comprehensive income for the year EREARALE - - - 8,749 - - 1105933 1,114,682 31659 1,146,341
Ordinary shares issued under a shareaward ~— RERG RBE BHTEBR

scheme (note 33) (H#33) 4,59 9,516 - - - (01112 - - - -
Capital contribution by non-controlling BORHETHERERTE

interests under a share arrangement (K&33)

(note 33) - - - - (238,860) 427,618 = 188,758 122,353 3
Share-based payments (note 33) WRA BRI (Mi33) - - - - 9641 - - 29641 56,029 305670
Dividends recognised as distribution BIADRNRE (K1)

(note 11) - - - - - - (344,681) (344,681) - (344,681)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-AE+ZA=1-A 452,33 2,575,060 257,956 14,520 23847 335,768 8,207,193 11,866,577 338,687 12,205,264
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Note a:

Note b:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE %

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in PRC require the appropriation of 10% of profit
after taxation (prepared under the generally accepted accounting
principles in the PRC) each year to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
According to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
PRC companies, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus
reserve shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation
into capital and expansion of its production and operation. For
the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of
the registered capital.

Other reserve mainly represents the difference between the
amounts by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid to acquire the additional
interest in subsidiaries, and the cost of the ordinary shares hold
by the trustees under a share award scheme. The amount of
RMB427,618,000 resulted from the capital contribution by the
management of a subsidiary under a share arrangement, as
detailed in note 33(b). The amount of RMB101,112,000 resulted
from the ordinary shares subscribed by the trustees under a share
award scheme, as detailed in note 33(a).

BffsEa :

MaEb -

FAEREDEE

AR R E R B RS 2 P B A B A AR A
ERARESESFRBEZEN (RIF
FREARERAGR)N10%DIKEE
ERBEE ERAERRRENERE
S AR AN #950% & 1 - R B P B A R e AR
BERMAOGERE  E—RERLT
EERGEFEEN BIEBAERE BRk
AREREEREE - BETRHRFEER
FEBAR - ZREEOSRENSER MR
ANEI25% °

HihEEEZ R BB A R ENE
EREENEERESNSEEA A
MRENAFEZHENEZERS RZEA
BRIER D EE S FE L BRAORAZ
MM ZE%- 258 ARKA427,618,0007T &
TE—HEHBRAREEEBRERD
EE (K EE33(b)ATEFML) c 2 BARK
101,112,000 T E 4 B 7T AR KRR D 82
Yt 2 3208 @AY (LnFfFE33(a)Frit ) ©



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\, N fﬁimbi#&%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE= ==

—RETZR=t+—HILFE

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—RE —T—HF
ARB®TRE ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXRH
Profit before taxation B A58 A1 g Al 1,314,346 1,335,505
Adjustments for: BYEL T YRR :
Interest income MEBEWA (45,101) (65,083)
Finance costs Bl & AR 56,762 44,497
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEREETE
equipment 344,281 311,118
Depreciation of investment properties REWMEINE 1,771 2,139
Prepaid lease payments charged to HERPHERNENEE
profit or loss IR 10,804 10,067
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts RIZE IR 55,004 28,176
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EEH 3,115 3,115
Amortisation of sponsorship rights B Bh i N 5 3,075 -
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2R 305,670 13,066
Share of loss (profit) of joint ventures EEEE R RBE (Caf) (464) 3,958
Share of profit of an associate FEAG — IS & 2 Bl A - (601)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHE AR 2 W - (2,535)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WEMKE
plant and equipment Z BB 3,419 2,005
Release of deferred income B AT E] (11,018) (5,477)
Exchange gain BEE 4 2 (7,963) (2,414)
2,033,701 1,677,536
Movements in working capital LEERE
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (M) (68,993) 63,926
Increase in trade and other receivables FEWE 5 IR 3k N H b FE UL
FRIEHE N (666,261) (375,608)
Increase in finance lease receivables JE U b & FE & SR IEE N (469,176) (78,943)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other Vﬁfé%ﬁﬁ Kz EL Ath JE 1~
payables I I ORA) 355,553 (86,690)
Increase in deferred income 3R AT W A 22 0 6,300 52,016
Cash generated from operations KEFRRe 1,191,124 1,252,237
Income taxes paid ERER (137,985) (199,467)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES HBEXBEMmERALSH 1,053,139 1,052,770
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
I\/\ Eﬁzi/ﬂbi#&%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE =% —

RETZA=+—BILFE

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—RE —T—HF
ARBFRE ARETET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRERY
Purchases of property, BEYE BWELRE
plant and equipment (592,940) (1,068,138)
Deposits paid for acquiring property, B E  BE K&
plant and equipment REZ e (26,729) (45,373)
Addition of prepaid lease payments a1 70 & R IE G AN (1,435) (17,138)
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ’§¢@¥ 5 K
plant and equipment HAEFTIE IR 19,073 489,340
Interest received 2 E 50,490 59,443
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REMEEFRITER 418,191 494,689
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEBIRITER (408,998) (430,092)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHIEERE
investments (69,752) (25,659)
Acquisition of sponsorship rights B Bh i N Y B (18,000) -
Loan payments R ® (246,600) -
Disposal of an associate & — g E QA - 124,180
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BRERBMAREBN
ACTIVITIES (876,700) (418,748)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR R
Repayments of borrowings BEMEK (420,900) (355,600)
New borrowings raised mEmzEs 490,000 955,000
Interest paid B F B (56,762) (47,519)
Dividends paid 2R & (252,523) (331,252)
Capital injection from non-controlling FEERBRREZ2ESEA
shareholders 311,111 69,003
New loans raised from the ultimate holding B &&EFER A AIEE
company ZHE R 104,411 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEREECHEEE 175,337 289,632
NET INCREASE IN CASH HReRBReFRERMBMBEA
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 351,776 923,654
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENHRERTEFR/Y
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,712,153 2,786,085
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEDE R Z B & 7,963 2,414
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REXNDBAERASFRY
AT END OF YEAR, representing bank BRRITERLE 2
balances and cash 4,071,892 3,712,153

929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE A T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

GENERAL

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited (the “Company”) was established and
registered as a joint stock company with limited liability
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") under
the Company Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Weigao Holding Company Limited (“Weigao
Holding"”), a company registered in the PRC with limited
liability. Its ultimate controlling party is Zhang Huawei,
who is also the Chairman of the Company. The address
of the registered office of the Company is 312 Shi
Chang Road, Weihai, Shandong Province, PRC. The
Company has relocated its principal place of business
to 18 Xing Shan Road, Weihai, Shandong Province, PRC
since May 2013.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of single-use medical devices, orthopaedic
products and blood purification products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA™) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

y 4

2.

ERMIIRESIEENE
%jﬁ)iﬁﬂll (IEEMBEREE

FEMBHREENEITEREFE
5l & 3

RAFE AEEEHEXRERAES
g e ([E5gsmag])
MM TV F B %S EAEET
7K

BAMBHRE NWERFLE

ERIE 1158 w2 Z5T

(1&%T) G FE

BEas TEHE

AR5

(1&&T)

BAEGEER XEHER#E

F1658 & Z AL

EEgFER

£ 385%

(1&%T)

BEALEER EBX 4LEM

FIHRNEE EHY

sl

F4158

(1&%T)

BERBRE REEE - FEH

ZERIE109 .  HEAKZ

BEAMB®RE  HISMEX

AERIZE 1258

MEBEE

AERIZE 2858

(1&%T)

BEAEMBHRE BEYEHE

AR (1BET) ER|—F——4F
BT —yF
P RE ) F 2 2Rt

REZARERBEBY RS ERE
RIS AR SR BN ANEE MR T
FENBBRERMKAK,XZF
REMBRRAERBEENEAY
.



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
N

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B H5 SRR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERNTREETEEHME
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEEN ([HFEMKEREHE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS All) (&)

(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments FEUMGBREENFEIRLMTR

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the BEMBREERFIRSIABRE

classification and measurement of financial assets, MEERTREBEIBANGTE —

financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and REFEHRETEALEREE
impairment requirements for financial assets. AR Z ¥R TE

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the M BREERERERNEER

Group are: B F2RER:

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets, e NEMEEREMS BFEM
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, B EERNESRRERBIE
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under ERLER MEEMEER
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires ST ERIE3RB T RIRED
an entity to account for expected credit losses and HBBEERAEBER -BHEE
changes in those expected credit losses at each BAENEREBHRNERE
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since HEWREMEERBLARZERE
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer MEEBRRNEFH AR UK
necessary for a credit event to have occurred R B Y] 16 FE AR DA R 69 5 B EL R
before credit losses are recognised. 2oz THFEENCDHE

EEEEHRAAEREES
o

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future, the expected Hi&FER & B MRS ERIZE5 -

credit loss model may result in early provision of credit B EEERRA A EHAR

losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the REE 2 BASEREHKAGTE

Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost, ZeERMEERREEEBRRR

but it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate REHE A REFENFER

of the effect until the directors perform a detail review. BIAT - WEAREMEARTE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE A T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing
and operating cash flows respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
RMB12,001,000 as disclosed in note 34. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors complete a detailed review.

Other than set out above, the Directors do not
anticipate that the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on amounts
reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out these consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

y 4

RN REESTEERE
gﬁﬁ&(ﬂﬂ)([ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁiﬁ
B

FRMBEREEANE16RER
(%)

B A4 E - R T — X
F+-_A=+—"B AEBEEHEE
TR HMEEEROEREARE
12,001,0007C  ¥] 26 5F (i B R I &5
THEHAEBBM B REERFE 165
ETHENTE A AEEEHE
R—IBEFRAEEELAEBEMAEZSE
HERSENEE BRIFERNER
EATEREENFI6HEFFTESE
BENCHEE - I BEAFBET
ARE B LA TR E 20 &
WERNEE A RARAESHE
THMAEMA B ETEELS
BB TER -

BR £ XFTE SN N2 R E F A H
FER ] MEIER] BB M B MmE %
AT ERNAKEZRE MR
RFTERMz BN/ EAREHEA M
BHRRABIBEBEEREATE -

FEERIBE
anEn

REMBRRLDRBEESAMA
SRM BBV HHRES ERIREL -
BESI - AR A B S R EA B X P R
FEmRA ([ ETRA]) REFER
AMEBY ([ BHEGI] ) 3R & iE A 3

g% o

wREE

FREREMRETERTAER
FEFEIN GETBRRIIAE
SERARRERRR -

107



108

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE A T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

e has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity including reserves and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution of
the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified that to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s relevant cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Investments in an associate and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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3.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in an associate and joint
ventures (continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share
of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in an associate and joint
ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in an associate and joint
ventures (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in
the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating and financial leases is described
in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under financial leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's
net investment in the leases. Financial lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than
investment properties measured under fair value model,
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case
the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasehold land for own use (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
‘prepaid lease payments’ in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group’s interests.
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—RETZR=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the year in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—"F+_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, the obligations of the Group
under which are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan. Contributions
to respective benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payments arrangements

The award shares granted are provided by the Group.
The Group recognised in the expenses in compliance
with HKFRS 2.

For grants of shares that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services
received is determined by reference to the fair value
of shares granted at the date of grant and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve).
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3.

—RETZR=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payments arrangements
(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of granted shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payments reserve.

For grants of shares that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the awarded shares is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the award shares are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to other reserve. When the award
shares are forfeited, the amount previously recognised
in share-based payments reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
taxation’ as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production of goods, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Surgical instruments produced by the Group that are
dedicated for use with the Group's orthopedic implant
products will commence depreciation upon they are
provided to the distributors that in the location for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be
made when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from owner-occupied property to investment property;
or commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets -
research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired

separately.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Sponsorship rights

Sponsorship rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A HRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—"F+_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: available-for-sale
("AFS") financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of debt instruments and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instruments, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets (continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, and changes in foreign exchange rates are
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of other reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the other reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, finance lease receivables, loan
receivables, bank balances and cash and pledged
bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period of 90-180 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables and
finance lease receivables and loan receivables where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against to the
allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases, and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of other reserve. In respect of AFS
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, loan from the
ultimate holding company and trade and other payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of financial liabilities and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liabilities, or, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—AF+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is discussed as below:
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Share-based payment expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
management of Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device
Company Limited (“Weigao Ortho”), a subsidiary of
the Company, subscribed 22,222,222 shares of Weigao
Ortho at cash consideration of RMB311,111,000
under the share arrangement with the management
of Weigao Ortho (the “Share Arrangement )
and accordingly, share-based payment expenses
of RMB294,889,000 is recognised in the Group'’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The Group measures the share-
based payment expenses at the difference between the
considerations received and the fair value of the shares
issued by Weigao Ortho. Estimating fair value requires
determining the appropriate valuation model and the
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including, but
not limited to, discount rate, the underlying forecast
cash flows. Changes in these inputs could affect the
share-based payment expenses recognised. The Group
involved the independent vauler to determine the fair
value of the shares issued by Weigao Ortho under the
Share Arrangement. Details are set out in note 33(b).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred)discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition, where applicable).
Where the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is RMB2,930,402,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of RMB188,844,000) (31 December
2015: RMB2,448,547,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB143,006,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sale of single-use medical
device products, orthopaedic products and blood
purification products and operates in the PRC.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into three operating divisions — single use
medical device products, orthopaedic products and
blood purification products. These divisions are the
basis of the internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (Managing Director) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

Principal activities of the Group’s operating segments
are as follows:

Single use — production and sale of single use
medical consumables such as products
device infusion sets, syringes, blood

transfusion sets and blood bags.

Orthopaedic - production and sale of orthopaedic

products products.

Blood — production and sale of blood
purification purification products and related
products medical equipment.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. #8EH (&)
Segment revenues and results SRR RIR
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBRKEEDE DT H Y K E
results by operating segments: BN
2016 —E—-R¥
Single use
medical Blood
device Orthopaedic purification
products products products Eliminations Total
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—RH
ERER iy 324
BRER BHER ER B Akt
AEBTT ARWTET ARWTT ARWTT ARWTRE
Revenue gt
External sales SNEREHE 4,833,340 803,498 1,093,502 - 6,730,340
Inter-segment sales WE S HHEE 11,331 10 1,174 (12,515) -
Total Cha 4,844,671 803,508 1,094,676 (12,515) 6,730,340
Segment profit 7 #0387l 1,064,858 45,180 118,123 - 1,228,161
Unallocated expenses AABEHE 6,993
Unallocated other income, ADBHEMEA
gains and losses Wi kBB (1,519)
Finance lease income SREEWA 35,146
Bank interest income BITHERA 45,101
Share of profit of joint ventures  fE{54 4 A A% F 464
Profit before taxation BREL AR 7

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 98EH (&)
Segment revenues and results (continued) SHBER¥ERE(E)
2015 ot Lk -2
Single use
medical Blood
device  Orthopaedic purification
products products products Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—R
FREE m&F
BMER BRIER B HR Ch
ARETT  ARETE ARETRT ARETT AR%TR
Revenue Yas
External sales ShEBSHE 4,336,539 657,702 924,689 - 5,918,930
Inter-segment sales W H EHE 16,058 1,841 - (17,899) -
Total A& 4,352,597 659,543 924,689 (17,899) 5,918,930
Segment profit 2 25 A 928,044 259,099 83,772 - 1,270,915
Unallocated expenses ADERE (2,139)
Unallocated other income, ADBEEMEA
gains and losses ez R B8 2,468
Bank interest income H|ITHFBIBA 65,083
Share of loss of joint ventures 1A & A RE B (3,958)
Share of profit of an associate ~ JE{h — B & A 75 Fl 601
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  tH&—RIH B D7) 2 dea 2,535
Profit before taxation B 75t Al

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of expenses, other
income, gains and losses of the corporate function,
finance lease income, share of profit (loss) of joint
ventures, share of profit of an associate and gain on
disposal of a subsidiary. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SWBEH (B
Segment assets and liabilities STHEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and AEEERGCEDHBINEEERE
liabilities by operating segments: BT
2016 —E—-R¥
Single use
medical Blood
device  Orthopaedic  purification
products products products Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
—-RH
ERER iib:3:1(4
BHES BFHER ER ait
ARRTR AERTR AE®TR AERTR
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 6,807,478 1,273,729 2,634,453 10,715,660
Available-for-sale investments HHERE 95,411
Interests in joint ventures REENFER 112,705
Investment properties BENE 51,415
Deferred tax assets ERREEE 59,485
Finance lease receivables eRMERKE 540,734
Pledged bank deposits BERRIEH 36,980
Bank balances and cash ROTEBREE 4,071,892
Other unallocated assets Ak pEEE 72,027
Consolidated assets GREE 15,756,309
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities PHERE 2,380,167 157,928 873,004 3,411,099
Unallocated other payables RAOBEEMENFE 48,199
Unallocated borrowings RARER 90,000
Other unallocated liabilities L ANEERE 1,747
Consolidated liabilities GKe8fE

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SWEA (8
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEERAR (&)
2015 —E—-RfF
Single use
medical Blood
device Orthopaedic purification
products products products Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—R
RREE mREr
SMEM BREm Em ait
AREFT AEBTT AEETT ARETT
Assets EE
Segment assets NHEE 6,325,188 909,101 2,295,275 9,529,564
Available-for-sale investments EHERE 25,659
Interests in joint ventures NEERAER 108,241
Investment properties RENE 53,186
Deferred tax assets BEREEE 44,270
Pledged bank deposits BEBRIER 46,173
Bank balances and cash BTEHNES 3,712,153
Consolidated assets LedE 13,519,246
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,886,598 142,844 702,981 2,732,423

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than investment properties, finance lease
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, deferred tax assets, available-for-sale
investments, interest in joint ventures and other
unallocated assets hold under the finance lease
business; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments

other than the unallocated liabilities hold under
the finance lease business.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SWEA (8
Other segment information Hfth 5 8B &
2016 —E—R%¥
Single use
medical Blood
device  Orthopaedic purification
products products products Total
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—-RH
ERER i§:%:314
BHES EHER ER &t
ARBTR ARETR AR®TR ARBTR
Amounts included in the measure of SESRENASHEER
segment profit or segment assets: st E:
Additions to property, plant and equipment  ¥1E %1% - B Rik{E 449,586 47,146 275,249 771,981
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REGRE 34,947 5,419 6,689 47,055
Release of prepaid lease payments BNEEARAE 7,130 1,253 2,421 10,804
Amortisation of intangible assets BREERH - 3,115 - 3,115
Depreciation of property, plant and nE% BEREENE
equipment 197,358 57,762 89,161 344,281
Loss on disposal of property, plant LENE BEREREBR
and equipment (1,122) (15) (2,282) (3,419)
Research and development expenditure ikdeah T 208,805 57,232 36,642 302,679
Share-based payment expenses SARG BERN A RFE R 10,781 294,889 - 305,670
Government grants BRE (7,572) (4,574) (9,178) (21,324)
Rebate of value added tax ("VAT") EER ([BER])ER (63,880) - - (63,880)
2015 —E—-5%
Single use
medical Blood
device Orthopaedic purification
products products products Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—RE
RREE m&Fk
BMER EMEM Em A
AREFT AREFT AEETT AREFT
Amounts included in the measure of HESPRTR S DEERE
segment profit or segment assets: AT
Additions to property, plant and equipment  #T21%  [E LR & 470,029 109,140 607,987 1,187,156
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RERRE 19,812 2,761 5,603 28,176
Release of prepaid lease payments BNEEARAE 7,483 193 2,391 10,067
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEERH - 3,115 - 3,115
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BERAENE
equipment 176,089 48,576 86,453 311,118
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant ~ (HENE BEREE
and equipment (k%) B8 (2,738) 8 4,735 2,005
Research and development expenditure HERT 207,151 57,738 27,769 292,658
Share-based payment expenses AR BERHRZTET 13,066 - - 13,066
Government grants BB (3,290) (4,003) (6,579) (13,872)
Rebate of VAT BEBRT (40,585) - - (40,585)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SWEA (8
Revenue from major products FEERKR
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000

—E—RE —_T—HF
ARBFRE ARETET

Sale of single use medical device SHE — IR A B R ES W
products = th
— Infusion sets — R 1,572,897 1,437,114
— Syringes — k5 28 757,702 689,892
— Pre-filled syringes — BRI TS 598,839 445,257
— Needles — &M 895,272 821,676
- Blood bags and sampling products — — M ¥ %4 & & £R 1M = & 364,263 390,217
- PVC granules —PVCHR R 53,003 55,543
— Other products —HMEm 591,364 496,840
Sale of orthopaedic products HEBREM 803,498 657,702
Sale of blood purification products  #4 & /& F/b & @ 1,093,502 924,689
6,730,340 5,918,930
Information about major customers FEERMEH
There is no single customer contributing over 10% of RREFEA HRE -—FPHEE
total sales of the Group for both years. HBeOAEEAHEEFEN10% °
Geographical segment tE 58
The Group's operations, assets and most of the AEENKEXE BEMKE D
customers are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no BEPEHURPE - EHit - BAEZIFE
geographical analysis of non-current assets and revenue MBEERRRBHE DT o

is presented.
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6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

6. Hftlg A @K BN

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E—-XE —T—I1F
ARBFRE ARKTET
Other income: H AU A
Rebate of VAT (i) BB B R () 64,890 40,585
Government grants (ii) 05 1 %28 B (i) 21,324 13,872
Bank interest income RITHBHA 45,101 65,083
Operating rental income LER eI A 7,398 7,835
Finance lease income TRIEEWA 35,146 -
173,859 127,375
Other gains and losses: H A WA R E1E -
Allowances for bad and doubtful RIZBREE
debts (55,004) (28,176)
Net exchange loss b H 1R F 5 (5.518) (3,424)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE K
plant and equipment RAEEE (3,.419) (2,005)
Others Hity (2,528) 2,468
(66,469) (31,137)
107,390 96,238
Note: B 5T

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
WRE = EEE

As Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Limited (“Jierui”)
was recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”, the Tax Bureau
in Weihai granted a rebate of VAT paid by lJierui with effect
from 1 May 1999 on the basis of “payment first then rebate”.
Pursuant to Caishui [2007] No.92 issued by the State Council,
with effect from 1 July 2007, Jierui was granted a rebate of VAT
determined with reference to the number of staff with physical
disability, as well as the standard maximum limit per staff with
physical disability. Caishui [2007] No.92 was annulled at 1 May
2016.

Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No.52 issued by the State Council,
with effect from 1 May 2016, Jierui was granted a rebate of
VAT determined with reference to the number of staff with
physical disability. For each staff with physical disability, four
times of the minimum salary approved by the local government
in Weihai is granted to Jierui as rebate of VAT.

Pursuant to Caishui [2016] No.36, Weigao Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd. is entitled to immediate tax rebates upon collection
when the actual VAT tax burden exceeds 3%.
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. Httg A WK ER (&)

(continued)

Note: (continued) Hist: (&)

ii During the year, government grants of RMB10,306,000 (2015: i FRREBETERAFENERE
RMBS8,395,000) in aggregate were awarded to the Group f& K 2 5T K RO SR BT S 0R B AE R IR
mainly for subsidiaries of the group’s business development fi¥ 17 B & £ A KR #10,306,0007T (=
and certain research and development projects completed F— A% : AKRM8,3950007T) I
during the year and were recognised as other income when the AU BT 5 B I 7 52 A R A - 7E i
government grants were received. There were no unfulfilled REEAMERERNGHE -HE-T
conditions in the year in which they were recognised. —AFETZ_A=t—HALFE KA
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the release of ARXERNBRFHEBERBSARE
government grants related to capital expenditure amounting to 11,018,000 (=T —HAF : AR®
RMB11,018,000 (2015: RMB5,477,000) is recognised as other 5,477,0007T) B B 72 4 E i Y A (B
income (note 30). §£30) °

FINANCE COSTS 7. MRHEZF

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000

—E—XE —T-AfF

ARBTFRE ARETT

Interest on borrowings wholly AR AFABHREED
repayable within five years BE RS 56,762 47,519
Less: Amount capitalised in BHERIEBERENR
construction in progress - (3,022)
56,762 44,497
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year of 2015 are —E-RhFZEREBERARTIR
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 6% per AFEBEAREO%ETFTE -
annum.
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FieMAX
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E-RFE —T—hF
ARB®TRE ARETT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EFTEH
Current tax BN EATR I8 189,697 200,809
Underprovision (overprovision) BEFERETTE
in prior years (HBRaE) 2,272 (121)
Deferred taxation (note 21) EERIE (F1EE21) (15,215) (14,041)

176,754 186,647
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8.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

The Company, Jierui, Weigao Ortho, and Weihai Weigao
Blood Purification Products Company Limited (“Weigao
Blood"”) were recognised as Shandong Province New
and High Technical Enterprises (IR A& & ¥ #1l7 &
%) from the year 2014 to 2016. In accordance with
the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau of the Ministry
of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential Treatment
Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High
Technical Enterprise was subject to income tax at a tax
rate of 15%.

Jierui has been recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”
and pursuant to Caishui [2007] No. 92 issued by the
State Council, with effect from 1 July 2007 to 1 May
2016. lJierui is subject to income tax rate of 15% but
an amount equivalent to the total salaries paid to
staff with physical disability is further deducted from
the taxable income of Jierui and the rebate of VAT is
exempted from the PRC income tax. The tax charge
provided for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 were made after taking these tax incentives into
account.

No provision of Hong Kong taxation has been made
for Weigao International Medical Company Limited and
Weigao Medical Holding Company Limited as they did
not have assessable profit in Hong Kong during both
years.

No provision of overseas taxation has been made
for Weigao Medical (Europe) Company Limited and
Wellford Capital Limited as they did not have assessable
profit during both years.
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—RNET+_A=1+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8. FieMRAX (&)
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit REEHNX HEGEBRER REME
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and H WA & F E’J/ﬁnﬂ"'JLTﬂﬁﬁﬂ—l—-
other comprehensive income as follows:
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
—B-RFgE —T—1F
ARBTFRE ARKTET
Profit before taxation B 150 B g A 1,314,346 1,335,505
Taxation at the domestic income tax &Z15% B AT EFTE
rate of 15% (2015: 15%) HME(ZZE—RF: 15%) 197,152 200,326
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss of E{EAZE R A2 FF) EiE
joint ventures WS E (70) 594
Tax effect of share of profit of FEAG Bt & 2 Bl 208 A1 HY
an associate M2 - (90)
Tax effect of income not taxable for G M F HBRMBAZ
tax purpose MG (12,512) (12,306)
Effect of additional tax deduction for ﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁz%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&tﬂﬁ
research and development expenses < 522 (M)
(note) (21,826) (17,608)
Additional tax benefit to a Social HERAINEBZEIINGBES
Welfare Entity (5.600) (5,572)
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRAMATABRANTIEERE
not recognised (1,266) (68)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible 7 & 32 K% I8 & 18 &—HEWD
temporary difference not recognised T BF 1 2= B &) B 75 7 £ 7,592 5,983
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FLF i 5 ] AT FH
for tax purpose W ETE 7,790 12,882
Effect of different tax rates of TRABEHMNE AN TE
subsidiaries 3,222 2,627
Underprovision (overprovision) BAEFERETT (BEEE)
in prior years 2,272 (121)
Taxation 1a 176,754 186,647

Note: Additional tax deduction was granted by the PRC tax

GEE

authority in respect of the research and development cost of
RMB145,507,000 (2015: RMB117,387,000) incurred in new

products.

y 4

FEREEEE R EREE 2
R AN A R #145,507,000C (=&
—FE: ARM117,387,0007T) FH

BN R -



148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE= ==

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

n.

—RETZR=t+—HILFE

9. FFEERF

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E—R¥F —ET—RHF
ARBTRE ARETT
Profit for the year has been arrived ANF [ F & bR N5
at after charging: T8 B 1835
Allowances for bad and doubtful RIBREH
debts 55,004 28,176
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 3,115 3,115
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A0 B & 3,848 3,601
Depreciation of property, M- WEREETE
plant and equipment 344,281 311,118
Depreciation of investment properties &YX E 1,771 2,139
Prepaid lease payments charged to ETE sRIBRMENEE
profit or loss A 10,804 10,067
Rental payments in respect of KEHENMEMES
premises under operating leases 14,211 12,633
Research and development expenditure #ff 3t E2 3% 37 302,679 292,658
Cost of inventories recognised as an R ARSI NFER K
expense 2,593,772 2,403,372
Staff costs, including directors’ and BIRAN(BREFK
supervisors’ remuneration EEHM)
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIRE R B
contributions 105,968 83,317
— Salaries and other allowances — ¥ & R H M RAL 1,210,568 1,058,419
— Share-based payment expenses — ARt BER TR
(note 33) (M$5E33) 305,670 13,066
Total staff costs BT AEER 1,622,206 1,154,802
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HELREEE
plant and equipment 3,419 2,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENT§
RE BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 10.EF - EFREENS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EEREEHS
Supervisors are the members of the supervisory EEAARRNAIEESHNKE-

committee of the Company.

The emoluments of directors and supervisors during the FR BFBENEENMEITEOT :
year are analysed as follows:

2016
Z2-R%
Retirement

Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based

and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances contributions (note) expense Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

FeR BHEH  REHERTEL HEhE
g Hit R b i1y (i) BRMGREX it

AE®TR ARBTR IN: 4w AE®TR IN:L 4w AE®TR

Chief executive and TRARRUTES

executive director

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei RERLL - 1,713 - - - 1,713

Executive directors BiTES

Mr. Wang Yi TRAE - 1,459 50 - - 1,509

Mr. Gong Jian Bo SHREE - 1,671 - 8,573 147,444 157,688

Mr. Xia Lie Bo BilR%HE - 1,355 4 - - 1,397
- 4,485 92 8,573 147,444 160,594

Non-executive directors FERTEE
Mr. Chen Xue Li (resigned on ~ REF|%4 (R=F—1F

22 March 2016) =RF-t+ZBEf) = = = = - -
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua ARELL - - - - = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 10.EX -EERESME (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EEREEME (B)
(continued)
2016
Z2-7%
Retirement
Salaries benefits  Performance  Share-based
and other schemes related bonus payment
Fee allowances  contributions (note) expense Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FeR BUEH  RRERREL HiirE
g it HEER (frzk) ERMHHRAR it
AR%TR ARBTR AR%TR ARBTR ARRTR AR®TR
Independent non- BLFRTES
executive directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EREEE 156 - - - - 156
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong DELr e 108 - - - - 108
Mr. Li Jia Miao (resigned on ~ 2F &4 (RZF—1F
30 December 2016) T-A=+REML) 108 - - - - 108
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia IRERT 108 - - - - 108
480 - - - - 480
Supervisors EF
Mr. Yue Chun Liang EBR%A - 51 7 - - 58
Ms. Bi Dong Meit BR|LL - - - - - -
Ms. Chen Xiao Yun* REZL - - - - - -
Mr. Long Jing (resigned on EHEE(RZT—RF
29 June 2016) RAZTAERHE) - 503 25 607 121 1,256
- 554 32 607 121 1,314
480 6,752 124 9,180 147,565 164,101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT§
iR e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 10.EE -EERESNE (B
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EEREEME (B)
(continued)

2015
—E-1%
Retirement
Salaries benefits Performance

and other schemes related bonus Share-based
Fee allowances contributions (note)  payment expense Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ek BIER RBEBRAL DROAER
Be Hit 28 BE L (F3E) B @

ARETT ARETT ARBTL ARETT ARBTTL ARETT

Chief executive and TRARAUTES

executive director

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei REF LA - 1,430 2 - - 1,452

Executive directors BiTES

Mr. Wang Yi IREE - 1,184 2 - - 1,206

Mr. Gong Jian Bo SRIREE - 1671 - 8,573 - 10,244

Mr. Xia Lie Bo BIIREE - 1,129 33 - - 1,162
- 3,984 55 8,573 - 12,612

Non-executive directors F#H{TEE
Mr. Chen Xue Li BER k4t - - - _ _ _
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua BARETL - - - - _ _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 10.E5 -EFRERME (&)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EEREEME (B)
(continued)
2015
“Z-n%
Retirement
Salaries benefits Performance
and other schemes related bonus Share-based
Fee allowances contributions (note)  payment expense Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
K BINER  RERERL  AROHAER
Be Hit 28 FHEIER k3] BRFRHEZ @

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Independent non- BLkRTES

executive directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung EREEE 98 - - - - 98

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong DELEr e 72 - - - - 72

Mr. Li Jia Miao FRHLE 7 - - - - 7

Mrs. Wang Jin Xia IRERT 7 - - - - 7

314 - - - - 314

Supervisors E®

M. Long Jing gk - 798 16 1,818 58 3,214

Ms. Bi Dong Meit XMt - - - - - -

Ms. Chen Xiao Yun* REZ g+t - - - - - -

- 798 16 1,818 582 3214
314 6,212 93 10,391 582 17,592

Note: The performance related bonus payment is determined by Mzt : RBEBEEANRIDSEZEZRITH
reference to the individual performance of the directors and the BYZEARBEMETREHFWNER
chief executive and approved by the Remuneration Committee. gt -

# The two supervisors have been worked for Weigao Holding # MEEEFE T —_FE—ETERN
since 2012, and the salaries and other allowances and BeEE Hie KHEMEL KRR
retirement benefits schemes contributions were paid by Weigao B EIMHFAREEBEE T
Holding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R P et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

10.ES - ESRESAME ()

EEHe

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
—E—-RE —T—HF
ARBFRE ARETT

Salaries and other benefits e LEMET

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2015: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosure
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2015:
three) individual were as follows:

Their emoluments were within the following band:

8,162 10,838

AEBRAUESMEA LT WP

—E-RF WMB)ERARAE
EF HEANWNSERLXEE - B8
—H(ZE—RF: =) ALTHEN
ST

BERMSE DT

2016 2015

No. of No. of
employees employees
—E—-RE —T—HF
BEEA® EEAH

Nil to HKD 1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,500,000
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000
HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000
HKD5,000,001 to HKD5,500,000
HKD5,500,001 to HKD6,000,000

During the two years ended 31 December 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Neither the directors nor any of the supervisors waived

any emoluments in the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: nil).

y 4

= 21,000,000/ 7T
1,000,0017% 7 £1,500,000/% 7T - -
1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0005% 7T - -
2,000,001% 7L £2,500,000% 7T -
2,500,001% 7L 23,500,000/ T 2
3,500,001 JC £4,000,000/%8 7T 1
4,000,001/ 7t £4,500,00078 7T -
4,500,001/ 7t £5,000,000/% 7T - -
5,000,001 7L £5,500,0007% 7T - -
5,500,001 7T £6,000,000/% 7T - 1

REBEE-ZF-—R"F+-A=+—H
L R TR A - A 5% B S 8 2 A B
ETEF FARSIMAREEK
RN &) 22 - sl (E BBl (5

HE-_T—XNE+-_A=+—H1t
FIEBEE S N B E RE T
S (ZE—FHF &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

during the year:

2016 Interim — RMB0.041
(2015: interim dividend
— RMBO0.039) per share

2015 Final — RMB0.036
(2014: final dividend
— RMBO0.035) per share

Total

Less: distribution to the shares hold by
the trustees under a share award

11. DIVIDENDS 11. B2
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
—E—RFE —T—AHF
ARBTRE ARETT
Dividends recognised as distribution FAERBSD KRS

—E-REHHREER
AR¥0.0417T
—E—hF:
FHAIR B AR
AR ¥0.0397T) 185,416 174,579
TE-RFEREREER
AR ¥0.0367T
—E—UF:
REARR B =R
AR #0.0357T) 162,804 156,673

et 348,220 331,252

B BLE X FEARBBAD
BT EIS A 2 B

scheme (note 33(a)) (Ft5¥33(a)) 3,539 -
344,681 331,252

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, REMEHRE EFERRNEHE
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 —E-RFET+ZRA=T—HBLFE
December 2016 of RMB0.046 (2015: RMB0.036) B R B Rk B &R AR #0.0467T (=
per share, amounting to RMB208,027,000 (2015: T-HF: AR¥0.0367T) & H
RMB162,804,000) in total, has been proposed by the AR #208,027,000 (ZZE—*H
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders F: AR¥162,804,00070) ° % &

in the forthcoming general meeting.

LWEREEEERS Y TEMBRMHBERAR 2016 FR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. 527
The calculation of the basic earnings per share REREHRE NORHEE ARG
attributable to owners of the Company for the each of BRERZRMNDRE T &G
reporting period is based on the following data: -
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000

—E—-RE —T—HHF
AR®TRT ARETET

Earnings 27
Profit for the year attributable RABEER AL F AT
to owners of the Company 1,105,933 1,112,736
2016 2015
‘000 ‘000
—E—RE —T—hF
T B F &
Number of shares Ein 8 H
Number of shares for the purpose of FETEFRERAF S A
basic earnings per share &5 8 4,476,372 4,476,372
Effect of dilutive potential TERRBETEENRTE:
ordinary shares:
Incentive shares (in thousands) HEN D (FAR) 1,533 1,384
Weighted average number of RAEEREERNME N
ordinary shares for the purpose of T A N AE 19
diluted earnings per share 4,477,905 4,477,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A HmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. DX -BERER
Furniture,
fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor  equipment
In progress Buildings machinery vehicles and tools Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
&E-
BERE
EEBIR BEY BERESR RE RIA ai
ARBF ARBT ARBTR ARETT ARBFL ARBFL
COST BE
At 1 January 2015 RZE-R%—-A—A 1,316,155 1,595,666 1,411,584 71,418 578,507 4,973,330
Additions RE 873,028 30,997 216,345 5,891 60,895 1,187,156
Transfer L (507,574) 233,430 215,482 2,682 55,980 -
Transfer to investment properties ERZERENE - (33,500) - - - (33,500)
Transfer from investment BEREARENE
properties - 10,713 - - - 10,713
Disposals HE - - (62,649) (9,005) (25,012) (96,666)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1-H 1,681,609 1,837,306 1,780,762 70,986 670,370 6,041,033
Additions RE 579,088 - 123,727 6,320 62,846 771,981
Transfer &3 (587,676) 471,416 78,4% 829 36,935 -
Disposals HE - (5,355) (39,459) (4,881) (38,159) (87,854)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+ZA=1-H 1,673,021 2,303,367 1,943,526 73,254 731,992 6,725,160
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 W=ZZ-1%-A-H 2,314 74,377 513,331 40,376 188,861 819,259
Provided for the year EREE - 67,743 143,653 5,999 93,723 311,118
Eliminated on disposals REEREH - - (34,485) (4,675) (18,047) (57,207)
Transfer to investment properties ERZHENE - (265) - - - (265)
Transfer from investment BRERENE
properties - 2,184 - - - 2,184
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1—H 2,314 144,039 622,499 41,700 264,537 1,075,089
Provided for the year FRER - 63,875 181,560 3,054 95,792 344,281
Eliminated on disposals REEREH - (3,821) (33,002) (4,781) (23,758) (65,362)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+ZA=1-H 2,314 204,093 771,057 39,973 336,571 1,354,008
CARRYING AMOUNTS EEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+ZA=1-H 1,670,707 2,099,274 1,172,469 33,281 395,421 5,371,152
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1-H 1,679,295 1,693,267 1,158,263 29,286 405,833 4,965,944
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R P et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are depreciated on
a straight-line basis after taking into account of their
estimated residual values and at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 3.2-95%
Plant and machinery 9.5%
Motor vehicles 19%
Furniture, fixtures equipment and tools 19 -47.5%

The buildings of the Group are situated in the PRC and
the leasehold land is under medium-term lease.

The construction in progress represented buildings,
plant and machinery, and fixtures under construction
which are situated in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no pledged
buildings to banks to secure borrowings granted to the
Group (2015: nil).

13.0R -BER®ME (&)

EROWE - BERREBRE (£
TAERRIN) KB SORBLET A B (A ETF
HEER BTIFRFTE:

EEY) 3.2-95%
& = Mo i 23 9.5%
RE 19%
RE BEERE

ETA 19 - 47.5%
AEBHEEYHNURFTE mA
B AR EANES -

ERITREMNPENERT 272
£y BMEMMBERETEE-

R—ZE—XR"&F+=-_A=+—8"
AEBBMESEZEME R TFRT
EARTAEEMNMEREA (=T
—hFE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REME
RMB'000
ARBF T
COST 5%
At 1 January 2015 R-—E—h&F—H—H 33,145
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 8 ¥1% « &= & & & 33,500
Transfer to property, plant and equipment  EEZE¥ 3 5 L& E (10,713)
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZE—RAF+-A=+—8BK
31 December 2016 —E-RF+ZA=t+—H 55,932
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—RF—HF—H 2,526
Provided for the year FRNEE 2,139
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ## 8% % 5 & & & 265
Transfer to property, plant and equipment  EEE¥ ¥ HE M & E (2,184)
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—RF+-_A=+—H 2,746
Provided for the year F N 1,771
At 31 December 2016 R_E—RFT+-_A=1+—H 4,517
CARRYING VALUES IR B
At 31 December 2016 RZTE—RFE+TA=+—H 51,415
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—RF+_A=+—H 53,186

y 4




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R At

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=Z

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

—RETZR=t+—HILFE

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB66,839,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB69,142,000) has been determined by the
directors.

The valuation performed by the directors was arrived
by reference to recent market prices of properties in
the same location and with similar conditions. There
has been no change from the valuation technique used
in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at 5% per annum.

The carrying value of investment properties shown
above comprise of buildings erected on:

14. REWME (&)

REEREYMER_-_ZT—
A=+ —HHAFEHAEARKE
66,839,0007T (ZZE—RF: AR
69,142,0007C) ' ZAFEEHESE
EE-

B FETHMEE T AR B KR
DRET RO HEESE -
REFRAMMGERML EZLE -
REEMENRFER DENK
ShRERER/EERZME-

NE+TZ

AR ENRREREAF RS % T
A& -

A LRt EMENREERRERE
RT3 2 2 EEY)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—RNFE —ZT—AF
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
AR®BTRE ARETT
Land in PRC AR B A £ 4B
Medium term lease FRERFE 4 51,415 53,186
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. AfTHEREA
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ZE—RE —E—REF
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTFRE AR®TT
The Group's prepaid lease payments AN&EERFENHEZRIBEIE
comprise:
Leasehold land in the PRC RAEMEE i
Medium-term lease R ERFR 4 478,630 487,999
Analysed for reporting purposes as: St 2B MDA
Current portion (note 25) BNERER 2 (Fff5E25) 12,513 11,133
Non-current portion JEBNHA &R 466,117 476,866
478,630 487,999

R EREE LI RBE41 E50F
BB AIRE A

The leasehold land in the PRC is held under medium-
term lease of 41-50 years.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B & &
Registration Patent
rights rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B E XL #it
ARETT ARBTT ARETR
COsST BE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015  R-Z—RHF—HF—H-
and 31 December 2016 ZE-RETZA=T-HK
—E-R"¥+ZA=t—H 31,144 5,200 36,344
AMORTISATION w
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HE—H—H 22,754 - 22,754
Charge for the year FRNRAX 3,115 - 3,115
At 31 December 2015 R_E-AF+t-A=1—H 25,869 - 25,869
Charge for the year FNFAX 3,115 - 3,115
At 31 December 2016 R-E-R"¥T-A=t—H 28,984 - 28,984
CARRYING VALUES B E
At 31 December 2016 R_B—R"ETZA=1—H 2,160 5,200 7,360
At 31 December 2015 R-ZF-AF+-A=1+—H 5,275 5,200 10,475
The registration rights were acquired on acquisition of RN B R FRRBEILE = F W
subsidiaries from independent third parties. They are BERE -HMOFHBERERE
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 T OABESH o
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

17. SPONSORSHIP RIGHTS 17. B #ER
31/12/2016  31/12/2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E—RKE _—T—AHEF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AR®TFRE ARETET
Sponsorship rights & B #E F| 37,958 -

The above amount represents the

sponsorship rights

EAREEEEPEE T LRF

related to certain blood purification centers and kidney
hospitals in the PRC (collectively referenced as the
“Weigao BPCs"), all of which are non-profitable social
organisations funded and established by the Group.
Each of the Weigao BPCs has entered into a long-term
purchasing contract with the Group, accordingly the
funding contributed by the Group is recognised as the
sponsorship rights and are amortised over ten years, the
period that future economic benefits are expected to be

R RBRER (G [ B mRF
et E2mAmARERHE
& MK SRR I ) 2 E B
R - & B MAF (LR OB EAR
SEEYRHABESHN AHAE
Bt cESHRBRENER K
BEtF (BHAXRKEE T KER
K HEN e 2 HIfE) -

received by the Group.

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 1. REELAFINESR
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—-RE _—_T—HF
+=A +=—H
=+—H =+—H
AR®TFRE ARETT
Cost of unlisted investment, at cost  3F F R E KA (LK AT E 117,990 117,990
Share of post-acquisition loss JFEAE Y i 1% B 1B (5,285) (9,749)
112,705 108,241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Details of the Group's joint ventures as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

VRPN

ARe SRR MY R
December 2016 HE T —"F+A=+—HLFE
18. REELFINER (&)

R-F—RER=F-AFT A
=+—B AKEMEEDR AN

BT
Place of Proportion of
Form of incorporation nominal value of
business or registration/ registered capital
Name structure operation held by the Group Principal activities
2016 2015
x5E
ML HHRMER
£ REREEX B EEHE BFmELH FERE
Z2-RX& —T-IF

Weigao Nikkiso (Weihai) Dialysis Sino-foreign joint ~ PRC 51% 51% Manufacture, sale and

Equipment Co., Ltd. venture after-sale service of

("Weigao Nikkiso") (i) Nikkiso technology-

based medical products

B B BE (BB Ekas moRERE g g HERERRE

BRAR ([REEHE]D) () DASL: 235303 i)

EEEMm

Weigao Terumo (Weihai) Medical Sino- foreign joint  PRC 50% 50% Production and sales of

Products Co., Ltd. venture medical products

("Weigao Terumo”) (ii)
REaRAX (B8 BELm mohaERE HE EEREERESMR

BRAR (TRERAX]) (i)
Note: B & -

Pursuant to the terms in the Weigao Nikkiso Co-operation
Agreement between the shareholders, the registered capital
of USD5,610,000 (equivalent to RMB37,990,000) was
contributed by Weigao Blood and USD5,390,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,500,000) was contributed by Nikkiso Company Limited
(B 7R B # 5% #% 2\ g #£)("Nikkiso”). Under the Memorandum
and Article of Weigao Nikkiso, Weigao Blood is entitled to 50%
voting right and has 51% rights to the net assets of Weigao
Nikkiso, thus investment in Weigao Nikkiso is classified as
investment in joint venture.

Weigao Terumo was established on 6 December 2012. Pursuant
to the terms in the Weigao Terumo Agreement between the
shareholders, the registered capital of RMB160,000,000 is to be
contributed by Weigao Blood and Terumo (China) Investment
Company Limited (F /& ()& &E B R 2 &) ("Terumo”).
Under the Memorandum and Article of Weigao Terumo, Weigao
Blood is entitled to 50% voting right and has 50% rights to
the net assets of Weigao Terumo, thus investment in Weigao
Terumo is classified as investment in joint venture.

y 4

i RIERRZEME S BEES ERE
B 63 5,610,000 7T (HHERAR
#37,990,00070) WEME A BE S
& F 1 H & » M5,390,0003 7Tt (1
LM AR36,500,0007T ) K sEfE A
mMAAAKERX M (TEEE] D
B RERSARENESERRAR
ARHEE - BEMBF LA S B
H50%MIERE THER= BHEEE
EFENS1%ER  Ft - RE= B i#
ERNREDEANREGE RRINIRE -

BEaEBER _—_E——F+=-AXH

AR e BIBERER 2 B S R

B EF 0 AR 160,000,000t #9 5+ fit

ERAEERSMBRFERTRK (b

BEDREARAR([FEE])EE-

BEREFREXNEGERRALD

AR B NAF LREERSTRE

50%MEERE THEBRTREXEAE

FEMS0%ER Bt RE S REX

WEEDEABRAEERBINEE -
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's joint ventures is set out below. The summarised
financial information represents amounts shown in
the joint venture's financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

18. R&8 8

BEEBMBR
EEE R il N e

LT (

££ Y Al

H ="

Bt

&)

il

BREARBAERANPHKENR
ZHIN T -MBERABRER
|REHNEZER

Weigao Nikkiso BEEeBA#E
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—RE _—_T—HF
+=AR += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE ARETT
Current assets mEEE 110,015 87,038
Non-current assets EMEEE 16,702 17,265
Current liabilities mEasE (42,287) (28,140)
The above amounts of assets and it EENBESRE
liabilities include the following: BIEAT
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREEFEYD 14,730 17,156
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
g8F HE
—E—RE _—_ZT—HF
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE HEE
ARBTRE ARETIT
Revenue B A 175,275 131,389
Profit for the year RE [Z 4 8,267 1,966

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

18. REELTFIMESR (1)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Weigao Nikkiso (continued)

The above profit for the year include the following:

BEE®E (&)

ERAREE G BEAT

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
8BE B=E
—Z2—-RFE —T—hF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
13- 3: ; EFE
ARBTRE ARBTT
Depreciation and amortisation e K 5 2,985 2,680
Interest income M EWA 55 51
Income tax expense FREHi R < 2,240 2,683
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial EOB a2 B B R BN AR S B RS
information to the carrying amount of the interest in MEBRONE S AMEER 2R
Weigao Nikkiso recognised in the consolidated financial T {8 #) 18R
statements:
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—E—RFE —T—hF
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE ARBTET
Net assets of Weigao Nikkiso e AME EEFE 84,430 76,163
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBE R E R A#E 2
interest in Weigao Nikkiso(%) P M 2 L0 (%) 51 51
The effect of net profit adjustments BB R FIE AL HH
caused by the offset of unrealised RHER AN AENTE
insider trading - (3,076)
Carrying amount of the Group's AEEREESAB#EER 2
interest in Weigao Nikkiso BEEE 43,059 35,767
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 18. W& EBLATFIMER (&)
Weigao Terumo BEREX
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—RE _—_T—HF
+=AR += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTFRT AR®ETT
Current assets mEEE 22,845 24,435
Non-current assets ERBEE 147,374 131,122
Current liabilities mEasE (10,927) (10,608)
Non-current liabilities ERFBEFE (20,000) -
The above amounts of assets and FEENBESE
liabilities include the following: BIET:
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREEFEYD 8,453 11,150
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
gF HE
—EBE—-RE _—_ZT—HF
+=A +=A
=+—A =f—~8
ILEE EEE
ARBTRE ARETT
Revenue WA - -
Loss for the year REEZEE (5.657) (3,770)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 18. REEBATIHNESR (&)

Weigao Terumo (continued) BEERERX (&)
The above loss for the year include the following: PR ARFEEBEBREUT:

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2016 31/12/2015

RMB’'000 RMB'000

8BE B=E

ZE-RE _—T—0F

+=AR +=A

=+-8 =+-~8

13- 3: ; EFE

ARBTRE ARBTT

Depreciation and amortisation -8 3! 5,353 3,594

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial EBa 2z B B K BN AR S B RS

information to the carrying amount of the interest in #E%EEWLE’JEAJ'}ZH4\?E£TEEZEE
Weigao Terumo recognised in the consolidated financial TH] {8 #) %1 BR -

statements:

31/12/2016  31/12/2015

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

—E—RE _—_T—HF

+=A8 T—A

=+—H =+—H

ARBFRE ARETT

Net assets of Weigao Terumo BErRikcEEFE 139,292 144,949

Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBREETZRLZ

interest in Weigao Terumo(%) T A M 2 L0 (%) 50 50
Carrying amount of the Group's rEBERBESERXEZR L

interest in Weigao Terumo FREE 69,646 72,474
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE= ==

—RETZR=t+—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19. WHEHERS

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ZE—RE = —hF
+=R +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE AR®ETIT
Unlisted investments JEEMRE

Equity securities (i) N () 25,659 25,659
Investment fund (ii) & & ZE % (i) 69,752 -
95,411 25,659

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FERB MDA :
Current assets mENEE - -
Non-current assets ERBEE 95,411 25,659
95,411 25,659

Included in unlisted equity securities above
is the Group’'s investment in Zurich Medical
Corporation (“Zurich”), a company incorporated
in Cayman Islands, with a carrying amount of
RMB25,659,000 (2015: RMB25,659,000). The
investment represents a 22.12% holding of the
ordinary shares of Zurich. Since the Group has not
assigned representative on the Board of Directors
of Zurich and the primary operating activity of
Zurich is research and development, the Group
is not capable of exerting material influence on
the financial and operating decisions of Zurich.
Therefore, Zurich is not regarded as an associate
of the Group because the Group has no right to
exercise significant influence over Zurich. Pursuant
to the Confidential Letter of Intent signed between
the Group and Zurich on 19 August 2014, in
accordance with Zurich's product research and
development progress, the Group has the right to
further increase its equity interest in Zurich within
a specified period. In case the Group exercises this
right, it may acquire control of Zurich. However,
once the specified period lapsed, Zurich has the
right, but is not obliged to repurchase part of or all
of the shares the Group owns.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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FHIFEFLETRAZFSLSBE
K& B P Zurich Medical
Corporation ([Zurich | -
MRHE2 ﬁ%pfﬂﬂ}iiz
AZRE FEEHEAARK
25,659,0007T (ZF —H F:
AR #25,659,00070) ° 5% &
B HE R A Zurich 22.12%
ZEBR - BARANEEMHK
BIERARERMAZurichEEg &
Zurichz £ B & EB) B
EAFAES - ANEBRAE¥ Zurich 2
B R EERRBNERNTE
1o B Zurich ™48 A AR A
AlzEENR REAAEHE
EEFE ZurichiE I E K&
T o BBEAEBEZurichih =&
—mMFENATNLABEZEZRE
ERE ASEHEENBE
Zurichz EmMZHEREREE
HA ] 3 — 2P 38 h0 E 7E Zurich®y
s o WA BT LR - Al
Ha & %TZurlchZTW%ME"
A —BETHB AR A
ZurichBEREEEEFER RS
A 2 BHHE M -
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For the year ended 31

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20.

(continued)

(i)  (continued)

AR e B R M et

December 2016 HE T —"F+A=+—HLFE

19. AfHHERE (&)

i (&)

The investment is measured at cost less impairment ZIRE RIS B RZ KA R

at the end of the reporting period because the

MEFE RARSERFE

range of reasonable fair value estimates is so HETREEE XM BEARAF]

significant that the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

(i) The amount represents 2% of the interest in
a health science fund hold by the Group. The

EERRERQFETEAE

g

(i) ZREEAEBEFA 2RER
BRSSP Z2%EE - ZRENRK

investment is measured at cost less impairment at HEHRBEKAHRBESTE
the end of the reporting period because the range FRRAEBEATEMGTNEE
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant ERAMBERARRIEERAE

that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has

AFET AT FoE B2 =
B F+-A=F+—H &
EEL M BRESOE S

no further commitment to this fund. HAHE o

GOODWILL 20. &
RMB'000
AREFIT

CARRYING AMOUNTS BRmEE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R-_Z—HRF—H—H"
31 December 2016 —E-RFt+-_A=+—HK

—E—-RF+=-A=+—H 202,900

Impairment testing on goodwill

The Group uses operating divisions as the basis for
reporting segment information. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the
following groups of cash generating units (“CGUs").
The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 and as follows:

o i E A A

REBFRAKCEDIBIERERED
AR ELE - BEITRERNR &
BYWHMEATREEESENM ([]
cEEBMDBR R —RF
rF—E—RAF+_A=+—H80'%
B 7EREBEENT:
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI AT
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. @8 (&)

mERENR (E)

31/12/2016  31/12/2015

Single use medical device products

Orthopaedic products 5 BHE m

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The management considers that groups of CGUs are
represented by different groups of subsidiaries for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of single use medical device products have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The
recoverable amount is based on the financial budget
approved by management for the next year and
extrapolates cash flows for the following four years
based on an estimated constant growth rate of 10%
(2015: 10%). The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows is 15% (2015: 15%). A key assumption for
the value in use calculations is the budgeted growth
rate, which is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
LWREREEERRD FRARKNDAERAF 2016 Fi§

— IR EEERWE M

RMB’000 RMB'000
—E—-XE —T—hEFE
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
AR®TFRE ARETET
28,934 28,934
173,966 173,966
202,900 202,900

AEEEFARBERE MHE
BRBETEENEERHE MEE
SR R R (E

REERENANS EEERR
ReELBNARETRNHNER
mlA R

— A FEHAEERMERCREE
FBAAR 2 TR E R TR E R
BEFEMEE -AIKREESENE
BEEMtEZ T EAFEYHRBEE
ABEM WIRI0% (ZE—RHF:
10% ) TS EBIE R R HEE R K
MEMReRE-TRARESREM
FAHEEIR R A15% (Z T — R F:
15% ) 5T EFHAEEIETERIA
EEEEEX DNRATRAKER
BYHMEBEREHMET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =%

20. GOODWILL (continued)

21.

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of orthopaedic products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved
by management for the next year and extrapolates
cash flows for the following four years based on
the estimated growth rates range from 6% to 20%
(2015: 17%). The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows is 11% (2015: 15%). A key assumption for
the value in use calculations is the budgeted growth
rate, which is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of the assumption would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the above CGUs to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the above
CGUs, thus there is no impairment on goodwill.

AR e B R M et

—RNET+_A=1+—HILFE

20. 8 (&)

R ()

E”T‘#EDDZ}E&FE TLZH)DJJZT
KW ¢BE N ZFEHREERTEME
Forl @S EAEREH EZT
—EAFEFRBEAER WL
F6%%E20% (ZE—HF:17%)
METHEEEHERKRNFNE S
TME e TE\‘EIJEEE—E/RE%FHE’JEEEET
A11% —FHF:15%) 5t &
@ﬁﬁﬁTﬁZI%ij“ﬁi‘E%iﬁﬁ
RoNIRBARBRMEEEY TS
BRZEHEMET -

EEERE ERARKZEMERE

AgEgsTes RS ELEM
Z RREEBL AT KB R R
I 7R A 4R R M

DEFERRED TAXATION 21. BERIE
The following is the deferred tax asset recognised and NTREERANEEREEERKE
movements thereon during the current reporting year: RERREFENEEES:
Excess of
depreciation Share-based
Deferred over tax Impairment  Unrealised payments Unpaid
income depreciation of assets profit reserve bonus Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RERRE
wEEH HRpBER
BERA el HERE KERAT  OAREE  RIMEL @it
ARBTT  ARETT  ARMTRT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARET:
At 1 January 2015 RZE-H%-A-H - 4,940 17,762 7,527 - - 30,229
Credited (debited) to profit or loss AR EE 3,445 765 4,040 (1,814) 1,845 5,760 14,041
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-R+ZA=1-H 3,445 5,705 21,802 5,713 1,845 5,760 44,270
Credited (debited) to profit or loss AR BaE 3,736 (142) 6,463 1315 1,660 2,183 15,215
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-~+tZA=1-H 7,181 5,563 28,265 7,028 3,505 7,943 59,485

y 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

21.

22.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, deductible temporary
difference on impairment of assets of RMB13,190,000
(2015: RMB2,524,000), share-based payments reserve
of RMB476,000 (2015: RMB766,000) and unpaid
bonus of RMB1,593,000 (2015: RMB2,384,000) are not
recognised because of the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB145,211,000
(2015: RMB112,627,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses can be carried forward for 5 years from the
date it incurred. The amount of RMB6,332,000 (2015:
RMB8,711,000) included in unrecognised tax losses will
expire in 2017, the amount of RMB33,265,000 (2015:
RMB34,768,000)included in unrecognised tax losses will
expire in 2018, the amount of RMB30,654,000 (2015:
RMB31,886,000) included in unrecognised tax losses
will expire in 2019, the amount of RMB33,935,000
(2015: RMB36,441,000) will expire in 2020, and the
other amount of RMB41,025,000 (2015: nil) will expire
in 2021.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The Group entered into certain finance lease
agreements, all interest rates inherent in the leases are
fixed at the contract date over the leases terms.

LWEEEEEERARY TERRMHER AR 2016 Fif

21.BERIEA (4)

R A 2K BE TR R 2R &9 )& F) 2R - 7R
—E-RNEF+A=+t—H UE
HREEREMN]HREREZE
% A K #13,190,000 (ZZE—H
& ANE#2,524,0007T) - AR5
BERONZHEEBEARKA476,000T
(ZZ—HF: AR¥766,00070) &
REAHTEAL AR #1,593,0007T (=
T—HF: AR¥2,384,0007T) °

R—ZE—AR"F+=-_A=+—8"
REBE A AR OB F B
B RFEARBEEHOARK
145,211,000 (ZE—HF: AR
#£112,627,00070 ) ° B 7> ok B2 78 )8
7R PR Y % R OB - B 4 R A B
BERAERCEHBEE HEBEA
MELXEHRBEAAN AT KERK
HEBBEEN _Z—+F3HY
© % AR%6,332,000 (ZZE—F
F: ARES,711,0000T) - KHER
MREEBEBEREBEN -_Z—N\F3H
K% %8 A R #33,265,000C (=&
—HF: AR #¥34,768,00070)
AERREBERESER=_Z—N
F R & %8 AR %30,654,0007T
—E—HF: AR®31,886,000
T) BR-_ZE-_ZFEINHNLE
ANE#33,935,000c (=& —*H
F: AR #36,441,0007T ) & #& 7%
—E-—FIHENEMSEARK
41,025,000 (=2 —HF  £&) o

EHREERRE

AEETVETREHE R
AHEE 2R EOREBHNE
WBEHEE-
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22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. B S HERE (&)

2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—RE _—_ZT—HF

AR®TFRET ARBTT

Analysed as: Pk
Current BN HA 158,993 18,890
Non-current JEBDHA 381,741 60,053
540,734 78,943
Minimum Lease Present value of minimum
receivables lease receivables
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ERRERERE BhREREREZHE
—E-R"E —T-hF ZB-RE —T-1F
+=A T=A +=AH +=A
=+-H =+—H =+-H =+—H
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETx
Finance lease receivables EURMEHRESERRE
comprise
Within one year R—FER 166,064 19,821 158,993 18,890
In more than one year but not A —FETERAMF
more than two years 142,360 19,821 127,423 17,437
In more than two years but not BBRFETBBAF
more than five years 328,006 56,503 261,703 42,616
636,430 96,145 548,119 78,943
Less: unearned finance income i : & BEEUEL & Uiz (88,311) (17,202) - -
allowance for bad and AEREE
doubtful debts (7,385) - (7,385) -
540,734 78,943 540,734 78,943
Effective interest rates of the above finance leases range TR EHECERFMNENTF
from 4.43% to 10.01% per annum (2015: 7.79% to 4A3BZE1001B (ZF—HRHF:
8.02%). 7. 792 E8.02[F) °
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—RETZR=t+—HILFE

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. B SHERE (&)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RIZIRBEEHEEE):

2016 2015

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ZE—RE —E—RF

ARBTRT ARETIT

At 1 January n—H—H - -

Impairment losses recognised on FIEW EEEEFIBRRAL

finance lease receivables B &8 7,385 -

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 7,385 -

Finance lease receivables are secured over the JiE U @k & FE & F0IE LA BT A M 2R VR IR

machineries leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or repledge the collateral in the absence of default by

the lessee.

23.

M- AEBIRFERBARED
ERN R AR ik i i

Included in finance lease receivables is an amount due FEUWmERERERERIRE R
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB75,223,000 (2015: nil). B8~ & FE A R #75,223,0000T
(ZZ— ﬂii THE) o

LOANS RECEIVABLES 23. Bl E
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—-RE —T—HHF
ARBTRE AR®ETT
Fixed-rate loan receivables (i) ] 7 F1) 2 & W B 3R (i) 20,000 -
Variable-rate loan receivables (ii) F B I 2 e URCE SR 226,600 -
246,600 -

Analysed as: Pk

Receivables within one year R —F A EWRFRIA - -
Receivables after one year R—F & EWFKIA 246,600 -
246,600 -
i The Group provided the loans to the Weigao i $%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%hﬁi2§

Terumo with a period of five years. The loan is
unsecured, and bearing the fixed interest rate of
4.785% per annum. The loans will be matured in
more than one year but within five years.

172
IR = &
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—A"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

23. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. B ER (&)

i The Group provided the loan of RMB221,600,000 i

to the management of Weigao Ortho with a period
of five years for their subscription under the Share
Arrangement of Weigao Ortho (note 33(b)). The
loan is unsecured, and bearing the benchmark
lending rate that published by the People’s Bank of
China. The entire amount of principle and interest
will be receivable on 15 May 2021.

AEEMRSER 2 EEER
ERE&E R 2 &< (M
F33)) BT REBRHER
AER#221,600,0007T - BEIT
FoBERABEIRT  RFFiEF
BARBITAMOHEETKF
Kt B oA KA EHR
—E-—FHHA+HERHWKE-

24. INVENTORIES 2. &8

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E-RE —T—HF
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE AR®TFT
Raw materials R 125,349 165,734
Finished goods BIAX o 790,237 684,859
915,586 850,593
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. BB HIER R HtEKRIE
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—EB—-RE _—_ZT—HF
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
AR®BTRE AREBTT
Trade receivables fEUE B ER K 3,119,246 2,591,553

Less: Allowance for bad and B RIEER G
doubtful debts (188,844) (143,006)
2,930,402 2,448,547
Bills receivable FE U R 251,373 242,363
Other receivables H b e W 508 214,952 104,586
Prepayments AT I8 89,579 91,841
Prepaid lease payments (note 15) B EERIE (H5E15) 12,513 11,133
3,498,819 2,898,470

y 4
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
IR B S &

(continued)

All the bills receivable will be matured within six month.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed bills
receivable of RMB257,532,000 (2015:RMB236,327,000)
for the settlement of trade and other payables. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to these bills receivable, and the Group’s obligations
to the corresponding counterparties were discharged
in accordance with the commercial practice in the
PRC and the risk of the default in payment of the
endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed
bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by the
reputable PRC banks. As a result, the relevant assets
and liabilities were not recognised. The maximum
exposure to the Group that may result from the default
of these endorsed bills receivable are RMB257,532,000
(2015:RMB236,327,000).

Included in trade receivables are an amount due
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB11,499,000 (2015:
RMB3,856,000), and an amount due from ultimate
holding company of RMB74,000 (2015: nil). The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Included in other receivables are an amount due
from fellow subsidiaries of RMB91,120,000 (2015:
RMB32,278,000), and an amount due from ultimate
holding company of RMB11,933,000 (2015:
RMB553,000). The amounts are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Included in prepayments are an amount paid to fellow
subsidiaries of RMB5,346,000 (2015: RMB755,000),
and an amount paid to ultimate holding company of
RMB260,000 (2015: RMB104,000).

The Group allows a credit period of 90 — 180 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful
debts presented based on the invoice date, which
approximated the revenue recognition date, at the end
of the reporting period.

BRas) TEARNHARLDR 2016 F3;

25. FEI 3R 2 IR ok B H b FE U =R IR

(#8)

FreERKEES R EARE
/H\Ho

R—E—-—XRFEF+_A=+—8"
AEBBERKEREARK
257,532,000t (ZZE—HF: AR
#£236,327,00070) LAE R ENE 5

RAREMERRIB - RARIES
RE AEBECEBREHEZERK

EEMNEARRKEOR NEFH
*H%ﬁs&%ﬁ?ﬂ’]f&ﬂ@ﬁqﬂlﬁ
XENERK BERRMEEEE
FEWEESRPBEMNZRRITED
RER HEERKEELIBHEXR
NRRBRE Al BEEEXR
BEYTAREERR AEBEZES
ERWNZEEEHMEAIHRARR
A ANER#257,532,000T (ZE—H
F: AR#236,327,0007T) °

EH&Z%Z%%%&%EM&ZH%W%
AN A FRIE AR #11,499,0007T (=
T—HF: )\E%3856000x)
FERSEEZERRAAREBEARE
7400075(_ ﬂii |) o % E
KIEAEER RERARERE
1;@

HMERZRIERERERKREZNEBA
A A AR #91,120,000T (= F
—HF: AR#¥32,278,0007T) -
MEWKEERARRBARKE
11,933,00075(_ —hHF: AR
553,0007T) ° 2 F R IB A EEF -
%E&//\ ;_KHT{E & °©

BN REREENREREN B QTR
A AR #¥5346,000 (ZE—H
F: ANR¥755,0000T) REN&
AR A Al B A R #260,0007T
(ZZE—hF: AR¥®104,0007T) °

RNEEHLTFTEHEFIOEISOKZ
EEB - RREBRNEEH (BRI
SHER B EEIT) 2R E SR
R RIRBE) 2Rk H AT a0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. B B2 5 IR & B H b FE i ’k 1R
(continued) (&)

31/12/2016  31/12/2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ZE—RE —E—HRF

+=A +=A

=+—H =+—H

AR®TFRE ARETET

0 to 90 days 0ZE 90K 1,609,794 1,350,524

91 to 180 days 91ZE 180K 726,236 525,723

181 to 365 days 181E 365K 426,610 413,112

Over 365 days 365K £ 167,762 159,188

Trade receivables B E SR 2,930,402 2,448,547

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. 80% (31 December 2015:
77%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have good repayment history with the
Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB594,372,000 (2015: RMB572,300,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts
are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

BEMEAHEEN AEBFHE
EEFHNEREEZRRAERFRE
FARBE AEEHERFPAREE—
FRig— R -WRBHAITRBEZ
JEWE SBERF80% (ZE—HF
+=—A=+—B:77% ) EKEREF
RUFERD -

AEEMNEWREZERAREHRE BT
BRTE 42 E & AR ®594,372,0007T
—E—H%F: AR®572,300,000
JC) MEIER SR - EE R RE B B|
- RN ERHEEZTESERES
BB R ATKE  RMAEEW
EENBESEREEG AEEHE
NZEEHEEEANERR-

BEAERBRENEEE SRR
Rk

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—E—RE —T—AF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE ARBTT

Overdue by %0 B
0 to 180 days 0£E180K 426,610 413,112
Over 181 days 181K L 167,762 159,188
594,372 572,300

y 4




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FEU 32 5 AR % B 1 b FE W 3 IR
(continued) (%)
The Group has made impairment allowances in full REECERFTAERA=FHORIKER
for all receivables over 3 years because from historical RIEEHZBRERG AREAE
experience receivables past due beyond 3 years are KB B ERRER = F oy IR B
generally not recoverable. B EIAYE .
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RIBIRBHERNEH)
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000

—E—-RE _—_ZT—HF
ARBTFRT AREBTT

At 1 January w—A—A 143,006 115,999
Impairment losses recognised on HEWE 5 RRERE

trade receivables BB E 1B 48,352 29,489
Impairment losses reversed [=ECAEDRI=YSE = (1,126) (1,173)
Amounts written off as 8 A3 T BE B &9 FRIE

uncollectible (1,388) (1,309)
At 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—H 188,844 143,006
Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and HMEWRIBEAERER 2o kE
have no fixed term of repayment. In the opinion of the BEERM - NRRIEFTRA %
directors of the Company, the amounts are expected ERIEEHABRARK+ZEA AL
to be recovered in the next twelve months. The aging [B] o H b W R IE (A8 HR R 2 AR 1
analysis of other receivables net of allowance for bad B NEREITZEHIAT

and doubtful debts is stated as follows:

31/12/2016  31/12/2015

RMB'000 RMB’000

“E—-RE —_T—HHF

+=A T=A

=+-—H =+—H

ARBTRE ARETET

0 to 90 days 0290K 133,433 59,844
91 to 180 days 912180k 18,167 12,773
181 to 365 days 1812 365K 51,685 25,534
Over 365 days 365K A £ 11,667 6,435
214,952 104,586
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R P et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group has made impairment allowances in full for
all other receivables over 3 years because from historical
experience other receivables past due beyond 3 years
are generally not recoverable.

25.

FE U 32 5 AR 7k e Bt FE U R IR

(#&)

AKECHAEBB=FZHME
WHIREL 2 BURERE ARE
BERR BHBB=FZHEME
WoskR B R SR E

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RERBHENE
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—-RE _—_ZT—HF
ARBTRE ARETIT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 2,066 2,205

Impairment losses recognised BLE b FE Y R IB HE R A

on other receivables B & 18 833 105
Impairment losses reversed ERERERE (440) (244)
At 31 December w+=—A=+—H 2,459 2,066

Receivables that were not impaired relate to a wide
range of counter parties for whom there was no recent
history of default and with good credit quality.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2016, pledged bank balances
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure trade
facilities such as bills payable and letter of credit
amounting to RMB36,980,000 (2015: RMB46,173,000).

The pledged bank balances carry fixed interest rates
range from 0.3% to 1.65% per annum as at 31
December 2016 (2015: 3.15%).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits carry
interest rates range from 0.35% to 3.3% per annum
(2015: 0.35% to 3%).

y 4

26.

27.

A R R0 (8 B 8 U R TR 2 AT A I R
REBBERERRHNRZER
E#-

EEFRITHER

RZZE—XF+_A=+—H0"13
BRFTEBIEERBTRITNE
RES@E (FlNENZERER
)2 FEH e ARE36,980,000
T (ZZE—RF: AR%46,173,000
JC) °

RZE—XRNF+_A=+—8"'12
BHRTERZETNENTEF
03ER1 65 (ZE—HAHF:3.15
E)&t 8-

BITHBRRA®

BRITERLESEEAEERZAN
B RERIPEMA=@AHAT
MEHETER - BEFERENT
REF035FEE3IIEZBHA X
(ZZE—RF:035EF3E )t R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

28. FE {138 2 IR ok B Hfth BB £+ = IR

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

BRREHARNBERAH 27 RN
B RANREDITWT

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

RMB'000 RMB’000

—E—-RE —T—HF

+=A += A

=+-—H =t+—H

ARBTRE ARETT

0 to 90 days 0F90K 391,252 320,914

91 to 180 days 91% 180K 65,150 62,427

181 to 365 days 181%E 365K 10,627 8,615

Over 365 days 365K A £ 29,109 27,837

Trade payables ENE 5 RN 496,138 419,793

Bills payable e E#& 98,010 58,860

Advances from customers KEREP B 90,758 50,870

Other tax payables H ) & B 18 101,304 85,136
Construction cost and retention BENAREMNRE 2

payables 243,757 95,623

Selling expense payables JE AT 88 & B &2 550,186 453,191

Other payables H b fE T 5B 494,913 407,906

Dividend payables FERT IR B 92,158 -

2,167,224 1,571,379

The normal credit period taken for trade purchases is
90-120 days. All the bills payable will mature within six
months.

Included in trade payables are an amount due
to fellow subsidiaries of RMB30,522,000 (2015:
RMB4,650,000) and an amount due to a joint venture
of RMB45,883,000 (2015: RMB30,399,000). The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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B RBHEREREHRIE20
R-MIBERNEEGERANEAR
2

ENESERBREENRRNEB
N BRI A R¥30,522,0007T (=
T—-—HF: AR®4,650,0007T)
FEM—BEERRIREBEARKE
45,883,000 (ZE—HF: AR
#530,399,0007T ) ° :Z & FKIE A EIK
HRERREREEE-
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R P et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Included in advances from customers is an amount
received from fellow subsidiaries of RMB864,000 (2015:
RMB729,000).

Included in other payables are an amount due to fellow
subsidiaries of RMB369,000 (2015: nil), and an amount
due to ultimate holding company of RMB22,173,000
(2015: RMB13,981,000). The amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included in dividend payables is an amount due to
ultimate holding company of RMB88,550,000 (2015:
nil). The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

28. B R 7 MRH B H b FE 1 &RIR

(#&)

REBFPRABIEEKRERZH B A
A AR864,000T (—ZE—TH
F: AR¥729,0005T) °

HENRERREENREZNB A
AlFIE A R#369,000T (ZE—H
F8) RENREERRARIFIEA
R#22,173,000t (ZE—HF: A
R #13,981,000) ° 5% 5 A AEIK
B RERREKEFERE-

FEAT AR BB IR R & &LIER A TR
8 A R#88,550,000 T (ZE—FH
FoE) ZEREAERM BB
NREREEE-

BORROWINGS 29. &R
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—EBE—-RE _—_T—HF
+=AB +=A
=+-B =18
ARBTRE ARETFT
Bank borrowings at variable-rate (i) %)% 8 F K5+ B KR 17 & 7K () 388,200 149,100
Bank borrowings at fixed-rate (ii) 12 B 7E I 5T B0 R 1T 8 3K (i) 700,000 870,000
1,088,200 1,019,100
Secured (iii) A A Gii) 600,000 600,000
Unsecured 4 R 488,200 419,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —=

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

—RETZR=t+—HILFE

29. B (&)

fERAR T HHEER

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
—E—RE —E—HF
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTFRE ARKTET
Within one year R—F R 296,400 369,900
More than one year, but not R —F LA B RN EF
exceeding two years 27,200 49,200
More than two years, but not RMRFAEENBBRF
exceeding five years 764,600 600,000
1,088,200 1,019,100
Less: Amount due within one year WA BERBA G
shown under current liabilities S —F AN B B 89 018 (296,400) (369,900)
Amount due after one year shown JIRIEREBEEM
under non-current liabilities R—F1& F| e 1A 791,800 649,200
Note: M 5
i As at 31 December 2016, the variable-rate borrowings carry i RZZE—RE+ZA=+—8 F&HF
interest rates ranged from 4.35% to 5.25% per annum (2015: RIEREN N T F435BE525E 2
5% t0 6%). MOHME(ZE—AF SEZ6E):
Bo
ii As at 31 December 2016, the fixed-rate borrowings carry ii RZE-—RETA=+—H EE
interest rates ranged from 4.35% to 5.25% per annum (2015: B % A8 IR NN G F4.35[E £5.252
4.83% to 7.275%). ZENFE(ZE-—HF:483EE
7.2752 )5 R
iii During the year of 2015, the Group obtained a long-term loan iii RZZE—RF AEEEEESHA
of RMB600,000,000 from International Finance Corporation. AJE{S — 18 A R #600,000,0007T 2
The Loan is jointly secured by 100% equity interest of lierui REEFR - BEXRURAREEN R

that owned by the Company and 230,000,000 shares of the
Company that owned by Weigao Holding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT— A "F+-_A=+—HIEFE

30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. ;EFEUT A

31/12/2016  31/12/2015

RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E—-RE —T—AF
+=A +T—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFRE ARETET
Arising from government grants RERNFED 84,306 89,024
Analysed as: DT
Current & 8,982 7,436
Non-current FERE 75,324 81,588
84,306 89,024
During the year, the Group received new government FA-AEEBRINBFBFAEHEA
grants from the government authorities amounting to R #6,300,000C (ZZ—FHF: A
RMB6,300,000 in aggregate (2015: RMB52,016,000) R®52,016,0007T) Z ¥ 8D -
to subsidy the Group's certain capital expenditures. The NAAREENE TEARIRMMH
Group has complied with the conditions attached to BomMMmESMK ~NEBEETHD
the grants as at the end of the reporting periods and MRS WIREBEEZ A
will transfer the grants to profit or loss over the useful AFHAERZEMBERD - F
lives of the related assets. During the year, the Group N AEBEERZSFRNEDER
recognised these government grants to other income e A AR ®11,018,000T (=&
amounting to RMB11,018,000 (2015: RMB5,477,000). —hF: AR®S5,477,0007T) °
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. &
Nominal ~ Number of Total
value of  Non-listed  Number of number
each share shares H shares of shares Value
RMB (i) (i) RMB'000
B kL
BHEE Ri®E HE&E B fh 4 B RiE
ARE (i) (i) ARETR
Registered: BN
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 R -Z—R"F-A—AR
—E-7¥+zA=1-H 0.1 2638600000 1883732324 4,522,332,324 452,33
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 R -F-hF-A—0L
“E-RET-A=t-R 0.1 2592,640000 1,883732,324 4,476,372,324 447,637
Ordinary shares issued (ii) BETEBRG) 0.1 45,960,000 - 45,960,000 4,596
At 31 December 2016 RZB-—RE+ZA=+-A 0.1 2638600000 1,883732,324 4,522,332,324 152,33



182

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — A "F+_A=+—HIEFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31. R & (&)

Note:

i Non-listed shares and H shares are all ordinary shares in the
share capital of the Company. However, H shares may only be
subscribed for by, and traded in currencies other than RMB
between, legal or natural persons of Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region, Taiwan or any country other than
the PRC. Non-listed shares must be subscribed for and traded in
RMB. All dividends in respect of H Shares are to be paid by the
company in Hong Kong dollars whereas all dividends in respect
of non-listed shares are to be paid by the Company in RMB. The
non-listed shares and the H shares rank pari passu with each
other in all other respects and in particular, rank equally for all
dividends or distributions declared, paid or made.

ii. The Company issued ordinary shares of 45,960,000 shares with
consideration of RMB101,112,000 in 2016 for the purpose of
share award scheme (note 33 (a)).

g

i. ARREAG Z I ETRAD RHEE B
B - AT HIRER AEEE R
BT R - &Kk BIAIMER E
RZEAKEBARAANANAREUING E
HBRENERSZHES - FFLTARN
PBRAUAARERBREE - RAFBH
PR 2 P B IR B9 LA TS A - AR
RAEIFIE LT IR Z A RSN
AN REESAS = 3F £ K HBR 45 it
WA R ESZ R RFHAL - 55
ERAEEEIR X fE 2 B8
DRI EZE B RFHAL -

i. ARAARZE-AFUKEAR®
101,1 12,0007z§’§ﬂ45,960,oooﬁxﬁx1%
R B Byt 8Bl (M EE33()) »

32. LOAN FROM THE ULTIMATE HOLDING 32. RERBRERAFTIER

COMPANY

31/12/2016  31/12/2015

RMB'000 RMB’000
—E-RE _—_T—hF
+=A T=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE ARETT
Loan from the ultimate holding BEEAM X u+
company at variable-rate KB RAEER TEM 104,411 -
Analysed as: DR
Within one year —F K 104,411 -

The loans provided by the ultimate holding company is
carrying a fixed interest rate of 4.35% per annum for
the subscription of the incentive shares under a share
award scheme (note 33(a)), and the loans are secured
by these incentive shares of the Company hold by the
trustees. The loans were matured at 12 March 2017.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
loans have been extended to 12 March 2018.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A HRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT—"F+_A=+—HIEFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share Award Scheme of the Company

On 17 November 2014, the Company’s share
award scheme (the “Incentive Share Scheme”) was
adopted by the extraordinary general meeting,
the class meeting of holders of H shares and the
class meeting of holders of non-listed shares of
the Company. The maximum number of non-
listed Shares which may be issued under the share
award scheme would be 223,818,616, which
represent 5% of the existing issued share capital
of the Company or approximately 4.76% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the issue of the 223,818,616 non-listed shares,
respectively, as incentive shares to key personnel
of the Group, and other persons as approved
by the Remuneration Committee (the “Selected
Employee”), in batches in subsequent years. The
life of the Incentive Share Scheme is for 10 years.
Details of the Incentive Share Scheme are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 15 August
2014.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, the
incentive shares will be granted to the Selected
Employee, subject to vesting conditions.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, for
Selected Employee with a domestic identity, the
trustee will administer the Incentive Shares, which
may be organised in forms of companies owned
by the employees, limited partnership, or qualified
trust companies in the PRC, or for Selected
Employee with a foreign identity, the trustee will
hold the Incentive Shares outside the PRC (the
“Trustees”).

On 11 December 2015, the Company granted
first 45,960,000 incentive shares to 111 Selected
Employees. On 4 January 2016, the Trustees
subscribed the shares with the consideration of
RMB101,112,000 at the grant price of RMB2.20
per share.

33. LI 0 & B v 5

(a) &2 F) Bz {7 & B &+ &

RZE—NF+—A++tH"
RAR)EBREERNAE  HE
BHAER KNG RARAIE
ETRRGEHE AERI K R
BB (BB Gms
211) - BE D BB FT 8 7] %
TEETRODZZZEHEEE
223,818,616/% * D RIAEE A
NAEZERMBBPZEEITR
AR5%sk 45 #£17223,818,616[%
FEETROBREANGLDE
TRRARLL76% NERBREE
MAEEFZAEBREWNEZE
sHENEMA(TRHEAL
DR BT E BB EN IR 15 - BB
BHOstElcFHAETF - BB
BB 2 FIBEH N AL T H
HAE—_ZT—NFNA+EBEZ
NI

18 9 AR 49 3 81 - D R
BERBEENARTETE
A

REBEABBD S AFHE
RNEMBEmAME XEA
7 B RSB R £ - E AT BE DA MR
EHANRF -RPENAR
BB AR EREREAAN
FAMEL - T E RN
MHXBEAME  XEABE
RESEIMT B B R D ([ X5
NIDR

A-E—RFE+-_A+—H"
RN A H X% H45,960,0000%
BB 11128 A R
—E-RF-AmB -FFEA
ANERE D AREE2.20T 2
HERERGD REAARK
101,112,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — A "F+_A=+—HIEFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
WRE = EEE

Share Award Scheme of the Company
(continued)

The estimated fair value of the incentive shares
as at grant date amounted to RMB104,139,000
which determined by market price of listing shares
of the Company.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the difference between the fair
value and the grant price of the vested shares is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by
the relevant employees. The Group recognised
the incentive share expenses of approximately
RMB10,781,000 (2015: RMB13,066,000) into the
profit or loss during the current year.

Three limited partnerships (named Weihai Chang
Hong Enterprise Management Consulting Centre
(Limited Partnership) (B /8 KL EEEEH
(B BRE %)), Weihai Yang Fan Enterprise
Management Consulting Centre (Limited
Partnership) (BB H MNP XEBFH AR LERE
%)) and Weihai Hong Tu Enterprise Management
Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership) (&8 7
BrxEEBBPL(BRER)), respectively,
the “Trustees”) were set up for the purpose of
administering the Incentive Share Scheme and
holding the shares, and hereby regarded as special
purpose entities of the Company and consolidated
to the Group accordingly.

CAEY TERBROAERRARF 2016 £

33. IRk tfn B EREMT R (&)

(a) EXTFRGHMEE (B)

BT BB Z BB D 2 et
NFEANR104,139,0007TC
TERERRR EMBRH 2™
BEMET -

MEBEARTEEEFBBRETN
BHoms A FEEE FBR
MIREHERZENEZENE
HimE#EEERERED
SEHANEREIERAERN
XoRAFE AEEREDR
BREEBROAIHOAREK
10,781,000 (—ZE — A F :
AR #13,066,0007T) °

AL S CIEE [P ES RN
MELZ=ZMEBEREE QA
(DR REERLADEER
wAPL (BREE) BEH
NEXEERZRNFL(BARE
BI)LBERBERERRK A
Fo (BRAR) ) BIHBERR
RAIZFHHRBNEER LKA LR
REBHEA AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E—FT— A "F+-_A=+—HIEFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 3. IR BB (&)

(a)

(b)

Share Award Scheme of the Company (a) EAFRMHEMER (&)
(continued)

The movement in the incentive shares under the BN BB AR T BIIE T 2 B
Incentive Share Scheme during the Period are as B E e T
follows:
s at 311120015 As at 3111212016
RZE-RFTZA=1-8 RZB-AE+ZA=1+-A
Grant Date Grantees Grant Price Granted Vested Unvested Granted Vested  Unvested  Vesting Date Lock Up Period
BHAE AR gl ] BEH E5E 5B ERH ERE FRE HEQN HEH
1111212015 111 Employees  RMB2.2 45,960,000 7,180,000 38,780,000 45,960,000 14,380,000 31,580,000 To be vested in five 2 years following
“Z-RE  INEER per share tranches with the vested
tZR+-8 BRARE vesting dateon 31 BERME
21 December of each year

from 2015 t0 2019

BASHTUEE 5B

BER-Z-1EZ2

ZE-NEEEZ

tZRzt-A
Share Arrangement of Weigao Ortho (b) BB HENRHE
On 12 May 2016, two limited partnerships (named RZE—XNFRA+=-B'W
Weihai Hong Yang Rui Information Technology FAABEREE AR (B9 5 AR
Centre (Limited Partnership) (B8 54 F% 3% (5 B & 10 BoAEHEERMMFE L (AR
(B R A %)), and Weihai Glory Trading Centre %) REEXKBESHR L (B
(Limited Partnership) (BL/B X BE 5P NERA RE%) )RIE22,222,222/%
#2)), respectively), subscribe 22,222,222 shares BEEERmD (HBERBEE
of Weigao Ortho, which represent 10% of the RIEBAR AR 210%)
enlarged equity interests in Weigao Ortho, at a mRERARK311,111,000
total consideration of RMB311,111,000. The two ToMEIAEREEARHBER
limited partnerships are controlled and beneficially BRI EBEKKEZEHRE
owned by members of the management team of nHEB RBEBEEERTE
Weigao Ortho. The subscription aims to recognise 12 E ) B RO E 1R X
the contribution of and incentivise the members of KE FREFzMNEERSE
the management team, align their interests with Bz Ma—30 WE B F17
those of Weigao Ortho and encourage them to AEXRBREEE - UARAEE
optimise their performance and efficiency so as to Bll3E SRR AN 8] 5 o

maximise the equity return of the Group.
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Share Arrangement of Weigao Ortho
(continued)

The fair value of the shares set out above at the
subscription date is RMB606,000,000, which
is determined by reference to the fair value of
the entire equity interests in Weigao Ortho of
RMB6,060,000,000 as at 31 December 2015,
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out by China Alliance Appraisal Co., LTD (it
RARELEEFEHEAERADR), an independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group as at 14 June 2016. The fair value of
Weigao Ortho is estimated by applying an income
approach and the key model inputs used are set
out below:

e assumed discount rate of 11%; and

e assumed growth rates range from 6% to
20%.

The Group recognised the difference of
RMB294,889,000 between the fair value and gross
proceeds, as a share-based payment expense in
profit or loss for the current year.

33. IRk tfn B EREMT R (&)

(b) BERHEHRHE (E)

RRBAE EXEKRHG 2
N E A A RE606,000,000
T B2 ERRERR_E
—RFEF+-_A=+—H2Z2%
HBRAERZZATFEARE
6,060,000,0007T * I £ 74 B A
SEYEBRECBIYIAERE
¥MEMILRPREEEN G
ERARNR T —RNFNA
T HETZHEMER B
SEEZAFETER KA
BT RFERAZEER @A
FEHIWNT

o BRUERIF/N% K

c BRERENF6%E
20%

RAFE AEERERAH
N EHEMERIBEE 5
AR 294,889,000 R A
LARRID BERNM X -

34. OPERATING LEASES 34. #EHEB

The Group as lessee EEREEBEEAN
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
ZE—-RE —T—HF
ARBTRE ARETT

Minimum lease payments paid under RANEIRREL LA LHOI A
operating leases during the period ®EMEE

Properties /S 14,211 12,633

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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34. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had
commitment for future minimum leases payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

34. EEHB (&)

FREESEBA (E)

RZE-—RER_ZEZ—FHFE+_A
=+ —B AEERBETABUHE
EHA - BR T H R EA KK
AR & BEAE

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

—E2—RFE —T—hHF

+=A8 T—A

=+-8 =t-F

ARBFRE ARETET

Within one year R—FRN 8,639 5,808
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~RE_ZFRF

(BREEEME) 3,362 2,637

12,001 8,445

Operating lease payments relate to the Group’s branch
office premises, staff quarters and warehouses. Leases
are mainly negotiated for a period ranging from two to
five years and all rentals are fixed.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately RMB7,398,000 (2015: RMB7,835,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for following future minimum
lease payments.

EERORERAEE Y HDTY
¥ BIESREAAM-AHTE
H2F B — O 5 A EE R T P
AR S E R T -

FREAESHBA

RER FTREAMERS KALY
B ANRE®T7,398,000(—ZZE—TH
F: AR%7,835,0007T) °

R|ER  NEBE IR RK
BHEERBEFFTHEL-

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

RMB’'000 RMB'000

—E—-RFE —T—hF

+=A += A

=+—-8 =t+-F

AR®BTRE AREBTT

Within one year R—FRN 2,992 3,003

Operating lease payments relate to rentals generating
from the Group’s investment properties. Leases are
negotiated and rentals are fixed for one year.

y 4

AR ERNEBRENEN
EENHeARE HOKEER M
HeER—FREENE-



188

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'_\_|
AR

36.

B PR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=Z

35.

—RETZR=t+—HILFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. B &ifE
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had RZE-—RERZTE—HF+ZAH
commitments which were contracted for but not =+—H AEERGEEHB®mE
provided in the consolidated financial statements: REAC AT A ERBE AR AE:
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
—E—R¥E —hF
+=A += A
=+-—H =+—H
ARBTRE ARETT
Acquisition of property, WEEME  BWE R&E
plant and equipment 472,729 406,092
Incorporated a joint venture Efpk sz —fHa &R A 150,000 -
Investment fund KEE® 20,811 -
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. AFABER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEBMNERAERERASER
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern EERBBUNFESALE AR
while maximising the return to shareholders through FEEEEBCEBEERERRR
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The LN S S PNIETE: & ZIKE@E’JW’E“ 5
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior B B2 LA 1 FF B R FF A&
year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net AEEMNERNEBREEL FHE
debt (which includes borrowings net of cash and cash (BRIIRBReEZEDR 21E

equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising issued share capital, share
premium, reserves and retained profits).

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and issue of new shares as well
as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing
debt.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

WRE = EEE

2o FRBEHERAF 2016 FR

TOURERRRIER AEEREZ (B
%E%"‘ﬁﬂxﬁ MAD R (B - R AR
EEl/ﬁnﬁclj)

RRAEFRYFEEHERER
LTT*AH—J— {}E#?/IE/A$AAFI—J—%_£R 5
FEEEREANANEAZEERER
ARR - BEEFEZ AEEK
i R AR B BATHTAR D R AT
MEBNERRAER T HELER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. &M T H
Categories of financial instruments &MTRAMR
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E—RE —T—AF
ARBTRE ARETT
Financial assets SEMEE
Loans and receivables (including B Kk EWSRIA
cash and cash equivalents) (BREESIERESEFEY) 8,292,933 6,632,766
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 95,411 25,659
Financial liabilities emAaR
Amortised cost BIHAAR 3,167,773 2,454,473
Financial risk management objectives and HMERBEEERRBER

policies

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
finance leases receivables, loan receivables, available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, borrowings and loan from the
ultimate holding company. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

PRC subsidiaries of the Company with functional
currency of RMB have certain foreign currency sales,
purchases and bank balances and cash denominated
in Singapore Dollar (SGD), European Dollar(EUR), Hong
Kong Dollar (HKD), US Dollar (USD), Japan Yen (JPY),
Great Britain Pound (GBP) and Deutsche Mark(DEM),
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

AEENTESH T AEBRERKE
B BREZR  AIftHERE
FE WS 5 508 K B b R WRIE - B
HERROTER RITESREAES E
8 5 58 & H A A 508 - E R
RREBREERRAAER - ZFE
BMTAFBEREMERE -B2ZF
M TAFENEREBREMSER
(BE®EREMNEXER) EERR
FOmE)E & BB e T SCE S a0 fa [
BzSERNBR -EEETEEK
EEZFR M AR KB
REUEE O E

i 5 I B

B

ARRIZEEER BARE ZHE
B8 2 B HE A DA N3 T (AN
7o) BT (Bom) ~ABx (Bx) -
Exnx(xmx) HE(BHA) =&
(HE) MERER (FR)FHEZH
FHNEHE KB RRTEB LR
& B AN B A INEE LR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. €M IR (&)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets which are included in
the bank balance and cash at the end of the reporting
period are as follows.

MERRERARREE (B)

mEmEE (E)

EEmE (&)

RBmEBMR NEEF ARITHE
RBEERZAINEIEZ & Mé?
ZEREEN T

Liabilities Assets
2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARk BE

—E-R¥ “E-1F —E-RE§ —E-hF
AE®TRE AR®TT ARBTRE AREBTx
Currency of SGD AN T - - 113,254 117,675
Currency of EUR BT 11,469 - 79,301 -
Currency of HKD BT - - 21,250 34,431
Currency of USD ET 20,318 - 40,221 28,239
Currency of JPY A 281 - 4,086 -
Currency of GBP R2E - - 282 -
Currency of DEM 55 37 - - -

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of
SGD, EUR, HKD, USD, JPY, GBP and DEM.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2015:5%) increase and decrease in the
RMB against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year
where RMB weakens 5% against the relevant currency.
For a 5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant
currency, there would be an opposite impact on the
post-tax profit for the year.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
LWEREEEERS Y TEMBRMHBERAR 2016 FR

ANEBEBAZH KT BUT 7B
ToE HE EEREREK
E

TNREAFIAREE Y AR AR
BZEREFRT#HS% (ZF—1
Fi5%)2HRBE -S5%REEEY
SNERE RS IE A BE B ) 2 FF M - &
REDEBIEREN ZIASNE T
EZ SWIEE  WHREARIZS % 2 5h
EXFHHERF LB -LAT
E%ﬁ(i‘%m“*)\ﬁ%ﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁl\ﬁ%ﬁé%
5% B 2 AR [E R 1R ) F 2 T8 o fid
AR R HBEINETES%  Rlg Y
AERERRGHNEMRRTE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R P et
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

37. &M T H (&)

MERKREEEAERBE (B)
mEmE (Z)
B (&)
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
—E—-RE —ZT—A1F

AR®TFRET AREBTT

Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit AN & % 1& & F1J3& o0 (Rl 4 )

for the year

— If RMB weakens against
foreign currency

— If RMB strengthens against
foreign currency

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate in
relation to loan receivables, pledged bank balances,
borrowings and loan from the ultimate holding
company with fixed interest rate (notes 23, 26, 29 and
32).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
in relation to loan receivables, bank balances and
borrowings with variable interest rate (notes 23, 27 and
29). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of saving/lending rate
promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on
the interest rate level and outlook as well as potential
impact on the Group’s financial position arising from
volatility of the interest rate.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging

policy. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

y 4

—HAREHLINERZE
—fHARELINETE

9,617 7,665

(9,617) (7,665)

F 3 2 B

AEBHEBEHRRIENR BEE
RITEBRURTEBERERERLR
ERARERNAFENEXER
(PftF23 ~26 ~29K%32) °

AEBHBEEBRERKER RIT
EHRLZEEFNIASRENER
% (MY 523 ~27K%29) - RE B B
ReRheMEXRABEEEFRFE
ARBITEMOTRERF R
@Jo

REBMERM RN RRENARR
) 5RO B R 5 B B BUIOR B9 B
FEEEENERER -

7N B3R B 3 A R R E P BUR - R
m EEEHNETERZEE T
B AR R @R
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for loan
receivables, bank balances and borrowings with variable
interest rate at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate loan
receivables, bank balances and variable-rate borrowings
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 25 basis points (2015: 25 basis
points) increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates on variable-rate loan receivables, bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings had been 25
basis points (2015: 25 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would increase/decrease by RMB&,309,000 (2015:
RMB7,768,000).

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
LWREBEEERRD FRRKNDARAF 2016 F3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. €M IR (&)

MERRERARREE (B)

mEmEE (E)

B E T

TN BEE BT SRR B E R
R R AT 0 T B TR
6 R R E - 5 48R R R
55 SR 42 17 4 1 SO 8
2 458 R (B 1 - 25 (B A
%7 (—F—1F 5EEAHT)
NS SR EE T BE IR A
T2 T 8 5 B 5 1 O Rt <

WZEBRRER RITEHRKZR
BRFEF = PRE2SEE AL T
(ZE—RF:25@EEKRET) AT
EEMEFHEFITE IAEER
e ZE—RE+-_HA=+—81F
FEMBERFEEMN B AR
#8,309,000t (=T —HF: AR
#7,768,0007T ) °

15 5 m 5

RZE-—RFTA=+—8H
A FHRERITEEMBERAR
SEELEVHER AAKBEEAEA
EHNRAGEERRRERGAMB
RRKRINRNZFEEERME-
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debtors. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks. However,
the credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and
certificate of deposit is limited because the majority of
the counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and
liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates different to those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

37. «M TR (&)

MERRERARREE (B)

ERmEE (&)

SEEREEERR AEBEEE
ECZk—#HAABREEERFEER
B EEEMNEMMEREG AR
R PR B BRGE ¥5 e U [ 780 B (S 7R - it
S M¥EHR  REBESF AR
B 5 & EH A W El & 58 ARER 3L
/N RJ U [B] S B8 P4 R 50 B0 ORI 1ELES
B-mltms  AAREFRR/ALE
B EERRC AEEE-

AREZFEERRETREFENSE
THROTZRBDEZ -RAM B R
ReFEBMMEREZEERRA
R-BER/RAMOBFHREER
of 2 $RAT °

VoA g4

EEERDESRREK NEEE
RNERFERERSRHKFNR
ERBECFEY URAEELE
REESYRERSRERBAT
XnpE EEBERERNER
BRI R & EFREZL o

fie °] 82 ) R BB RIS IR FR
BEZMEMEE QA THIEITE
ERMEENBBZAEMNKTAR
AZBEEHRER -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity tables

Weighted
average
effective Less than

37. «M TR (&)

MERRERARREE (B)

RBEemE (&)

TRIRE G EEEMRFAFI A
KSEFTEERBENRSBRES O
HH ZRDRBEBRAEKEEER
cRABNRFEANNESREEN
AMBRASREMRHE - ZRER
NERARSESRE-RANERR
RN R R E HIR 2 KRB K
TRIR B F &

REBEE XK

Total Carrying
Over undiscounted  amount at

interest rate 1 year 1-2 year 2-5 years Syears  cash flows  31/12/2016
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

mEFy
RRHE YME

RZB-1E
AHRRE TZRZt-B

1502% 2E5% #lsF REQH MIEEE

% AR®FT  ARRTT  ARRTR  ARMTRT  ARRIR  ARRTR

- - - 496,138 496,138
- - - 243,757 243,751
- - - 98,010 98,010
- - - 1,045,099 1,045,099
- - - 92,158 92,158
- - - 108,953 104,411

- 751,500 - 859,574 700,000

35,162 167,830 - 413,095 388,200

2016 ZE-AE
Non-derivative financial  Jfi4 &MAR

liabilities
Trade payables EIESFE 496,138
Construction cost and retention EERARERNREE

payable 243,757
Bills payable AES 98,010
Other payables HiERFE 1,045,099
Dividend payables RS 92,158
Loan from the ultimate holding R B &&ER A FIE R

company 4.35 108,953
Borrowings &3

-~ fixed rate - 5.12 102,074

- variable rate R EE 4.76 210,103

2,396,292

35,162 925,330

3,356,784 3,167,773

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37Z. &M TR (&)

Financial risk management objectives and MERREEARREE (&)
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) RBELmAE (F)
Liquidity tables (continued) B ELHK (&)
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 year 2-5 years 5 years cash flows 311212015
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZ-1%
Mgy AEERE t-A=t-R

ERH% a3 1528 155% BisF REER MEEE
% ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR®Tn  ARETR

2015 -B-if
Non-derivative financial {4 eMAR

liahilities
Trade payables EIEZFA 419,793 - - - 419,793 419,793
Construction cost and retention BEMAREFNRE S

payable 95,623 - - - 95,623 95,623
Bills payable ENEER 58,860 - - - 58,860 58,860
Other payables HbERTE 861,09 - - - 861,09 861,09
Borrowings 3

- fixed rate -EFHE 5.65 364,891 - 768,359 - 1,133,250 870,000

- variable rate - 58 6.15 102,926 53,808 - - 156,734 149,100

1,903,189 53,808 768,359 - 2,725,356 2,454 472

Fair value measurement of financial EMIANLTFERE
instruments
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KRBEERA REHEKEIA
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities RAEVERERANEHEERESH
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial BEREOEAEENAFEES-

statements approximate their fair values.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Group had the following related party

transactions during the two years ended 31
December 2016 and ended 31 December 2015:

3. AEALRS

REBEZEZE_FT—X"F+ = A
=S+ —BHEHE_ZT—HF
+-A=+—HIMEFEAN -
REBBTIBEEALTRS:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
—B—-R"E —T0F

ARBTRE AR®TT

Sales to fellow subsidiaries HETRRWE QA
Sales to ultimate holding company % F & &% A 7]
Purchases from fellow subsidiaries A [E Z BB A & & iE
Purchases from a joint venture m—EeEAaRE
Purchases from other related parties 7] E b B8 38 A TR &

Operating lease income from fellow X BB ZWHEB Q72

subsidiaries LEHEE WA

Finance lease income from fellow R B[R ZKMBA A2
subsidiaries MERSRA

Rental payments to other related MEMEAEATZFEE
parties

Service received from ultimate BERKERAREEZ
holding company Ak 75

Service received from fellow BRRAMNBAREE
subsidiaries Bk 7%

Service received from other related B E R E A +HEE >
parties Ak 75

Service provided to fellow BIEEISEINGIE 24
subsidiaries Bk 7%

Service provided to ultimate MEEERARRE 2
holding company Ak 75

Service provided to a joint venture Al —R& & A AR 2 R

Construction service received from B[R XM B QG ER 2

fellow subsidiaries ERRE

Loan from ultimate REZKERATER
holding company

Loan to a joint venture A& RaREZER

Details of amounts due from/to related parties are
set out in notes 22, 23, 25, 28 and 32.

During the year, the principal of the finance lease
services provided to the fellow subsidiaries by the
Group amounting to RMB98,834,000(2015: nil).

A long-term loan of the Group is secured by
230,000,000 shares of the Company that owned
by the ultimate holding company in both years.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

IR B S &
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27,885 15,952
144 -
200,431 108,884
158,505 125,420
5,588 -
4,224 4,331
5,917 -
1,361 -
59,562 56,510
1,638 2,180
8,395 -
4,472 2,326
343 -

- 9,434
12,454 4,800
104,411 -
20,000 50,000

JEU T REE A £ RIER
BN M 5522 2325 28%
320

FR-AEERRRZHEB QA
REZHERERE AL B
A AR #98,834,000T (=&
—hFE)

RREFEAR A&EE 2 KH
ERTDIUEEERARFEEZ
KA 7] Z230,000,0000% i% 19
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as
follows:

38. EALTXH (&)

(b) EXEBARREM

RER EERTEEERED

Hibpk BeyFm M T :
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000

—E—RE —_T—HF
ARBFRE ARETET

Short-term employee benefits % HE B 12 A
Post-employment benefits B2 R

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. All Hong Kong
employees joining the Group are required to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of mainland.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 18% of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by
the Group are disclosed in note 9.

y 4

173,546 31,059
335 214
173,881 31,273
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ErEEREHASEABHENTE
EarEle

AEBEzHBENERARZEEDR
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI AT
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. X AT EEME AT HE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 R-E—RER-_ZT—HF+_-A
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: =+ —B ARARNBRRIMFIE
LU
Effective equity
Place of Paid up issued/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2016 2015 2016 2015
BETEE/ ®+ZA=+-H
HEARER B gEmEx FREOBECERRE TERE
% (E#) % (%)

ZE-RXE “T-1F IZB-Rf ~—T-1F

Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device  PRC RMB222,222,222 62.63 67.50 18.37 22.50  Manufacturing of
Company Limited (U RS ERHTH orthopaedic medical
R ERAR) device products
LRFERERIHROERAR M AR%222,22022001 HERHERREER
Beijing Weigao Yahua Artificial Joints ~ PRC RMB70,000,000 - - 81 90 Research, services and sales
Development Company Limited (£ & of medical devices
AREEATIBSREERAR)
IREREEAIBSREERLA  +E AR%70,000,0007 BRREOME REREE
Changzhou Jianli Bangde Medical PRC RMB65,000,000 - - 81 90 Manufacturing of
Devices Co., Lid. (RMENBEEE orthopaedic devices,
BERERAF) implantation materials and
artificial organs
ENENARERSHAERAR i AR65,000,0007C HEFHRE BEMHR
NERE
Weihai Weigao Management Asset PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 81 - Asset management and
Management Co., Ltd. (B8R & enterprise consulting
EEBERARA) service
BERREEERARAR M AR10,000,0007T BEERREXBARE
Weihai Weigao Blood Purification PRC RMB120,000,000 70 70 - - Manufacturing of medical
Products Company Limited (51255 blood purification
MEFCERERAT) treatments and related
consumables
REERNRFERERAA i AR 120,000,0007C REMRHBERIEEREN

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
LWEREEEERS Y TEMBRMHBERAR 2016 FR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

40. X AT ERME L FFH

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Effective equity
Place of Paid up issued/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2016 2015 2016 2015
BRTES/ R+ZB=+-8
HELRER H e HRES FREEECERRE TERE
% (E#) % (&)
—B-RX§ —T-nf ZIB-RE C—ET-nf
Weigao Blood Purification Products PRC nil/ - - 70 70 Sales of Type Il and Type
(Shanghai) Company Limited RMB80,000,000 Il medical devices and
BERIRHER(LEERAF) computer software
BRORF ER(LE)ERAT  HE &/ E_BRE-REERER
AR%80,000,0007 TERRANEE
Weihai Weigao Biotech Co., Limited ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 70 70 Manufacturing and sales of
(FERSESRRERAA) medical devices
BERRERNRARAR Gk AR10,000,0007 RERHERER
Shandong Weigao Medical Holding PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 70 70 Manufacturing of medical
Company Limited (L RElmBE 2R products
BRAR)
LRFEERERARAR i AR%20,000,0007 HERRER
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB950,000,000 25 25 75 75 Wholesale of Type | medical
Products Marketing Co., Ltd. devices, surgical devices
FEEBEESEREREH and other disposal medical
BRAR) products
BEEE (FE) BREm Gkt AR%950,000,0007 F-REERE THWRER
EHERAR E—RUEBEERN
HEEHARAT
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB1,006,000,000 25 25 75 75 Wholesale of Type | medical
Products Material Supply Co., Ltd. devices, surgical devices
FEEBESERLRIEEE and other disposal medical
BRAR) products
BEEE (FE) BREm Gk AR%1,006,000,0007T F-REERE THWRER
HHERBRAA Eh—RUEBEERN
iy
Weihai Jierui Medical Products PRC RMB32,000,000 100 100 - - Manufacturing of medical
Company Limited (/525 2 A2 PVC granules, plastic
BRAR) packing bags and carton
boxes
BEZRERRRARAR Gk AR 32,000,000 SUERMAPVCRLE
EHBERREE

y 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

40. X AT ERME L2 FFH

(#&)

Effective equity
interest attributable
to the Group as at 31 December
% (direct) % (indirect)

Place of Paid up issued/

Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital Principal activities

2016 2015 2016 2015
BRITES/ R+ZA=+-H
HELRER H e HRES FREEECERRE TERE
% (E#) % (A#)
—B-RX§ —T-nf ZIB-RE —ET-nf
Shandong Weigao Automatic PRC RMBS5,000,000 - - 100 100 Manufacturing of industrial
Equipment Company Limited automatic equipment and
(LREREBLREERAR) parts
LRFEEaHCRBEARAR HE ARH5,000,0007 RETXADCREREN
Shandong Weigao Group Logistic PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 - - Provision of logistics and
Company Limited* storage services
(LREEEEMRERAR)
LRFEEENRARAR HE AR20,000,0007C REDRRERRS
Shandong Weigao New Life Medical ~ PRC RMB20,000,000 50 50 50 50  Manufacturing of medical
Device Company Limited* products
(LRESHEBERHERAR)
LRFEHLERSHAR AR HE AR20,000,0007C HERRER
Weihai Weigao Group Mould Company PRC RMB8,000,000 90 90 10 10 Manufacturing of moulds
Limited* (EE R EERE
BRAR)
RERREERAERAR hE AK%8,000,0007T RERE
Sichuan Jierui Weigao Medical Device  PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 - - Trading of medical products
Company Limited* (P9Il #5555 2
BEMARLT)
mIZRERERSH AR AR HE AR2,000,0007 EEEREM
Weihai Weigao Jiesheng Medical PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 - - Trading of medical products
Devices Co., Ltd.* (B F =25 &
BENARAT)
BERRREERENERAT HE AR20,000,0007C EEEREM

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
LWEREEEERS Y TEMBRMHBERAR 2016 FR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. X AT EEME AT HE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#)

(continued)

Effective equity
Place of Paid up issued/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2016 2015 2016 2015
BRITES/ R+ZA=+-H
HELRER H e HRES FREEECERRE TERE
% (E#) % (A#)

Z2-"% _Z-1F IB-"§ _T-1%

Weihai Weigao Medical International ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 80 80 20 20 Sales of medical devices,
Trading Co., Ltd.* (BB 2 EHER imports and exports of
BHARAT) registered products

BERRERIRESERAT HE AR5,000,0007 HEBER

EHOERER

Weigao International Medical Co., Ltd.  Hong Kong HKD207,699,690 100 100 - - Investment holding
[BERERREERAR)

BEERERERAA R 207,699,6907 7T REARR

Wellford Capital Limited British USD50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding

Virgin Islands
HERRES  50,000%T REER

Shandong Weigao Financial Leasing PRC RMB500,000,000 - - 100 100 Engaged in various financial
Co, Ud* (LARFRBEARE leasing business of
BRAR) medical equipment

LRFEREREARAR HE AR 500,000,000 HEBRRENEE

Weigao Medical Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKD1,000,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
([BRBEERERAR)

BRERARERAA R 1,000,000/ 72 REARR

Weigao Hemodialysis Technology PRC RMB 150,000,000/ - - 92.5 925  Manufacturing and sales of
Development Co., Ltd.* (/8 & & 1 RMB200,000,000 hemo-dialysis equipment
REMBBERGRAT)

BERRNREMNRRRERAA & ARH150,000,0007,/ MEETRENRERHE

AR %200,000,0007

Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease PRC UsD45,000,000/ - - 100 100 Engaged in various financial
Co, Limited* (LRl RBAMRE USD50,000,000 leasing business
BRAR)

LERRREAREARAR HE 45,000,000% 7,/ HEZBRERERE

50,000,000% 7
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ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%&)

(continued)

40. X AT ERME L2 FFH

Effective equity
Place of Paid up issued/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2016 2015 2016 2015
BRTES/ R+ZB=+-8
HELRER H e HRES FREEECERRE TERE
% (E#) % (A#)
—B-RX§ —T-nf ZIB-RE —ET-nf
Better City Limited BVI nil/ - - 100 100 Investment holding
USD50,000
EERAES £/ REER
50,0005 7T
Lucky Goal Limited (¥25B227)  HongKong ~ HKD1.00 - - 100 100 Investment holding
FRAERAR R 1.00% 7 REARR
Champion Falcon limited HK HKD1.00 - - 100 100 Investment holding
FARBERAF)
ABAER AR R 1.00% 7 REARR
Brilliant grace limited (B2 ERAF) BV USD1.00 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BRARAR BEERNEE 1.00%T REARR
Fuzhou Fanshun Medical Device PRC RMB500,000 95 95 - - Wholesale, sales and
Technology Company Limited* purchases of disposable
(BNNBEREERRGERLA) sterile medical devices
BARERESERRMER AT e AR 500,000 —REBEREORE
HERRE
Weihai Weigao Blood Supplies Co., PRC nil/ 100 100 - - Trading of medical products
Limited* (50§ B = K M #6471 RMB10,000,000
BRAR)
RERRROFENERAT e &/ EERERED
AR #10,000,0007

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
LWEREEEERS Y TEMBRMHBERAR 2016 FR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

40. X AT ERME L FFH

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Effective equity
Place of Paid up issued/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital to the Group as at 31 December Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2016 2015 2016 2015
BRTES/ R+ZB=+-8
HELRER H e HRES FREEECERRE TERE
% (E#) % (A#)
—B-RX§ —T-nf ZIB-RE C—ET-nf

Weihai Weigao Anesthesia Products ~ PRC nil/ 90 90 10 10 Production and sales of Type |
Co., Limited* (8 = MEL & RMB1,000,000 Type Il and Type Ill medical
BRAR) devices

BERRMEHERERAR HE &/ HERMEE-H E£2ER

AR%1,000,0007T E-REER

Weigao Medical (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC nil/ - - 70 - Trading of medical products
(BEEE CRIDBRAR) RMB20,000,000

BEEE (R ERAR Gk g/ BEEREEM

AR%20,000,0007

Taian Weixin Medical Products Co., Ltd. PRC RMB300,000/ 10 - 90 - Trading of medical products
(FRTHHERHRERRA) RMB30,000,000

RETRMERHRERAA Gk ARH300,0007,/ BEEREEM

AR%30,000,0007

Weihai Chang Hong Enterprise PRC RMB50 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Centre advisory services
(Limited Partnership)* B/ &L (%

EEFATOERAH)

RERLCEERZATL FE AR50 TEEEENRE
(BRA%)

Weihai Yang Fan Enterprise PRC RMB50 - - - - Enterprise management
Management Consulting Centre advisory services
(Limited Partnership) * (F 55N %

ERFAPLERAE)

RERNECEERZEATL i AE#S0T PEERERRE
(BRA%)

Weihai Hong Tu Enterprise Management PRC nil/ - - - - Enterprise management
Consulting Centre (Limited RMB41 advisory services
Partnership) * (F/8 & (: 28 1H
ATL(ERAR)

REEECEERZEATL i £/ PEERERRE
(ERA%) ARBANT

* For identification purposes only E R

y 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"F+_A=+—HIEFE

40.

41.

42.

43.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is
no subsidiary that has non-controlling interests which is
material to the Group.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Certain comparative amounts in the prior year’s
presentation have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 January 2017, Weigao Blood and three
subscribers entered into the subscription agreements
with the aggregate consideration of RMB536,833,000.
Upon completion of the subscription agreements, the
equity interest of the Company in Weigao Blood will be
reduced from 70% to approximately 49.34%.

OTHER MATTERS

On 14 June 2016, the Company and Shandong Weigao
Group Logistic Company Limited (“Weigao Logistic”),
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into the asset
transfer agreement with, among others, Zhuhai
Winbase International Chemical Tank Terminal Co.,
Ltd. ("Winbase International”), a company established
under the laws of the PRC and the A shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, pursuant
to which the Company and Weigao Logistic have
conditionally agreed to sell, and Winbase International
has conditionally agreed to acquire, a 81% equity
interest in Weigao Ortho at an aggregate consideration
of approximately RMB4,909,000,000. The consideration
will be satisfied by (a) the issuance of the Consideration
Shares by Winbase International to the Company; and
(b) the transfer of the Winbase Assets by Winbase
International to Weigao Logistic.

40

ARFERMEBLFFR

(%)

BB B D RN FREBETEMNER

s

g

ARBEERR MEHAHAE
BEERTEZIFEREDR ZME

SR

41. Lk BRI EFH
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F—Ee

42. EEHWEFR
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MmRE=ZREAFTLRERHZ
& (8 A AR %536,833,0000T ° ¢
KRB EE KARRRES IR
ZIREFBBT0% M E 4)49.34% -

43. HthEI5
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—T— A F+-_A=+—HIEFE

OTHER MATTERS (continued) 43. HthEIH (&)
On 14 June 2016, Winbase International and the RZE-—RFRAA+TMAB - BEEZE
Company entered into the subscription agreement EZHREAKRRDAE R W
pursuant to which Winbase International has Bt BREESEFEAKRERE
conditionally agreed to issue, and the Company has BT -MARAEBERHERERE
conditionally agreed to subscribe 29,732,411 Winbase 297341 TREEZFEERM KR
shares at a cash consideration of RMB300,000,000. KB & AR%300,000,0007T °
Upon Completion, Winbase international will become REKE BEEEEHBREK AR
a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. NAZEBEEFZEMB AR Lt
Details of the transactions above are set out in the RPGFBHNRARABHAZET
Company’s announcement dated 15 June 2016. —RNENATHEBZAMHA-
The transactions set out above have not been RAmEBE - EliRHEARTAA °
completed as at the date of this report.
COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 44. ZAFIZMBRAE
POSITION
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB'000 RMB’'000
—E—-RE _—_ZT—IF
+=AH +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE ARETT
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB REE 2,382,664 2,252,923
Investment properties KEME 138,764 261,720
Prepaid lease payments A HEERIA 222,116 283,576
Intangible assets BEEE 10,807 2,442
Investments in subsidiaries KU B AR IR E 1,072,855 887,822
Amounts due from a subsidiary JEW— M B AR 2
(note) B (KEE) 1,570,391 1,554,677
Deferred tax asset R IBE E 37,371 29,545
Loan receivables FE W E 221,600 -
Deposit paid for acquiring property, BB X BE &
plant and equipment BEZTES 23,702 36,026
5,680,270 5,308,731
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44. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (continued)

44. ELRTFIZHMEBERAER (&)

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E—-RE —_T—HF
+=A T—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFRE ARETT
Current assets MBEE
Inventories w8 383,621 360,178
Trade and other receivables FEUNE 5 Fo B th FE U 5K 2,378,749 2,107,270
Amount due from subsidiaries JE U BfY /8~ Bl 5K IE 168,562 146,753
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITFER 43,827 43,827
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 2,924,503 2,076,567
5,899,262 4,734,595
Current liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables FETE 5 K B b FE TR 1,234,259 975,465
Amount due to subsidiaries FEH BT B A B 5RIB 3,448,765 2,590,507
Tax payable JE A 18 58,142 24,195
4,741,166 3,590,167
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,158,096 1,144,428
6,838,366 6,453,159
Capital and reserves IR R % 5 4
Share capital X 452,233 447,637
Reserves 1 5,767,338 5,385,436
Total equity s R 6,219,571 5,833,073
Non-current liability ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings — RITREMER—A
repayable after 1 year R—FIREERE 600,000 600,000
Deferred income EEUW A 18,795 20,086
618,795 620,086
Total equity and non-current liability #zm &IERB B ERTE 6,838,366 6,453,159

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—AF+-_A=+—HIEFE

44. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 44. X2 FzZzHBERRAE (&)
POSITION (continued)

Note: The amounts due from a subsidiary amounted to MeE: BUK—MEHREBATHREBEARYE
RMB1,570,391,000 (2015: RMB1,554,677,000) are unsecured, 1,570,391,000c ( ZZ—HF: A
non-trade related and interest bearing at 4.35%(2015: 5.31%) R #1,554,677,0007T) AEHEIR - JE
per annum. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the BSHBARIESF435% (ZFT—H
amounts are not expected to be recovered within the coming F:531%)FT B -AAREERA "
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and are ZERFEAE T BWME RS RE
therefore classified as non-current. STARR A+ Z{E A R U@ i E k5

HAIERY-
Information about the movement in reserves of the BEARRBNHMENRZ #HEHE D
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: KZENBRE:
Movement in reserves
RED
Share-based  Statutory
Share  payments surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve fund profits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Y30
BERMR EERR
BiFEE 1] LES REETF it
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARSTT ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE-—RF—F—H 2,478,544 - 223,819 2,424,125 5,126,488

Profit for the year KEERF - - - 577,134 577,134

Share-based payments WARR 7 AR E TR - 13,066 - - 13,066

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BRZZTRHFE - - 2,298 (2,298) -

Dividends recognised as distribution BREDRMEE - - - (331,252) (331,252)

At 31 December 2015 W-Z2-0%F

+=ZA=+—"H 2,478,544 13,066 226,117 2,667,709 5,385,436

Profit for the year AEERT - - - 622,825 622,825

Ordinary shares issued (note 33(a)) BETEER

(Mi#33() 96,516 - - - 96,516
Share-hased payments (note 33(a)) WARR 17 B TR

(Mi333() - 10,781 - - 10,781
Dividends recognised as distribution ERAEDRHMEKE - - - (348,220) (348,220
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE

+-A=+—"H 2,575,060 23,847 226,117 2,942,314 5,767,338
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE
For the year ended 31 December
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
B#FE+-A=+—RHLEE
ZE-RFE —T—HF —TNmMF =—ZT—= —E——F
ARBTRT ARET AREFTT ARBTL ARBTR
RESULTS EiR
Revenue WA 6,730,340 5918930 5,277,827 4,613,310 3,689,115
Profit before taxation B 35 A g A 1,314,346 1,335,505 1,275,664 544,154 1,126,175
Taxation FiIE (176,754) (186,647) (180,844) (156,475) (129,805)
Profit for the year KEE R 1,137,592 1,148,858 1,094,820 387,679 996,370
Profit attributable to: TH S EER R
Owners of the Company EREER A 1,105,933 1,112,736 1,084,948 387,984 996,486
Non-controlling interests FEERER 31,659 36,122 9,872 (305) (116)
1,137,592 1,148,858 1,094,820 387,679 996,370
As at 31 December
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
®R+=-—B=+—H
ZE-RFE —T—HF —T—mF =—ZT—= —E-CZF
ARBTET AREBTRT ARETT ARETT AR®BTR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERA&RE
Total assets BEE 15,756,309 13,519,246 12,070,107 11,288,096 10,478,846
Total liabilities BEE (3,551,045) (2,732,423)  (2,190,516)  (2,225,164)  (1,558,431)
Non-controlling interests R ER (338,687) (128,646) (31,686) (22,587) (9,422)
11,866,577 10,658,177 9,847,905 9,040,345 8,910,993

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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